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NOTICE OF 14* (FOURTEENTH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 14% (Fourteenth) Annual General Meeting of Snapdeal Private Limited (“The
Company”) will be held on Thursday the 12t" day of August, 2021 at 11.00 A.M. at the registered office of the
Company at SproutBox Suryavillas, Suite #181- TR-4, First Floor, D-181, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1, New Delhi
110020, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:-

1. ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, AUDITORS REPORT & DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
2020-21

To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year
2020-21 of the Company, together with the Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon and in this regard,
pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and
the schedules and notes to accounts forming part of the financial statements together with the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon as placed before the Board, be and are hereby considered and
adopted.”

2. TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

To consider and approve the appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the Company and in this regard, pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder the consent of Shareholders of the Company be and is
hereby accorded for the appointment of S.R. Batliboi & Associates, LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAl Firm
Registration Number 101049W/E300004) as the statutory auditors of the Company for a period of five (5) years
from the conclusion of the ensuing 14th (fourteenth) Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) till the conclusion of the
19th (nineteenth) AGM of the Company on such remuneration as may be mutually decided between Mr. Kunal
Bahl, Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal, Directors of the Company and the said Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kunal Bahl and Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal, Directors and Ms. Roshni Tandon,
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such act(s), deed(s) and
thing(s) which are necessary to give effect to the aforesaid resolution and to sign and file necessary
intimation(s)/e-forms as may be required, with the Registrar of Companies /Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(McA).”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

3. TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

To consider and approve increase in authorised share capital of the Company and in this regard, pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act 2013, read with the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014, including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and the rules made thereunder and subject to
provisions of Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to increase the authorised share capital of the Company from INR 15,00,00,000 (Rupees
Fifteen Crores) to INR 16,08,48,200 (Rupees Sixteen Crores Eight Lacs Forty Eight Thousand Two Hundred only)
by creation of 1,08,48,200 (One Crore Eight Lacs Forty Eight Thousand Two Hundred) additional equity shares of
INR 1 (Rupee One) each.
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RESOLVED FURTHER that the existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association be and is hereby accordingly
altered and substituted by the following new clause V:

V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR 16,08,48,200/- (Rupees Sixteen Crores Eight Lakhs Forty
Eight Thousand Two Hundred Only) divided into:

a) 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores) Equity shares of INR 1/- (Rupee One) each;

b) 20,000 (Twenty Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series A preference shares of INR 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each.

c) 25,000 (Twenty Five Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series B preference shares of INR 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each.

d) 25,000 (Twenty Five Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series C preference shares of INR 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each.

e) 25,000 (Twenty Five Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series D preference shares of INR
100/- (Rupees One Hundred Only) each.

f) 25,000 (Twenty Five Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series E preference shares of INR
100/- (Rupees One Hundred Only) each.

g) 3,000 (Three Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series E1 preference shares of INR 100/-
(Rupees One Hundred Only) each.

h) 34,500 (Thirty Four Thousand Five Hundred) compulsory convertible cumulative Series F preference
shares of INR 100/- (Rupees One Hundred Only) each.

i) 80,000 (Eighty Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series G preference shares of INR 100/-
(Rupees One Hundred Only) each.

j) 20,000 (Twenty Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series H preference shares of INR 100/-
(Rupees One Hundred Only) each.

k) 4,00,000 (Four Lakh) compulsory convertible cumulative Series | preference shares of INR 100/- (Rupees
One Hundred Only) each.

1) 1,05,000 (One Lakh Five Thousand) compulsory convertible cumulative Series J preference shares of INR
10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

=

m) 17,410 (Seventeen Thousand Four Hundred and Ten) compulsory convertible cumulative Series J1

preference shares of INR 20/- (Rupees Twenty Only) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. Kunal Bahl, Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal, Directors and Ms. Roshni Tandon, Company
Secretary of the company be and are hereby authorized, severally, to sign, execute and file the required forms and
documents with the Registrar of Companies, to exercise such powers, and to do all such acts, deeds, things and
matters as may be required and considered necessary or incidental thereto and to comply with all other
requirements in this regard.”

By the order of the Board

For SNAPDEAL PRIVATE LIMITED
ROSHNI noigitally signed

TANDO Tiicon

Date: 2021.07.20
N 13:32:26 +05'30'

Roshni Tandon

(Company Secretary)

ACS21150

H-1/9 Iind Floor

Malviya Nagar Place: Delhi
New Delhi-110017 Date: July 20, 2021



NOTES:

A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND THE MEETING, IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF, AND SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY
SUBJECT TO PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION. THE PROXY FORM IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE
MUST BE DEPOSITED WITH THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. THE PROXY FORM IN THE PRESCRIBED FORMAT MGT-11 IS ATTACHED
FOR DOING THE NEEDFUL, IF REQUIRED.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are requested
to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution/ authorization letter, authorizing their representative to
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Explanatory statement as required under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Special
Business under item no. 3 is annexed.

Members are requested to notify any change in their address/ mandate/ other details immediately to the
Company at its registered office.

The documents, if any referred to in the resolution mentioned are available for inspection during 10.00
a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the Meeting except holidays at the Registered Office of the Company and copies

thereof shall also be made available for inspection at the venue of Meeting.

Route map to the venue of the meeting is annexed.

By the order of the Board

For SNAPDEAL PRIVATE LIMITED
ROSHNI oigitally signed

TANDO Tatoon "

N

Date: 2021.07.20
13:33:14 +05'30"

Roshni Tandon
(Company Secretary)
ACS21150

H-1/9 lind Floor
Malviya Nagar

New Delhi-110017

Place: Delhi
Date: July 20, 2021



Explanatory Statements
(Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 3:

The Company proposes to increase the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from INR 15,00,00,000
(Rupees Fifteen Crores) to INR 16,08,48,200 (Rupees Sixteen Crores Eight Lacs Forty Eight Thousand, Two
Hundred only) by creation of 1,08,48,200 (One Crore Eight Lacs Forty Eight Thousand, Two Hundred)
additional equity shares of INR 1 (Rupee One) each for facilitating the listing of shares of the Company at stock
exchanges in future and/or raise more capital to support the operations of the Company.

The increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company will also require consequential amendment in
the Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company. Pursuant to Section 13 and 61 the
Companies Act, 2013, alteration of the Capital Clause requires approval of the members of the Company by
way of passing an Ordinary Resolution to that effect.

Your Directors recommend the resolution as set out at Item No. 3 for the approval of shareholders.

None of the directors, key managerial personnel or their relatives is/are interested in the said resolution
except to the extent of their shareholding, if any in the Company.

By the order of the Board

For SNAPDEAL PRIVATE LIMITED
ROSHNI pee

TANDO T

N 2021.07.20
13:33:57 +05'30'

Roshni Tandon
(Company Secretary)
ACS21150

H-1/9 Iind Floor
Malviya Nagar

New Delhi-110017

Place: Delhi
Date: July 20, 2021



ATTENDANCE SLIP

(TO BE SIGNED AND HANDED OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL)

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 14" Annual General Meeting of Financial Year 2020-21 of Snapdeal
Private Limited scheduled to be held at 11.00 A.M. on Thursday, the 12t day of August, 2021 at the registered office
of the Company at SproutBox Suryavillas, Suite #181- TR-4, First Floor, D-181, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1, New
Delhi 110020.

Name of the member Registered Folio No.

No. of Shares held

Name of Proxy/ Authorised Representative (in block letters)

(To be filled in, if the Proxy attends instead of the Members)

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature




Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U72300DL2007PTC168097

Name of the Company: Snapdeal Private Limited

Registered office: SproutBox Suryavillas, Suite #181- TR-4, First Floor, D-181, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase 1, New
Delhi 110020

Name of the Member(s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

I/ We being the member of ............ , holding.....shares, hereby appoint

1. Name: ...covevvenee
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: ........... ,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 14 Annual General Meeting
of members of the Company, to be held on Thursday, August 12, 2021 at 11.00 A.M. at the registered office of the
Company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

1. Adoption of Financial Statements, Auditors Report and Directors Report of the Company for Financial Year
2020-21.

2. To consider and approve appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

3. To consider and approve increase in authorized share capital of the Company.

Signed this ..... day of ...... 2021 Affix Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

We, Board of Directors of Snapdeal Private Limited (“the Company”}, present to you the 14" Annual
Report of the Company and the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2020-21 that has
ended on March 31, 2021, The Annual Return of the Company is made available on the corporate website
https://www.snapdeal.com

We are pleased to inform you the following with regard to the Company.
1. Financial Performance Highlights:

The Income of the Company during the FY 2020-21 as compared to FY 2019-20 based on
standalone and consolidated financial statements of the relevant financial year are as follows:

Standalone Financial Statements:

Particulars/ Rs. in Crores For the year ended March 31, | For the year ended March 31,
2021 2020

Total Income 467.4 8829

Net Income/ {Loss) (129.5) {270.9}

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Particulars/ Rs. in Crores

For the year ended March 31,
2021

For the year ended March 31,
2020

Total Income

510.3

916.6

Net Income/ (Loss)

(126.1)

(274.7)

Please refer to the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for further
details. The Company’s standalone and consolidated financial statements are prepared as per
Indian Accounting Standards {‘Ind AS’) for the FY 2020-21 as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘Act’).

The Report of the Statutory Auditors on the Financials of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2021 is seif-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further explanation
or comments from the Board.

2, Detail of Subsidiaries and Associates

The details of the Subsidiaries and Associates Companies during the FY 2020-21 are given below:

S. No. Name of the Company Nature of Qwnership
1 Unicommerce e-solutions Private Limited Subsidiary

Firs: Floor D-181, Okhia industrial Ares. Phase 1, Naw Delhi-110020 | B 40366520
r 59, Gurugram, Haryane< 122002 | (124 4739850

Registerad Office: Snapdeal Private Limited, SproutBox Sutyayitas, Suite #181 TR
Corporate Cfice: Snapdeal Private Uimited, 5th - Gth Floor, Cyberscape, Golf Coorss Extn. Ry
LN L72300DL 2007 PTC168097




Newfangled Internet Private Limited (“SellTM”}* Subsidiary

3. Tetra Media Private Limited Associate

Please refer to the Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the performance and
financial position of the Subsidiaries and Associate as at the end of the FY 2020-21. The salient
features of the financial statements of the said companies have been provided in the prescribed
Farm AOC-1, annexed as Annexure 1 to this report.

The Company is in compliance with FEMA Rules and Regulations in respect of its downstream
investment as on March 31, 2021. The Statutory Auditors have certified the compliance as
required under the applicable law.

3. Business Performance

The revenue for the year declined from 916 Crores last year to 510 Crores in the current year,
partly on account of the major disruptions caused by the Covid 19 pandemic leading to
lockdowns and partly because of the strategic move by the company in focusing on the quality of
the goods sold on our platform by weeding out sellers who had been consistently rated poorly by
our customers in terms of quality. While this resulted in short term dip in revenue, we were clear
that this step would be in the interest of the company from a long term point of view and
improve the brand equity of the company.

With the situation stabilizing, the company is now poised to increase the volume of units
transacted on its platform and serve a larger number of customers every month, We believe that
we can witness a sizeable shift of the value buying segment of consumers to e-commerce in the
coming years. This is where the company’s focus on value e-commerce by providing “Brand waali
Quality, Bazaar waali Deal”, will be opportune. To capitalize on this growing oppertunity, the
company has multiple initiatives underway around enhancing product quality and customer
experience, increasing efficiencies in logistics operations and building an innovation-oriented
culture — all of which together will lay a strong foundation for sustainable growth in the value e-
commerce segment.

In view of the significant improvement in quality of the products and rationalization of the
assortments, we were able to significantly reduce the marketing spend from 508 Crores last year
to 175 Crores this year. As a result, despite reduced revenue, our loss for the year reduced to less
than half of the previous year from 271 Crores to 130 Crores.

4. Change in nature of Business of the Company

There has been no change in the nature of business being carried on by the Company.
5. Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under review.

! Newfangled Internet Private Limited {“SellTM”) has become wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company w.e.f. August 08, 2019;




6.
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11.

12.

Public Deposits

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits, including from the public, and, as such, no
amount of principal or interest was outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date.

Changes in the Capital Structure

During the year under review, there is no material change in the capital structure of the
Company.

Employee Stock Option Scheme {ESOS}

During the financial year under review, the Company has not made any changes to the existing
ESOS.

The details of ESOS as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 12 (9) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 are mentioned in Annexure -2 and form part of this report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186

During the year under review, the Company has not granted any loans or made any investments
under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure 3 to this report.

Statutory Auditor and Audit Report

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed S.R. Batliboi & Associates, LLP as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company during the 13% Annual General Meeting to hold office until
14" Annual General Meeting. During the year under review, no changes were made to the
Statutory Auditor. The Auditor’s Report is unmodified i.e. it does not contain any qualification
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer,

Internal Audit

The Company has established a robust framework for internal financial controls. The Company
has in place adequate controls, procedures and policies, ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, safeguarding of its assets,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records
and timely preparation of reliable financial information. To establish a robust framework and to
ensure an adequate internal control system for the forthcoming years, and to comply with
provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed Grant
Tharnton India, LLP, Chartered Accountants as its Internal Auditor for a period of 5 (five) years
commencing from the financial year 2020-21.




During the year, such controls were assessed and no reportable material weaknesses in the
design or operation were observed. Accordingly, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2020-21.

13. Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as
under:

Conservation of Energy:

Steps taken for conservation Conservation of energy continues to receive
increased emphasis and steps are being taken to
reduce the consumption of energy at all levels. The
Company has taken steps to conserve energy in its
office use consequent to which energy consumgption
had been minimized. No additional Proposals/
Investments were made to conserve energy. Since
the Company has not carried on industrial activities
disclosure regarding impact of measures on cost of
production of goods total energy consumption etc. is
not applicable.

Steps taken for utilizing alternate
sources of energy

Capital investment on energy
conservation equipment’s

Technology Absorpiion:

Efforts made for technology | Snapdeal is an online marketplace where the buyers,
absorption sellers and customers are the key stakeholders. On
the buyer side, the technology stack is mostly open
source including the applications, the database and
the NoSQL. The company uses both its own and third
party Cloud services to help in being agile to launch
the setup in a few hours. The Company downloads
community versions and purchases a few commercial
versions of databases and NoSQL to come up with a
stable stack that will be heipful in both day-to-day
operations of online marketplace transactions and
scaling at the time of festive seasons for the online
promotions. The Company is always testing new
technologies with multiple Proof-Of-Concept (POC)
exercises. Also, the Company is always innovating on
the security technologies too. The Company’s page
load time, auto-scaling to handle 15-20 times more
traffic of the buyer platform for the front-end and
back-end are the best in industry due to all the
technology absorptions done. The Company has
innovated a lot an the Seller flow, where thousands
of sellers are on-boarded. The technology stack has
automated good percentage of courier collection and
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15.

enabled real time shipment tracking resulting in cost
optimization and better customer experience.

Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo:

During the period under review, the Fareign Exchange Earnings and Outgo of the Company are as
follows:

Earnings INR2.5Cr
Outge INR3.9Cr

Company's Philosophy and Practices on Corporate Governance and Compliance

Our corporate governance practices reflect our value system encompassing our culture, policies,
and relationships with our stakeholders. integrity and transparency are key to our corporate
governance practices to ensure that we earn and retain the trust of our stakeholders at all times.
Corporate governance is about maximizing shareholder value legally, ethically and sustainably.
The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures
fiscal accountability, ethical corporate conduct and fairness to all stakeholders, including
regulators, employees, customers, sellers, investors and society at large.

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have always been the focus of
the Company and hence the Company has built fair, transparent and ethical governance
practices.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees, including its key management
personnel. The Company has in place a robust Information Security Policy that ensures data
protection and proper utilization of IT resources. The statutory auditors of the company
undertake audits of financial statements of the Company every quarter and the same is reviewed
by the Financial Advisory Group (formed by the Board to review the quarterly and annual audited
financials, internal controls and risk & compliance management of the Company) and are
thereafter approved by the Board at their quarterly meetings. 1t has implemented a
comprehensive compliance management tool that is developed and managed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PWC”) and the Board reviews a compliance report on a quarterly
basis. Additionally the company has adopted a robust Internal Controls Framework as per best
industry practices and Grant Thornton conducts internal audits annually.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
(a) Directors
During the year under review, there were no changes in the Directors of the Company.

(b) Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, there is no change at the Key Managerial position of the
Company as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
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Meeting of the Board of Directors during the year

Pursuant to the provision of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules thereunder, every Company
requires to hold a minimum of 4 {Four) Board Meetings every year with a maximum gap of not
more than 120 days between 2 {two) Board Meetings. Additional Board Meetings are convened
depending upon the needs and business to be transacted. Notice and Agenda for the Board
Meetings are to be circulated in advance to enable the Directors to understand the business to
be transacted at the Meeting.

4 (Four) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2020-21. The
details of Board Meetings are given below:

Date of Board Meetings Board Strength No. of Directors Present
| June 29,2020 5 2

September 04, 2020 5 5

November 27, 2020 5 5

February 22, 2021 5 4

Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company held during the year

During the year under review, the Company has convened the 13% Annual General Meeting of
the Shareholders of the Company for financial year 2019-20 on September 30, 2020 in
compliance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

Compensation Committee

In accordance with provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, every listed Company and such other class of Companies as may be prescribed
under law shall constitute the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”. Since, Snapdeal
Private Limited {“The Company”) doesn't fall in the category of such other class or classes of
Companies as prescribed under law, the Company is not required by law to constitute such
Committee. However, for improving efficiency and transparency in the management, your
Company has voluntarily formulated a “Compensation Committee” of the Board which shall not
be deemed or otherwise construed as a Nomination and Remuneration Committee as required
to be maintained under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made
thereunder. The said “Compensation Committee” is comprised of the following members:-

1. Mr. Kunal Bahl; and
2. Mr. Saurabh Jalan

The “Compensation Committee” shall be supported in its functioning by the following Special
Invitees:

1. Chief Financial Officer of the Company; and
2. Head of Human Resource functions of the Company.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility is a core value of the Company since its inception. The Company
strives to positively impact the lives of the communities around its areas of operation, minimize
impact on the environment and address concerns of communities in 3 mutually beneficial
manner. The Company's overall vision is to actively contribute to the social and economic
development of the community and therefore, build a better, sustainable way of life. In this
regard, the Company has formulated its CSR policy pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rules and any other statutory modification thereof. The CSR Committee is
comprised of the following members:-

1. Mr. Kunal Bahl;
2. Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal; and
3. Mr. Saurabh Jalan

The absence of profits has not been an impediment in the CSR activities of the Company and the
Company has voluntarily undertaken CSR initiatives in the form of ‘Snapdeal Sunshine’. Snapdeal
Sunshine program facilitates Snapdeal users to contribute products for social causes via the
Snapdeal platform. Contributed products are directly delivered to partner NGOs which help them
in their ongoing programs to support social causes.

An annual report on the CSR activities in prescribed format has been attached as Annexure- 4 to
this Report.

Administrative Control Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company have constituted an “Administrative Control Committee”
compromising of Mr. Kunal Bahl and Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal as its members on August 28, 2018
to consider and approve following matters for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of the
Company:

1. Authorization matrix for Banking transactions;

2. Opening or closing of a Bank Account;

3. Authorization for handling legal matters;

4, Authorization for execution of contracts, MOUs, NDAs etc.;
5. Autherization for DEMAT accounts of the Company.
Corporate Compliance Committee

In order to make a robust compliance system and follow the best corporate governance practices
in the industry, the Company has constituted a committee namely “Corporate Compliance
Committee” with effect from November 30, 2018, The function of the Committee is to oversee
statutory compliances. The committee reports the status of compliances to the Board on a
quarterly basis.



22.

23.

24,

Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place

At Snapdeal, our goal has been to create an open and safe workplace where each and every
employee feels empowered to contribute to the best of their abilities, irrespective of gender,
sexual preferences or any other classification that has no bearing on the employee’s work
output. In order to lead towards our goal, the Company is maintaining a Policy on Prevention of
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) and take all
initiatives in relation to matters connected therewith or incidental thereto covering all aspects as
contained in Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal}
Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints Committee (hereinafter referred to as the ICC) has been
constituted for timely and impartial resolution to complaints of sexual harassment. It consists of
the following members comprising of senior employees of the Company:

The internal Complaints Committee comprises of following members:

i) Smriti Subramanian ~Presiding Office (Chairperson for the committee)
i)  Sanjana Kapoor -Member

i) Rasika Mathur -Member

iv} Santosh Rao -Member

v}  Praveen Kumar Srivastava -Member

vi)  Arti Chaudhry -Independent Member

COVID -19 - Impact and Preparedness

COVID 19 has presented unprecedented challenges and opportunities for the business. The
Company has instituted measures to seamlessly shift the workforce to ‘work-from-home’ model
while keeping the efficiencies high. The company has taken several measures to ensure the
safety of its work force, partners and consumers.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134{5) of the Companies Act 2013, and save as ctherwise
mentioned elsewhere in this Report, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the
applicable accounting standards, have been followed along with proper explanations
relating to material departures;

b} the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year i.e. March
31, 2021 and profit and loss of the Company for that period,;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d} the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a going concern
basis; and



e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

25. General Disclosures

1. The Board does not propose to transfer any amount to any reserves;

Except as mentioned as part of this Report, no materfal changes and commitments ocecurred
between the end of financial year 2020-21 and the date of this report which may affect the
financial position of the Company;

3. No significant and material order has been passed by the regulator/court/tribunal which
may impact the going concern and company’s operations in future;

4, Provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, wherein Central
Government specifies to maintain cost records by the Company is not applicable on the
Company;

5. In accordance with provision of section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder, the Company is having a robust, enterprise risk management process to
identify, assess, monitor and mitigate key financial, operational, business and compliance
risks. There is an established risk philosophy that guides risk-taking within the Company and
the Internal Controls and Risk Assurance Team supervise the risk management activities.

6. The Company is in compliance with standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

The Directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the members, investors, suppliers, sellers,
customers, bankers, government departments and other partners and stakeholders for their invaluable

support to the Company.

The Directors also wish to extend the heartiest gratitude to the employees of the Company for their hard
work, dedication and commitment, which have enabled the Company to grow.

By the Order of Board
For Snapdeal Private Limited

N

Kunai Bahl

Director

(DIN 01761033}

H No 1, Road No 41,
Punjabi Bagh west,
New Delhi - 110026

Date: July 14, 2021
Place: Srinagar

Rohit Kumar Bansal
Director

{DIN 01834522)
105, Tatvam Villas
Sector 48, Gurgaon

Date: July 14, 2021
Place: Gurugram



Annexure-1

Form AQC-1

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section {3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014)
Part A: Subsidiaries
{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

S. Particulars 1 2
No.
1. | Name of the subsidiary Unicommerce Newfangled Internet
eSolutions Pvt. Ltd. |Pvt. Ltd.
2. | The date since when subsidiary is acquired iMay 04, 2015 August 08, 2019
3. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if NA NA
different from the holding company’s reporting
period
4. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the INR INR

last date of the relevant Financial year in the
case of foreign subsidiaries

5 Share capital 18,87,800 1,60,360
6. | Reserves & surplus 31,99,12,653 {16,33,23,056)
7. | Total assets 45,76,98,003 72,08,495
8. | Total Liabilities (includes Equity) 45,76,98,003 72,08,495
9. | Investments 0 0
10. | Turnover 40,00,86,188 75,09,801
11. | Profit before taxation 5,61,76,974 (8,34,49,422)
12. | Provision for taxation 1,89,99,194 NA
13. | Profit after taxation 3,71,77,780 (8,34,49,422)
14. | Proposed Dividend Nil Nil
15. | Extent of shareholding (in percentage)
100% 100%
Note:
1. Names of the Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — NiL
2. Names of the Subsidiaries which have been acquired during the year-NIL.
3. Names of the Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year-NIL
4. Unicommerce Seller Selutions Pvt. Ltd. was struck off from the records of ROC w.e.f. October 21,

2019.



Part B: Associates

Statement pursuant to Section 129 {3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

S No. | Name of associates

Tetra Media Private Limited

1. | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date (refer
note 3 below)

March 31, 2021

2. | Date on which the Associate was

associated or acguired

February 13, 2015

3. | Number of shares of Associate held by the
company on the year end

Amount of Investment in Associates

Extent of Holding {in percentage)

Class B Equity Share- 1,54,358
Class C Equity Share- 3,20,532

Rs. 15,00,00,000

60.61% in Shareholding and 40% voting Rights as per
the terms and conditions mentioned in the Share
Purchase Agreement entered between Snapdeal
Private Limited (formerly known as Jasper Infotech
Private Limited} and Tetra Media Private Limited.

4. | Description of how there is significant

Since the shareholding of Snapdeal Private Limited is

influence more than 20%, hence it is considered that Snapdeal
Private Limited has significant influence over the
entity.
5. | Reason why the associate fis not | Not Applicable

consolidated

6. | Net worth attributable to shareholding as
per latest unaudited Balance Sheet

Rs. 16,65,23,428/-

7. i Profit or Loss for the year

Rs. 3,81,69,353/-

i) Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 1,54,24,236/-

if)Not Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 2,27,45,117/-

1. Names of associates which are yet to commence operations: NIL.

2. Names of associates which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NIL

3. The financial figures mentioned at point no.1 above table are taken from the unaudited financial
statements of Tetra Media Private Limited for financial year 2020-21.

By the Order of Board
For Snapdeal Private Limited
i L e
o %
Kunal Bahl Rohit Kumar Bansal Vikas Bhasin Roshni Tandon
Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN: 01761033  DIN: 01884522 PAN : AICPB3459P ACS 21150




Details of Employee Stock Option Scheme {ESOS)

(Pursuant to section 62{1)(b} read with rule 12({9} of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014}

Annexure—2

a} | Options granted 10,638
b} | Options vested 21,956
c) | Options exercised 0

d} | The total number of shares arising as a resuit of exercise of option 0

e} | Options lapsed 2,984

f) The exercise price INR. 1/- per share.

g) | Variation of terms of options No

h) | Money realized by exercise of options 0

i} Total number of options in force 1,35,506

j} Employee wise details of options granted to: -

Key Managerial Personnel :

{i) | RoshniTandon 0
Vikas Bhasin 0
Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of

(i} | option amounting to five percent or more of options granted during that
year:

Mayank Jain 8,000
Prashant Parashar 1,800
Identified employees who were granted option, during any one year,

(i equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued capital {excluding freh
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of |
grant

By the Order of Board

For Snapdeat Private Limited

Mw N

Kunal Bahl Rohit Kumar Bansal
Director Director
DIN: 01761G33 DIN: 01884522




Annexure -3

FORM NO. AQC2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-
length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h} of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NA

(a)
(b)
(c)
{d)
{e)
(f)
{g)
{h}

Name{s) of the related party and nature of refationship —

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions —

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions -

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any —
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Date(s) of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any -

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188-

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

(a)

(b}
{c)
{d}

(e}

{f)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship - Mr. Akhil Gupta, a shareholder and
also acts as Nominee Director of B2 professional Services, LLP {ancther shareholder) of the
Company.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Financial Advisory Agreement

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions- 12 Months

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any-
Inversion Management Services Pvt. Ltd. in which Mr. Akhil Gupta is holding a position of
Director, will provide financial advisory services to the Company and its subsidiaries in the
manner as defined under the Agreement.

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any- The Financial Advisory Agreement was approved by
the Board on May 13, 2021, though the transaction is on arms-length basis and is in ordinary
course of business.

Amount paid as advances, if any- NIL

By the Order of Board
For Snapdeal Private Limited

M gk fnd-

Kunal Bahl Rohit Kumar Bansal

Director

Director

DIN: 01761033 DIN: 01884522



Annexure—4

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities to be inciuded in the Board's report

for the financial year 2020-21.

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

g

The CSR Policy of the Company broadly takes into account the following measures:

a) Supporting education of underprivileged kids by facilitating distribution of staticnery kits.

b) A program to support Plasma donation to fight Covid19. The program was eventually paused
after Government revised guidelines.

The link to the CSR policy is hitps://www.snapdeal.com

The Compasition of the CSR Committee, Mr. Kunal Bahl, Mr. Rohit Kumar Bansal and Mr,
Saurabh Jalan.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

No profit has been earned by the Company during last three financial years.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure {two per cent. Of the amount as in item 3 above): NIL

As the Company does not have any profit during the last 3 financial years. Therefore, the
Company is not statutorily bound to make any CSR expenditure.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

{a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year; N.A.
{b) Amount unspent, if any; N.A
(¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

1 |2 3 4 3 6 z 8
S. CSR Sector Projects or | Amount Amount  Spent | Cumulative | Amount
No | project | in which | programs (1) | outlay on the project or | expenditure | Spent: Direct
or the Local area or | (budget) programs: Sub - | up to the | or  through
activity | project | other {2) | project or | heads (1) Direct | reporting implementing
is Specify the | program expenditures on | period ie. | agency*
covered | state and | wise projects or | 2019-20
district where programs. {2)
projects or Overheads
program  was




undertaken

1 NIL NiL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

*Give details of implementing agency

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending

the amount in its Board report: N.A.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring Policy

is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance with the CSR objective and
policy of the Company. Further, as the Company does not have any profit during the last three
financial years so the Company is not required to make any CSR expenditure.

By the Order of Board
For Snapdeal Private Limited

1B

ke

itunal Bahl Reohit Kumar Bansal

Director Director
DIN; 01761033 DIN: 01884522
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 29 Senapall Bapat Merg
Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel: +91 22 6619 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Snapdeal Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Snapdeal Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinton and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Audiior’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our epinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

S5.R. Batlibo! & Asscclates LLP, a Limited Liabillty Partnerstip with LLP Identiiy No. AAB-4295
Reqgd. Offica : 22, Camac Stragt, Block 'B', 3rd Ficor, Kolkata-700 0ié
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimaies that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Ewvaluvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




S.R BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP ‘

Chartered Accountants

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability o continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report} Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Ceniral
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(2) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid [standalone] financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure 2" to this report;
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(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2021;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the standalone financial statements;

it.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

fangdo falin

per Nil gshu Katriar
Partner

Membership Number: 058814
UDIN: 21058814AAAABQA4330
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 14,2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® of
our report of even date

Re: Snapdeal Private Limited (formerly known as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) (‘the Company”)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

{b} All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the year ended March 31, 2019 in
accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the
requirements under clause 3(i){c} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i1) The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements imder clause
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(1ii} (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership firm or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii}(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

@iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clanse 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and as explained by the management, the Ceniral Government has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
services of the Company.

(vii}(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund , employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax , service tax, duty of custom , duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable io it.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no undispuied amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no dues of income
tax, service tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute,

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders,
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(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence,
reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by the officers and
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause
3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the batance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors ar persons connected with him as referred to in Section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of Section
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Asseciates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Rlonser 4ol

/]

per Ni
Partner

gshu Katriar

Membership Number: 058814

UDIN:

21058814AAAABQ4330

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 14, 2021
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ANNEXURE II TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SNAPDEAL PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Snapdeal Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
conirols that were operating etfectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frands and ervors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to
anaudit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements
was gstablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal conirol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audif opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements.
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Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporiing and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Siandalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statermnents may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

QOpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal
contrel over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Ni\q.ngshu Katriar

Partner

Membership Number: (58814
UDIN: 21058814AAAABQ4330
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: July 14, 2021




Snapdeal Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 34, 2021
(Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data aud as stated otherwise)

Notes As at Asat
March 31, 2421 March 31, 2020
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 239 41.0
Right-of-use assets 44 19 11.0
Other Intangible assets 4 00 17.9
Investment in subsidiaries and associates 5 1250 1250
Financial assels
Other financial assets [3 12.5 248
Prepayments 7 7 1.7
Other non-current assets g 17.3 26,7
190.3 258.1
Current assets
Financial assets
Invesiments ] 151.0 393.4
Trade receivables 9 46 33
Cash and cash equivalent 10 39.3 04
Bank balances other than abave 11 196.5 814
Cither financial assets 6 1301 1479
Prepayments 7 74 55
Other cument sssets 8 45.0 450
605.0 676.9
Total asscts 795.3 935.0
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 12 0.2 0.2
Other equity
Money received against share warrants 341 353
Share premium 13 11,028.6 11,028.6
Retained earniogs (11,085.2) (10,955.7)
Other reserves 13 3527 5440
Tota) equity 532.4 6724
Non-Current liabilities
Financial Liahilities
Lease lisbilities 44 5.4 85
Provisions 14 0.0 0.1
Nzt employee defined benefit obligations 15 7.4 7.5
12.8 16.1
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 44 3.0 26
Trade and other payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 16 22 2.1
Total cutstanding dues of creditors ather than micro and small enterprtses 16 203.9 2009
Deferred revenue 17 18.6 154
Provisions 14 5.7 a1
Net empioyee defined benefit obligations 15 7.3 74
Other current liabilities 13 9.4 9.0
2501 246.5
‘Fotal liabilities 262.9 262.6
Total equity and liabillties 795.3 935.0
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone finaneial statements,
As per owr report of even date.
For 8. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of beard of directors of
Chartered Accountants Snapdeal Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

ﬁ' fakia . jw Tl ?lw v-;ﬂ

per NI shu Katriar Jattman, Kunal Bah! Rokit Kumar Bansal
Partner (.*"\. 4 Director Director
Membership Number: 058814 { Place of Signature: Srinagar Place of Signature: Guragram
{= ;
¢ 4 v i \L’:
R A
Sk P
Flace of Signature: Mumbat Roshni Tandon Vikas Bhasin
Date: July 14, 202t Company Secretery Chief Financial Officer

Place of Signature: New Delhi Place of Signature: Gurugram




Suapdeal Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Frofit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(ALl amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Notes

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations 19 4310 813.9
Other income 20 83 1.7
Finance income 21 28.1 57.3
‘Totaf income 467.4 882.9
Expenses
Marketplace expense 22 3872 903.8
Employee benefits expense 23 127.0 1439
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 499 302
Finance costs 25 i4 La
Other cxpenses 26 3.0 83.8
Total expense 596.5 1,168.3
Loss hefore exceptional items and tax (129.1) (285.4)
Exceptional items 27 - (15.2)
Loss before tax {129.1) (270.2)
Income tax expense - -
Loss for the year (129.1) (270.1)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subseqnent years:
Re-measurement loss on defingd benefit liability (0.4) 0.9
Income tax effect - -
Net ofher comprchensive income not to be reclassified to profit & loss in (0.4) {0.7)
subsequent years
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax {G.4) .7}
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (129.5) (270.9)
Loss per equity share [nominal value of share Re.1(March 31, 2020: Re 1) ]
Basic and Diluted computed on the basis of loss for the year attributable to 14 (523.7) (1,09.1}

equity holders of the Company [ In Rs.]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Flaupde 4ol
per Nikingshu Katriar

Partner
Membership Number: 058814

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 14, 2021

For and on bebalf of board of directors of

Snapdeal Private Limited

Ad

Kunnl Baldl
Direcior
Place of Sipnature: Srinagar

;’_J’

Roshni Tandon
Company Secretary
Ptace of Signamre: New Dethi

- I‘G{-V- -’\-7‘(:/"*' "7[1

Rohit Kumar Bansal
Dirgctor
Flace of Signature; Gurugram

N

Vikas Bhasin
Chiel Financial Officer
Place of Signatmre: Gumgram




Snapdesl Private Limited
Standafone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended Marxch 31, 2021
{All amounts in INR. Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

a. Equity Share Capital:

No. Rs.
As at April 01, 2019 24,64,823 0.2
Issue of share capitsl - =
As at March 31, 2020 24.64.823 0.2
{s8ue of share capital - -
As at March 31, 2021 24,64,823 0.2
b. Other Equity:

Money received Reserves and Surplos Other reserves Total Other equity
gainst share

warrants Share premium| Retained earnings

As at April 01, 2019 40.3 11,028.6 {16.684.8) 281.8 6635.9

Loss for the year - - {270.2) - (270.2)
Other comprehensive loss - - 0.7) - (0.7)
Totzl Comprehensive Income - - 270.9) - (2710.9)
Share based compensation - - - 8.2 8.2

Money received agninst share warrants 15.0 - - - 15.0

Reclassification to ¢quity reserve - - - 254.0 254.0

As at March 31, 2020 55.3 11,028.6 {10.955.7) 544.0 672.2

Loss for the year - - {129.1} - {129.1}
Other comprehensive koss - - (0.4) - (0.4)
Total Comprehensive Income - - {129.5) - {129.5)
Share based compensation - - - 8.4 34

Rectassification to equity reserve (refer note 13) - - - 0.3 0.3

Morey refundable agninst share warrants (19.2) - - - {19.2)
reclassified to other paysbles (refer note 41 and 42)

As at March 31, 2021 36.1 11,028.6 (11,085.2) 552.7 532.2

The accompanying totes are an integral part of the stndalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For 8. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of hoard of directors of

Chartered Acconntants Suapdeal Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E3{10004

& Yakizs d f;,c!é’ Tl D '»;ﬁ

per Nilaqesha Kafriar Hunal Buh) Rohit Kumar Bansal
Partner Director Pirector
Membership Number: 058814 Place of Signature: Srinagar Place of Signature: Gurugram

W \k,

~
Placg of Signature: Mumbai Roshui Tandon Vikas Bhasin
Date: July 14, 2021 Company Secretary Chief Financial Cfficer

Place of Signature; New Delbi  Place of Signature: Gurugram




Suapdeal Private Limited
Standslone Caslh Fiow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amopunts in INR Crore, except per shave data and as stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Loss before tax for the period (129.1) (270.2}
Adjustment to recencile lpsa before tax for the period to net cash flows:

Depreciation and impafrment of praperty, plant and equipment 18.1 14.7
Amgrtisation and impairment of intangible assels 28.7 124
Depreciation on ROU Assets 3.1 31
Provision for doubtlul debis and advances {13y 38.7
Bad debts / advances written off 0.1 0.7
Reversal of Impairment for Investments in other entitics 5 209}
Share-based payment cxpense 83 18
Impairment allowance no longer required (net) 6.0 (0.2}
Provisicn for diminution in value of Investments - 56
Interest Charges 10 1.4
Liabilities / provisions no lonpger required written back 5.9 (5.4
Net gain on sale of cument investments - 2.1y
Interest Income on bank deposits (27.0) (511
Interest income on koan given to related parties - 0.5
Unwinding of discount on financial assets af amortised cost 0,1 (1.0
Working capital adjustments:

(Deerense} in trade and othes payables (§0.2) (388.6)
(Decrease) in provisions and net emplovee defined benefit labilities 3N 5.1y
Increase/{decrease) in other liabilities 3B (17.2)
(Increase)/decrense in trade and other receivables (1.5) 58
Decrease in other secievables and prepayiments 5.2 576
Cash used in operations (110.9) (614.9}
Income Taxes refind (net of taxes paid) 846 g3
Net Cash used in operating activities (A) (102.3) (606.6)
Cash flow from investing activities

Creation of Right-ofeuse - {13.3)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (11.9) (19.8)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and egnipment - Q.1
Sale of current inveshments {net) 2324 1092
Proceeds of on account of Sale af Investments in other entities - 302
Purchase of investment in subsidiaries - &7
(Purchase}/Redemption/maturity of bank depesits (having original mawrity of more than three months) {zet) {114.5) 179.7
Tntevest received on bank deposits 394 6.6
Net Cash from Investing activities (B) 1454 347.2
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Repaymeni of berrowings - {13.6)
Peyment of pringipel portion of [ease labikities (3.5 (3.3
Interest paid {Ly (1.4}
Reclassification to Equity Reserve (ot 13) 63 254.0
Money received against share warrants - 15.0
Cash flow from/(used in} firancing activities (C) 4.2) 256.7
Net incrense/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 389 (8.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.4 %1
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of éhe year 393 04
Components of cash and eash equivalents: {refer note 10}

Cash on hand 0.0 040
Balances with banks:

— on current accoutit 393 04
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 0.0 0.0
Tedal cash and cash cquivalents 3923 04

The accompanying notes arc an integral past of the siandalone fivancial statenseats.

Ag per one report of even date,

For 8. R, Batliboi & Associotes LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Nilgngshu Katriar

Partner
Membership Number: 053814

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 14,2021

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Snapdeal Private Limited

[5; Tt Do ,.;f

Kugal Bahf Rohit Komar Bansal
Diirector Birector

Place of Signature: Sriragar Place of Signature: Gurugram
Roshnl Tandon Vikas Bhasin

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place of Signature: New Delhi Place of Signature: Gurugram



Snapdeal Private Limited
Notcs to standalene financial statements
(Al amounis in TNR Crore, except per share flata and as stated otherwise)
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Cerporate information

Snapdeal Private Limnited (hercm after referred to 8k "the Company”) was incorporated on September 12, 2007 as a Private Linited Company under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company 15 engagad in the business of’
establishing, developing, desi and lizing direct marketng solutions through web and noh-wehb based platforms. The registered office of 1he Company is silualed ai D-181, Suhic 181-TR4, Gkhla
Tndustrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi - 110020,

Significant Accounting Policics

Basis of preparation

The standalone fnancial statements of the Corapany have been prepared m accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Tod AS) notified under Section 133 of Compamies Act, 2013 {the Act) read with Lhe Companies
¢Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from eive to time) issued by Ministry of Cosporate affairs and prescntation requirements of Division 11 of Schedute 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule M.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared pn a historical cost basis, except for the foliowing assets and tinbilities which have been measured at finir value or revalued amount:

- Derivative Financial Instruments

- Certain ial assets and liabiliti d at fair value (refer eccounting policy regarding firancial instruments)

Ministry of Cotporate Affiics ("MTA™) through a notification dated March 24, 2021, amended Divisiott 1l of Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013. These amendments arc applicable far the reporting perfod begiming
onor after April 1, 2021. The amendment encompasses significant additional disclosure requirements and also includes ceriain changes to the existing disclosures. The amendmenis are extenasive and the Compaoy will
evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by faw.

The standalong financial gtatements arg presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest crores (INR 03,00,000}, except when otherwise indicated.

yof g policics

&, Current versus non-gurrent classification

Tl Company presenls assets aad labilities in the balance sheet based on currenl/ non-curent classificaticn. An assef i3 treated as current when jt is:
- Expected to be eeelised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

~ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the eeporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve inonths after the reporting period

All other pssets are classified as non-current

A lisbility is current when:

- Itis expeeted to be sertled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpase of rading

= It is due te be seitled within fwelve maonths after the reperting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the hability for at least fwelve months afier the reporting period

The terms of the [iabiliry that could, &t the option of the

, result m its settl by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Corapany classifics all other as t

The opetating cycle 18 the time between he acquisivion of assets fot processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Forelgn currencies
‘The Company's standalons financial s:atemenis are prosented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and halances
Transactions in foreign curiencies are mitially recorded by the Company at the spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for teeognition. However, for practical seasons, the Company uses an average rate I the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assels and liabglities d i d in [oreign ies are Iranslated at the functional currency spot rites of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arismg on settlement or translalion of monetary erns are recogmsed in profit or loss with the exception of the lollowing:

- Exchange differences arising on monetary itema thet forms part of a reporting entiry's net investment in a foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial siatements of the reporting entity or the
individual financial stalements of the Doreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the forcign operation and the reporiing entity (e ., congolidated finangial staements when the Toreign operation
18 2 sebsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initiaBy in OCT. These exchange differences are reclassified from equuty to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

- Exchange differences ansing on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company’s nel mvestment of a foreign eperation. These gre recoghised in OCT uniil the net investient is dispased of, at
which time, the cumulative ameunt is reclossified to profit or less.
- Tax charges ard credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary iterns are also recorded m OCL

Non-moneizry ilemns that are measured in lerms of istorical cost in a foreign cusrency are franslated using the exchange mies at the dates of the imbial transactions. Non-monelary ilems measured al fair value in o foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fajr value is determined. The gein or loss arising on iranslation af non-monetary ilems measured at fhir valie is treated in line with the recognition of the
galn or loss on the change in fair value of the itern (i.e., transtation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCT or profit or loss are alse recognised in OCT or profit or loss, respectively)

In derermining the spot exchange rate to nsc on inittal recognition of the relazed asset, expease or income {or pact of it) on the derecognition of a nen-manetary asset or non=monetary lisbility relating to advence
deration, the date of the 18 the date on which the Company initially recognises the ron-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration, If therg are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Company determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

¢. Fair value measuvement

The Company messures financial instruments, such as, denvaiives at fnr value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price thar would b recerved to sell an asset or paid to transter a Hability in an ordetly travsaction between market participants &t the measurement date. The fair value measurcment 5 based on ihe
presumption that the transaction o sell the assct or transfer the liabikty takes place cither:

- In the princypal market for the asset or Hability, or

- In the absencc of & principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or [isblity

The principel or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability 13 measured using the assumptions that market pariicipants wauld use when pricing the asset or Habilrty, ossumsng that marlket participants act m their economic besl interesl.

A [air value measurcment of & non-finaactal asset takes inle account a market participant’s ability 10 generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market particspant that
wuould use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Cownpany uses valnation techniques that are appropsiate in the circumstances and for which sufficient daia are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the vse of
npobservable inputs.

All assets and lishilities for winch faxr value is mensured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is significant & the
fair valee measurement as a whole:

- Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation kechniques for swhich the Towest level input fhat is significant 1o the fair value measuroment is directly or indirectly observable:

- Lewvel 3 — Valuation techniques for which thie Towest level inpus that s signifieant 1o the falr vatue measuerement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair valuc measurerment as a whole) at the end of cach reporing wear.




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements
(All atnounts in INR Crere, extept pee share data and as stated oflierwise)

The Groups CFO determines the policics and procedurce for both recurring Tair value measurcnient, siach as derivative instruments and nquoted finaneial asscts measured at fair vahue, and for non-recurmng messurement,
such az assets beld for sale in discontinued operations.

Exiernal valuens adc invodved for valuation of significant assets, such as propertics and upguoted financial asscts, und significant tiabilities, suck as i id of externg! valuers is decided upon
annually by the CFO. Selection criteria include market nowledge, reputation, independence and whether prafessi dards ure maintained. The CFQ decides, after dlm,l.lsiltlﬂ.s with the Group's external vatuers, wiich

valuation techniques and inprats te use for gach cass,

At each reporting dptz, the CFO analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilitics which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed s per the Group™s accounting policies. Fer this analysis, the CFO verifies the
major inputs applied in the Jatest valuation by agreeing the inf {on in the valuati putation to contracts and other relavant documents,

The CFO also cornpares the changs in the fair valus of sach asset nnd liability with relevant external sources 1o determing whethes the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair valug disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and linbilities an the basis of the namre, characteristics aad risks of the asset or Hability and the level of the fair value hierarchy ag

explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair valte. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
P Disclosures fior valuation methads, significani estimates and assumnptions (aote 36, 31, 33)
»  Quanttalive disch ol fair value o hi By (note 30y

P [mesiment in anquoled equily (nole 5)
P Finenoist instrumenss (including thnse carried al amertised cost) (notes 6, 16, 44, 30, 3t )

d. Revenue reregnition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable thal the economic bencfits will flow Lo the Company and the revenue can be religbly measured regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration reccived oy ivable, teking mto account contectually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of government. The specific recognition crieria
described below are followed belore revenue is recognized:

Revenue from marketing fees

Revenues fiom operating an interet portal providing all sorts of mformation about various deals for products and services are recognised upon rendering of services and measured o defivery of products. The Conpany
coflects service taxes on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenuc. Revenucs fom products shipped are delerred 1ill it is
delivered to the ultimale customers and is disclosed as defesred sevenue. from advertisements are recognised as and when displayed n the internet porial.

Odther operating revenue

Revenues from ancillary activities e g. providing services for collection, fulfilment centrs, pach facilitation, courter facilitation, RTO/RPR fees, closing fees and freight charges recovered from the customers 2lp, are
recognised vpon rendering of services and measured on defivery of products. Service leve] penalties for delay, fulty deliveries, stock oul ¢ie, recovercd from the sellers are recognised unce Tight to recover is cstablished azd
it is Teasonzble to expect vwlimate collection. Revenue from reverse shipmenis e.g. courier fees, payment coflection fees etc. are recognised upon delivery of products to sellers and it is reasonable te expect ultmate
collectran.

Interest

For all debt instuments meesured either at amortised cost or at fair value through othet comprehensive income, intetest incorne is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discouns the
estimated firtare cash payments or receipts over the expected Lfo of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross camying amount of the financis! asset or to the amontised cost of & finmcial
lLiability. When calculating the ciTective interest vate, the Cotapany estimzates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the finencis! i {for exampl exlension, call and similsr
options) but decs not consider the expected credit losses. Tnterest income is included under the head finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Unbilled revenue

Recervables are generally carried at the original mveiced amount, less an for doubifil receivables where there 1s objective eviderce that balances will not be recovered 1 fufl Unbilted receivables is recognisad to
the extent for the services not billed at the year end.

<. Taxes

Current income tax

Turrent income tax assets and liabilities are meastred 1 (be amotat expected to be recovered from ot paid fo the taketion autherities in accerdance with the kzcome-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and 1ax laws prevailiog in

the respective tax jurisdiclions where the Company operates. The 1ax rates and 1ax laws used to compute the amount are those that aze euacted ot substantively enacted, at the reponing date

Current income tax relating ta itema recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity}. Current tax items are recognised in correlation ta the underlying
Lransastion either in OCI or directly in equiry. Management pericdically evatuates pasitions taken in the tax returns with respect 1o situations in which applicable lax fations are subject to interpretation and establishes
peovisions where appropriate. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each unceriain 1ax treatment by using eitker most likely mettiod or expected vatue method, depending on which method predicts better
resolution of the freaiment,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the linbility method on temporary differcnces betwean the tax bases of nssets and liabilities and their caryieg amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporiing date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable lemporary differences, except:

~ When the deferred tax Lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset oz lisbility in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with invesiments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint vepiures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 15
prabable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Dreferred tax assels are recoguised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused 1ax fosses. Deferted 1ax assels are recognised 10 the extent that it is probable that taable
profit will be avnlable agrinst which the deductible remporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tex losses can be utilised, except:

+ When the deferred tax asset relating o the deducible wemporary difference arises From the mrtial recogmtion of an asset or liability in 2 wansaction that is not a business combination aad, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the necountmg profit ner taxable profit or Joss

= In respect of deductible temporary differences iated with i in subsidiartes, intes and interests it joint venfures, deferred tax assets are recognised only (o the extent that it 15 probahle that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foresceable foture and taxable profit witt be available aguinst which the temporary differences can be utiised

The carcying amount of deferred tox assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient txable profit will be available w allow a1l ot part of the defirred tax asset to
be uiilised. Unrecognised deferred 1ax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recopmised o the extent that it has become probuble thas future taxable profils will allow the delored tax asset & be recovercd,

Deferred tax asitts and Linbilities are measored a1 the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the lability is settled, based on tax rates (and 1ax laws) that have been enacted or substnmively
enacted al the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profi or loss is recognised outside profit or loas {2ither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in comelation to the underlying
transaction either in OCT or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitzes are offset it'a legally enforceable right cxists to set off current tax assels agminst curnent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and ihe same
taxation quthonty,

Tax benefits acquired 28 part of a business comibination, but not satsfying the criteria for scparate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information zbout facts and circumatances change. Acquired
deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurcment period r=duce goodwiil related to that acquisition if they result from new informalion obtained aboul Eacls and circamsiances existing at the acquisition date. If the
curcymg amount of goodwill is zero, sny remaining defemred tax benefits are recogmsed in OCL capital reserve depending on the prmeiple expluned for bargain purchase gains. All ether acquired tex benefits renlised are
recognised fm profit or foss.
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1. Property, plant sad cquipment

Property, plant and cquipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of aceumulated depreciation and sccurmilated tmpatrment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of ¢he property, plant
and equipment and borrowing costs if the recognition criteria are met. When significant paris of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Compeny depreciates them separately based ontheir
specific useful lives. Likcwise, when a major inspection is porformed, its cost is recognised in the carying amount of the property, plant and equipment 25 a replacement if the recognition eriteria arc eatisfied, All other repair
and mmntenanee coste arg recognised m profit or foss 88 meurred

Depreciation is caleulated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful hves of the assets as follows

Categary of assets Estimated uselul life
Cemputers and data processing units 3 -6 yeams

Vehicles 8 years

Electnc equipment 14 years

Furniture and fittings 14 years

Office equipment 5 years

Depreciation on assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata besis from the date of purchase of fixed assets.
Leaschold Tmprovemens are amostised on & straight line basis over the [ower of lcase term or useful Hfe of the respective asscts,

An item of property, plant axd equipment and any sipnificant part injtially recognised Is derecogrused upon disposal or when no future econonic benefits are expecled from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss ansisg on
derecognition of the asset (cafculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cerrying amount of the asset} is included in the incore statement when the agset i3 derecognised.

The residnal values, useful lives and mmetheds of depreciation of properfy, plant and equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

The Company has a pelicy to perform the physical veriification of the fixed assets ance in every three year.

g. Intangible assels

Iz ible assets acquired ly are measured oo initial ecegnition at cost. The cost of mntangible assels acquired in 4 business combitation is their fatr velue at the date of acquisition. Following initial recogonion,
intangible assets are carmied at cost less any accumulated amortisaton and accumulated mpairment losses, Internally 1 1r bl luding capitabsed develop costs, arc not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The usefu! lives of inlangible assels are assessed as either finite or indefinite

Tntangible asscls with finite lives are amortised over the usefut economic lifc and asscssed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assel may be impaited, The amortisation pericd and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with o fmite useful Yfe are reviewed at least at the end of each reporhing penod. Changes in the expected useful life or the i

peoted pattern of ption of future

benelits embodied in ihe asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimales. The amertisation cxpense on mtangxble agscis wiih finite l.wcs is
recognised in the stptement of pruﬁt and iogs unless such expendimre forms pert of carrying value of another asset, Technology cost includes all the 1Pt expenses tated with develop

implerr deployment, mai of technology. Further capitaisation of technology cost is done based on 2 years assessment performed and the Company shall perform a recoverability test ot the ycar end 0
detcrmme if an lmpau'mnnl luss bas m:cu.rru:l by evaluating whether she future value of the assef’s undiscounted cash flows is Tess than the book value of the asset. If the cash flows are less than book value, the ks i3

d & com di

Intangibic asscts with indelinite uselirl lives sre not amortised, but are 1ested (or impairment annvally, cither individually er at the cash-gencrating unit fevel. The of indefinite i is reviewed annually (o d
whether the indefinie life contmucs to be supportable. [fnot, the changg in wseful Bie frorn indefinite 1o finite @ made on a prospective basis,

An intangible asset is derecogrised upon disposal (Le., at the date the recipient obiains control) or when ne future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss acising upon derecogaition of the
asset (calculated as the diflerence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying emount of the asset) is included in the staternent of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Development costs

Development expenditures on an individval preject are recognised as an imtaegible asset whea 1the Company can demaonstrate:
- The techzical feasibility of cormpleting the ntangible nsset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

- lts intention to complete and ils ability and intention to use or sell the asset

- How the asset will generate future ccoriomic benefits

- The availability of resources to complete the asset

- The ability to measare reliably the cxpenditure during development

Following mitial recognition of the development expenditure 25 an assel, (he asset is carried a1 cost less any accumulaled ameorlisation and accumulzted impairment Josses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development
is complete, and the asset i evailable for use. [t is amortised over the peried of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense i8 recogmised in the statement of profit and toss unless such expenditure forms part of carryisg
value of another asset. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually,

h. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs direetly abtributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an psset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time te get ready for its mtended use or sale ure capilalised o part of the cost of the
asset. All othes botrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and ather costs that 2n entity incurs in connection with the borrowmng of funds. Borrowing cosl also
includes cxchange differences to the exlent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

i» Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a Jease. That is, if’ the contract conveys the right to centrel the use of an identified assel for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company a5 2 lesses
The Company applics a single gnition and pprozach for all leascs, excopt for short-ierm leases and leases of lew-value gssets, The Cempany recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and nght-of-
use assets representmg the right o use the underlymg assets.

i) Right-cf-use assels

The Company recognises right-efuse assets at the commencement date of the lease (ie., the date the underlying assel is available for vse). Right-ol-use assets are measured at cost, [e3s any accumulated depreciation ard
impaitment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease labilitics recognized, mitiul direet cosis meutred, and lease payments made al or befene
the commencement date [ess any lease incentves recesved. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basts over the shorter of the iease term and the sshmated useful lives of the nssets

If ownership of the leased asset trimsfeva to the Company at the end of the Tease term or the eost refleets the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculared using the estimated useful life of the asser.
The right-of-use asscls arc also swbjec! o impairment. Refor 1o the accounting policics in seetion () Impairment of non-financial agsels.

1i) Lease Liabiliics

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present velue of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments inelude fixed paymenis (including in
subgtance fixed payments) less any fease incenlives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under wesidual value guarmiees. The lease pavments also include
e exercise price of 2 purchase option ¢ bly certain to be ised by the Company end payments of penaltics for rerminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option (o termmate.
Variable lease payruents that do not depend on an index or 2 rate are recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condifion that triggers the payment occurs.
n cafoulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing e at the lease commeneetnem date because the interest rate impleit in the Iease 13 pot reedily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amoum of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying smount of fease Habilitfes is remessured if there s a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change 1 the lease payments {¢.5, changes to fulute payments resulling from a change in an index of rate used o determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asser.

i) Shori-lesm leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applics the shovt-term Jease recognition excrmption to ils short-term lcases of machinery and cquipmtent {3.¢., those lcases that have a lease term af 12 monthas or less from the commencement date and do mot
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assetls recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered 1o be low value. Lease payments on short-leym leases and leases of low-value
assels are recogmsed as expense on 2 straight=line basis over the lease term.

.
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j» Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication thet an asset may be impaired. If any indication exisis, or when annyal impairment testing {or en assel ig cequired, the Company estimates the
ussel’s recoversble amount. An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assct’s or cash-gencrating unit's (CGU) fair value Iess costs of disposal and its value in use, R blc amount is d d for an i
asset, ynless theasset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independem of those from other assets or Companys of assels.

When the carrying ameunt of an agset or CGU cxoeeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down te its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted o their present value using a pre-tax discount raie thet reflects current market assessmenis of the time valuc of money end the risks specific to the
assel. In determining fair value less costs of dispasal, recent market transactions are taken inio account. I€ B such transactions can be identified, an appropriale valuation model is used. These calculations are cosrobonted
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly raded P or oiher avajlable fair value indi

The Company bases ils impaiiment calculsiion on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Compuny's C'GUs to which the individuat assets are allocated. These budgeis and
forecast calculanons generally cover a period of five years, For fonger periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows afier the Ath year, To estimste cash flew projections beyend
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapoletes cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining grawth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate con be justifiel. In
any case, this growth mte does not cxceed the long-lerm average growth rale for the producis, industries, or country or countries in which the enlity operates, or for the market in which the assct 1s used,

Impaimment losies of contiming aperations, including impairment on inventorics, are recognised in the statement of profit aad fass, sxcept for propertics previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to ©CI, For
such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previons revalnation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is mede at each reparting date to determine whether there is an indication thar previously recog \pai losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indiceton
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or C(F’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 1he assumptions used 1o detormine the nsset’s recovenble
amount smee the last impamment foss was recogmsed. The reversal 5 limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its Tecoverable amount, nor exceed the camying amount that would have been
determtined, net of degreciation, had no impairment foss been recognised for the nsset in prior years, Such reversal is recognised in the slatement of profit or loss unless the assel is carried at a revalued emount, in which case,
the reversal is treated es a revaluation inerease.

Goodwill is wsted for impaitment anmually near year end and whei circumstances indicate that the cartying value may be impaired.

Impaittnent is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable ameunt of esch CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amonnt of the CGU is less than its carrving amount, an
impairmenl loss is recognised. Impairment fosses relating to goodwiil cannot be reversed in future periods

k. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be required lo seitle the
obligation and a refisble cstimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company exXpects some or all of & provision to be reimbursed, for example, under m insurance conttact, the reimbursenet it
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the retmbursement is virtually certam. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the tme value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-ax rate ther reflects, when appropriate, the rigks specifie 10 the Eability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
Provision due to the passage of lime is recognised s & financs cost.

Provision for sales return
Provision tawards Sales Refurt 18 made on the basss of best cstimate of expectod product returns subsequent to the period end based on historical expenence.

Provision for bonus
Provision for bonus 15 recognised o time proportion basis over the period of service.

Provisions for oneraus contracts

Provisions for onereus contracts asc recognized when the expected beaefits to be derived by the Company Gom a contract are lower than the unaveidable costs of meeting the future obligations undér the contrai, The
provision i3 measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of tenminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recogaizes
any impairment loss on the assets associgted with fiat contract.

I Retirement and other employee benelits

Retirement benefit in the form of pravident fund is a defined contrbution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the ibution payeble to the provident fund. The Company recognizes conrtnbution payabie o
the pravident futid scheme as an ¢xpense, when an ¢mplayee renders the related service, T the contribution payeble to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already peid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liabikity after deducting the contribution alrcady paid. If the comribution already paid exceeds the conltibulion due [or services received before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recogrized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead s, for example, a redoetion in future payment or 4 cash refund

In accordanee with Indian Jaw, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (the “Gratuity Plan™) covering all employees. The Gratulty Plan provides s lump sum payment to vested employess on
retirement or ox termination of employment for an amount based on the respeetive emplayee’s salary and the years of employment with the Company.

The cost of providging benefits ynder the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method based on an aciuarial valuation perforored by an independent acluary.

Hemeasorements, conprising ef sciuarial gains and losses, excludmg ameunis included in net iterest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the balance shegt with a corresponding debit or sredit
(o retained carnmgs treugh OCH in the period in which they eccur. Remeasurerments are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recoghised in profit or Joss on the catlicr of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtadment, and

-~ The date that the Company recognises related restructurmg costs

Net interest i3 calenlsted by applying the discount rate 1o the net defired benefil lighility or asset. The Company recngnises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation 2 an expense in the consolidated
statement of profit and tass:

= Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and lesses on curtaiiments and non routie settlements; and

- Net interest expensc or inceme

m. Share-based payments
Employees {incinding senior exceutives) of the Company receive remuncration in the form of share-based payments, whesohy employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-setiled transactions).

Equity Settles transactions

The cost of equuy-setiled transactions is determined by the fair value af the date when the grant is made using an apprepriate valuetion madel,

That cost is recognised, together with a cor ding ingrease in share-based payment (SBP} reserves in equiiy, over the period in which the performence ard/or service conditions are fulfilled in cmployes benefits expense.
The cwnulative expense recogpised for equily-selifed wransactions at each reporting date uniil the vesting daie rellects the extent 1o which the vesting period bay expired and the Conpay’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ulfimately vest, The staternent of prof# and loss expense ar credit for a perfod represents the movement in cumulative cxpensc recognised as al the beginning and end of that period and 1
recognised in emplayes benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance cenditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelhaod of the conditions being met is asscssed as part of the Company's best
estimate of the number af equity instruments that will ultfrately vest. Market performance conditions are reliected within the grant date fair valsc. Any other conditions auached 1o an award, but without an associated
gervice requirement, are considered i bo non-vesting conditions. Nog-vesting conditions are roflected in the fuir value of zn award and lead to ap immediate expensing of an award unless there ere also service and/or
performance conditions,

No expense is recopnised for awards that do not ultmzately vest becanse non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting conditéan, the transaction; are
treated as vested ircespective of whether the market or nos-vesting condition is satisiied, provided that all other performancs snd/'or service conditions sre salisfied.

When the terms of an: equity-settled award are modified, the mininium expense recognised is the expense hind the terms had not been modified, if the originat terms of the award ere met. An additional sxpense is recc
for any modification that incrgases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or s etherwise beneficial te the empleyee 29 measured at the date of modification, Where an award is cancelled by the e
by the counterparty, my remamimg element of the fair value of the award is expensed immsdintely through profit or loss.

The difutive eflect of oulstanding options is reflecied as addiiional share dilution in the computation of diluted camings per share.
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0. Finaclal instruments

A financial insinument is any contract that gives e tp a financial asset of one entity and 2 financial li2bZity or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assels

Initial recognifior and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at inital gnition, as subsequently d at amortised cost, fair value through ether comprehensive income {OCT), and fair valee Lhrough profit or loss. The classification of financial
assels at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's { cash flow ch istics and the Companies business model for managing them. With the exception of trade teceivables that do not comtain & signifieant

[finpnicing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a fnancial asset not at fair value through profit ot loss,
transaction cosls. Trade receivables that do not contein a sigmficant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical cxpedient are m 1 at the ion price deteymined under Ind AS 115,
Refer to the aceounting pelicies in sgction (d) Revenue recognition,

In order for a fieancial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or Gir value through OCI, 1t needs tu give rise to cash flews that are “splely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY' on the principsl amount
ausstanding, This asscsrment is reforred ta as the SPPI test and is performed at an mstrument level

The Companies busi model for fng financial assels refers to how it manages its financial agsets in order 1o g cash flows, The business model determunes whether cash Qows wall resull from collecting
contrectua] cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Firancial asscts classified and measured at amertised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets iz order ta collect cemmactual
cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value Siwrough OCT are held within a business model with the objective of both halding te collect coniractual cash fiews and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a timme frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way (rades) are recogtused on the trade date, L., the date that the
Compeny conmnits to purchase or sell the nsset.

Subsequent measurement

For purp of subseq) finameial assets are elaszified in four cat¢gories:

- Dcbi instruments at amortised cost

- Debt instraments at fair value through ather comprehensive income (FVTOCH

« Debt instraments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or less (FVTPL)
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQOCT)

Debt ingtraments at amortised cast

A *debt instrnment” s negsured at the amoerliscd cost if hoth the following conditions erc mck:
) The agset is held within a business made! whose shjective i to hald assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and.
) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ore solely payments of principal and interest (SFPI) on the principal amount oulsianding.

Afler initial measurement, such financial assets are sub i at ised cost using the effective intereat rate {ETRY method. Amortised cost is calculated by 1aking into aceount any discount or prarmita on
acquisition and fees or cosls that are an intepral part of the EIR. The EIR amortssation i included in finznce ircome in the profit or koss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or Joss. This category
generally appiies to trade and other receivables.

Bebt instrument at FVTGCI
A, “debt instrument” is ¢lsssificd as 2t the FVTOCT if both of the fellowing criteria are met:

a) The abjective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the finencial assets, aimd
b} The assct®s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

‘Debt instruments incheded within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as wel: a8 a2 each reporting date at fait value. Fair value movements nre rec
Company recognizes mierest meome, impawmaent losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
equuty to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt insrrument is reported a3 interest income using the EIR method.

d in the eiber comprehensive income (OCT). However, the
n or loss previeusly recognised in OCE is reclassified from the

Debt instrument 21 FYTPL

FVTPL is a resrdual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which dogs not meet the criteria for categorization as a1 amortized cost or a3 FYTOQCTL, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise mec1s amortized cost of FVTOCI eriteriz, as at FYTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces ar eliminates 2
o2 recognition i i (referred to 28 “accounting mismateh®). The Company has nel designated any debt instrument as at FYTPL

Debt instruments inclnded within the FYTPL category ate measured at fair value with all changes cecogrized in the P&L

Equity investments

All equity investmens in scope of Ind AS 109 ace measared at fur value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Tngd A§103
applies are classified as at FYTPL. For all other equity imstruments, the Company may make an irrevoecable clection to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by- mstrument basis. The ckssificanon is made on initial recogmition and 1s irevocable.

unts from OCT (0 P&L,

1i the Company decides to classily an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the i luding dividends, are
even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

4 in ke OCL There is no reeycling of the ar

Equity mstruments imcluded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recogmzed i the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial gsset (or, where epplicable, a past of a financial rzset ar part of 8 Company of similar financial asscts) is primarily derecognised (1.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when

- The rights (0 receive cash [lows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company bas trapsferred i rights to receive cavh {lows from she asset or Jas asswmed an ebligation to pay the received cash flows in fulf without maeria! elay to a third party under 1 *pass=through’ urrngement, and
gither (a) the Company has transferred substantially 2il the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred not retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the gsset, but has fransferred control
of'the asset.

Whaen the Company has irausferred its rights (o recerve cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangemeat, it evaluaies if and 1 what extent 1 has resained the risks wed rewards of ownership. When it
has aeither trassferred nor retained substantizly all of the risks end rewards of the asset, nor ressfesred control of the asset, e Company continucs 10 recognise the transforred assct to the oxtent of the Company's
conlinuing invelvernent. In that case, the Company also recognises on associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated Bability are measured on a hasis that reflects the righls and obligations that the Compiry has
retained,

Continuing involvernent that takes the form of u guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower af the original casrying smount of the asset and the maxitrum amouat of consideration that the Company could
be requircd to repay.

Impairmpent of fimanclal assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit logs {FCL) medef for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
) Fancial assets that are measured ai amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivobles and bank balance

b} Avaflable for sale fimancial assets

¢} Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d) Trade receivables or any contractnal right 6 recerve cash or another financial asset that eesult from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impamment loss allowsnce on:
- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables, and
- All leasc receivables resulting from transactions wilhin the scope of Ind AS 116

The applicalion of simplified approach does not require the Company 1o track changes in credic risk. Ralher, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each repotting date, right from its initial
Tecognition.

For recoppition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk cxposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since inits] recognition. If credit risk has not
increased sigaificantly, 12-moath ECL i5 used 10 provide for ampuirment loss. Howevex, if credit nsk has mereased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. Tf, in a subsequent period, credit guelity of #he instrument improves such
that there is 2o longer o significant increase in eredil risk sice initial recegnilion, then the entity reverts to recogrusing impairment toss allowance based on 12-moath ECL.
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit lasses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrumert. The 12-tnonth ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from defauit svemsihat
sre possible within 12 menths after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in zccordance with the centract and all the cash flows that the entily expects to receive (i.¢., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the orignz]
EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entify is required io consider:

- All contraciual terms of the financia! nstrument (including prepayment, extension, call end similar aptions) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, m rare cases when the expecied life of the (nsnczal
instrument cannol be estimaled refiably, then the enlity is required 1o use the remaining contractual term of the financial iestrument

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhaneements that are integral te the conttactual Lerms.

As a practica] exped:ent, the Company uses 2 provision matrix to determine impairment foss allowance on portfolio af its trade receivables. The provision malrix is based on its histonically observed defauli raies over the
expeeted life of the wade reocivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default mtes are updated and changes in the forward-Jooking cstimates are anslysed. On
that basis, the Company estimates the following provision matrix at the reporting date:

8-15 days past dug 16-30 dnys past dae | 31-80 days past due | 61-90 days past duc | 20-120 days past due | 120-180 days past due | Abeve 180 days past
due

Trade cceivables 205 20% 20% 20% 20% 100%% 100%
Advertisement Trebiors Nil Nil 20% 20% 20% 100% 100%
1C0n rcceivsbla(Open Shipment) Nil Nil Nil 50% 100% 100% 100%
COD reccivables (Delivered Shipment} Nil 100%% 100% 1007 5 100% 100%
Product Sellers (Debit Balances) 100% 100%% 100% 100% 100% 100%
1Insuratice Receivables Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 100%

l | o180 pastdue | 181270 pastdue | 271.365 pastdue I Abave 365 past duc ’
|Bank Regaivables I Nil [ 25% | 50%, 100%

Gioods and Serviees tix receivable, the Company uses 2 provision milestone bastg of the foranrd looking estimate of the fax ereditg in the oext five years to determing the itnpairment loss allowance at every reporting daie.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the peried is recogaized as income/ cxpense in the staternent of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is rellecied under the kend ‘other expensey” in the PRL.
The balance sheet presentation for vanious financial mstruments 18 described belaw:

+ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease recervables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an inlegral part of the measurement of those assels in the balance shect, The
allowance reduces the net carying amount. Until the asset mects write-off cxiteria, the Company dows not reduce impairment allowance from (e gross canying amount.

= Available for sale financial assets: Since financial essets are already reflected at famr value, impairment allowance is not further reduced fom its valve. Rather, ECL amount & p d a8 “sceumulated impai
amount’ in the OCI,

For asssssing incrcase in eredit risk and impairment loss, (the Company combines financial insiruments on the basis of shared credif risk charactecistics with the objective of facilitating sn analysis that 55 designed (o crable
significant inereases in eredit risk te be identified on a tmely basis,

The Company does not have any purchased or otiginaed credit-impaired {POCI) financia] agscis, i.¢., financial agscts which arc ercdit impaited on purchase’ asigination.

Financial liabilitics
initial recogrition and meusurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at imtial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair vakue through profit or loss, leans and borrowings, payables as appropriale.

All financial Habitities are recognised initially at fair vatue and, #n the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable trensaction costs.

The Company’s financial Labilitics inehede trade and other payables.

Subsequent measuyement

‘The measyrement of financis! liabilities depends on heir clagsification, as described below;

Financlal liabilities at lair vatue through profit or loss

Fimaneial liabilities al fair value through profit or loss inclede financial babilities held for wading and finaxcial lizhilities desighated upon initial 33 at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing i the near term. This category also moludes derivative financia} instruments entered into by the Company that are dot designatod as helging
instruments in hedge ielationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded detivatives are alse classified as held for trading unless they are desfgnated as effective hedging instraments.

Gains or losses on liabilitics held for trading are recognised in the prodit or loss.

Financial liabilitics designated upon initiat recoguition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the cniteria in Ind AS 109 are satigfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value guing/ losses alibulable 1o changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaina/ loss are not subsequently wansferred to P&L, Howaver, the Company may Lransfer the cumulalive gain or loss
within equity. All otber chanpes in fair value of such hability are recognised fn the staterent of profit or Ioss. The Company bas not designated any financial liability as st fair value through prefit and loss,

Loaons and borrawings
After ititia] recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amoitised cost using the EIR metltod. Gaing and losses are recoghised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost s calenlated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cests that ure an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amonisation is included as linance costs in Lhe slatemezt of profiy
and loss,

Dercengrition

A f jal liability is d d when the obligation under the liabilty is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existinyg Rnancial liabilily is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different lerms,
or the terens of an existing lisbility are sub jally reodified, such an exct of modification is treated ns the derccognition of the original liability and the recognition of & new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounis is recognised in the stalement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a p of a hybrid bined) mstrument that zlse includes a non-detivative host contract — with the effcct that some of the cash flows of the combined instruenent vary in a way similarto a
standalone detivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according 1o a specified fnterest rate, financiel instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rales, credit rting or credit index, or ether variable, pravided in the case of a nen-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a parly 1o the confract.
Reassessment only eceurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asscr out of the fair value through
proit or loss,

T the hybrid contract contains a host that is  financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separats embedded derivarives. Rother, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109
1a the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair vabue if ther economic characteristics and risks are ot closely related to those of
the host cantracts and the host contracts are not held for wading or designated at faic value though profit or loss, These cmbedded derivarives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recogmised in profit ar lass,
unless designaied as cffective hedging mstruments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines clasesfication of financial assets and Nabilitics on initial ition. After initial i 1o reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and finencial hiabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a re<lassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expecied to be infrequent. Yhe Compeay’s
semior mansgement determines change in the busiscss model as a result of external er intemal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations, Such changes are eviden to external pardes. A change in the
business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively fror the
reclassification date which 1s the first day of the immediately next reporting peried followmg the change in business model. The Company does not restale any previously recognised gains, losses (including impaimnent gans
or losses) oF infergst.

Offsetting of flnancips! instrunients

Financial assess and financial Nabibties ace offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance shewt if there 1s 2 cumently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there s an intention (o
sertle on A net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilties simultancously.
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(Aan

in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

o, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the bulance sheet comprise cash at bariks and en hand and short-term depaosits with an ofiginal maturity of thre months or Jess, which are subject ta an insignilicant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the stement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shortwerm deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered on integral part of the
Company’s cash managesment.

p. Segment Reporting

The Compun:fs primary business segmcm is catablishing, d designi ducing and ptuslizing direct marketing sofutions through web and non-web based platforme, Accordingly, there are no other
P O & phical segments ta be disclosed as pcr notdied Ied AS 108 "Operating Segments”,
q.Earnuings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts pre calcutated by dividing the profii for the period attribirtable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,
Diluted EPS ameuns are calculated by dividing the loss atwibutable to equiiy bolders of the Company by the weighted averags number of Equity shares outstanding during the peried plus the weighied average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilytive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

New and amended standards

(i} Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions :

The amendmerts provide relief Lo lessees rom applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification sccounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a praciical expedient, a
lessec may clect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent cencession from a lessor 18 & lease modification. A lessee that makes this clection accounts for any chunge in lease peyments resulting from the Covid-19 related
rent cencesston the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change wete ot a lease modification.

The ametdments ste appheable for anmtal reperting penats beginnng on ot after the | April 2024 Tins amendment had no impact on the financal statements of the Company
(i) Amendments fo Ind AS 103 Business Combinations :

The amendment Lo lud AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that 1o be considered & business, an integrated set of setivilies and assets must include, a2 & mninem, an ingul and a substantive process that, logether,
gignilicantly conteibule i the ahility 1o create oulput. Fusthermore, it clarifies that 2 busmess can exist without ineluding all of the inputs and processes needed to creale outputs,

These d are applicable Lo bumness ions for which the acquisition date is an or atter the beginning of the first ansual reporting period beginning on or aster the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that

accur on or afier the beginaing of that peried. This amendment had no impact on the financisi statements of the Company but may impact future periods should the Company enter into any business combinations.

{iil} Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS §: Definition of Material :

Thwe amendments provide 4 new definition of matenal that stales, “information ¢ matenal if onitting, missfating or obscuring it could bly be exp § o influence d {lat the primary usets af general purpose
Finangial statcments make on the bagis of fhose financial slalements, which provide financial information about u specific reporting entiy.” The amendmmls clarify that matocality will depeod on the nature or magnitudsof
information, either individually or in bination with other i inn, in the context of the financiat statements. A musstatement of information is material if it could bly be exp d 10 infl decmions made by

the primary users. These amendments had no impact on the finzncial staternents of, nor is thers expected 1o be any future impact io the Company.
These amendments are applicable prospectively for ennunl periods beginning on or afler the 1 April 2620. The amendmenis to the definition of materie! are not expected to have a significent impact on the Company's
finzancral statements.

Recent prenouncements :

O Meaxch 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate AfTars (*MCA™) through 2 notification, amended Schedule HI of the Companies Act, 20E3, The amendments revise Division I, I and I of Schedule 11T and an: applicable
from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division IT which relate 16 companies whese financial statements are sequired to comply with Companies {Tudian Accounting Standardsy Rules 2015 are:

Balance Shest!

+ Lease liabilties should be separately disclosed under the head * finunciz! lial ", duly distinguished as cursent or ron-carrent.

+ Certam additional disclosures in the staement of changes w eyty such as changes m equity share capital due 10 prior perud erors and restated balanges at ihe beginning of {he corrgnt seporting period,
+ Specified formar for disclosurs of gh g of p

= Spocified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, irade payables, vapital work-in-progress und intangdble assct under development.
+ If a company has not used funds for the specific pirpuse fior which it was hormowed from bunks and firancial instinntitms, then disclosure of details of where it has begn useal.

= Specific disclosure under *udditional y req ” such as compl with app: d schemes of armangements, comphance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of inmovable property not beld in
namne of comrpany, louns and advances to promoters, directers, key mannperial personnel (KMP} and related parties, detanls of benauem property held ete.

Statement of profit and loss:
* Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Socta} Respansibility {CSR), undisclosed income and crypla or virtual currency specified under the heed ‘addidonal information’ in the notes forming part of financial
statorments,

The amendments are extensive and the Group will evaluate the same te give effec! to them as required by faw,

{This spave has beex Toft blank intertionaily
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Snapdeal Private Limited
Netes to standalone ff ial

fAN apounts it INR Crore, exeept pex share data and as stated otherwisc)

5, Investment in subsidiaries and assoclates

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Inveskments (vahred at cust untess stated otherwise)

Trrvestment in preference instruments {unquoted)

Investment in subsidlaries:

16,597 (March 31, 2020t 16,597) 0.001%% Compulsorily convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 cach - fully paid-up in 131.6 1316

Unicommerce e-Solntions Private Limited

4,246 (March 31, 2020; 4,248) Compulsorily convertible Preference shares of Rs, 100 each - fully paid-up in NewFanpled 3.0 kRi]
Internet Private Limited {note A helow)

e

Int equity instr f

Iovestment in subsidiaries:

22,810 (Marck 31, 2020: 22,810) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Unicommerce e-Soluticns Private Limited 138.7 1387
11,790 {(March 31, 2020: 11,790} Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up in NewFangled Internet Private Limited (nete A 2.0 20
below)

Envestment in associates:
474,890 (March 31, 2020: 474,890} Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid=up in Tetra Media Private Limiled (note B below) 15.0 150

Totsl 2903 2993

Tnvestment on account of ESOP cost for emplovees of Subsidiaries :

- Unicommerce e-Solutions Private Limited {note C below) 0.1 02
- NewFangled Internet Private Limited {note C below} 0.7 06
0.8 0.8
2 o
Less: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of Investments #
- Tetra Media Private Limited (note B below ) (15.0) {150)
- Unicommerce c-Solutions Private Limited {145.5) {1455)
- NewFangled Internet Private Linuted (note A below) (5.6) (56)
(166.1) (166.1)
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1250 125.8
Aggregate amount of nnquoted investaenty
Cumrent -
Non-current 1250 1256
125.0 125
# Provision for other thap temporary diminution in value of {n
Openiug batance 166.1 160.7
Created during the year - 34
Reversed during the year - -
Closing balance 166.1 166.1

Nofe A : The Company during the previous year had entered into Share Purchase Agreement dated June 22, 2019 to acquire an ecommerce company NewFangled Interact Private
Limited engaped m the business of online merketing, net marketing, nultilevel marketing of consumers & other goods, internet advertising and marketing, creating virtual mals,
stores, shops, creating shopping catatogues, eic., approved in the Board meeting dated August 08, 2019, the investment have been made basts of the CCPS and in Equity Shores,
Fusther, during the previous year the Cotnpany had made a provision of Rs, 5.6 ¢r in diminution in value of investment in NewFangled Internet Private Limited.

Note B : The Company acquired 60.61% shareholding in Tetra Media Private Limited during the financial year 2014-15 wherein it has 40.41% voting rights and economic benefits to
the extent of its shareholding. Further, during the previous years the Company had made a provision of Rs. 15.0 cr in disnination in value of investment in Tetra Media Private
Limuted.

Note C : The Company has issued stock optiens to varions employees including empleyees of the Unicommerce e-Solutions Private Limited and NewFangled Internet Private
Limited. The total employee stock optien cost accrued pertaining to the employees of these twe eatities upto March 31, 2021 has been transferred to respective Unicomrmerce e-
Solutions Private Limited and NewFangled Intemet Private Limited in accordance with para 43A of Ind AS 102 "Share Based Payment”.

(This space has been left blank intentionallv}
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{All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

6. _Financial assets

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Investments
Commiercial Paper
Kotak Mahindra Investment Limited 49.7 4.7
Kotak Mahiodra Prime Limited - 249
Aditya Birla Finance Limited 21,0 710
HDFC Limited - 825
Tata Capital Finance Services Limited 9.3 90.3
HDB Financial Services Limited - 300
Total investments at falr value through profit & loss 161.0 3934
Apprepate value of unguoted investments 161.0 3934
Investments in ather entities
In in prefe insty fs (unguoted) at cost
1,111 (March 31, 20201 1,§11} 0.01% Compulsorily cenvertible preference shares (CCPS) of Rs. 1G each fully paid-up in 0.6 06
Smartprix Web Private Limited.
The Company shall have the riglt at any time to convert all or seme of the preference shares held by it into cquity shares (1
share per CCPS). Such shares, however arc compulsorily convertible on 19th snniversory from the date of issuc.
Trrvesement in equity instruments (unguoted) at cost
Investment in other equity instraments:
Less: Provision for ather than temporary diminution in value of Invesiments #1
- Smartprix Web Private Limited (0.6) (06}
Total {nvestments 161.0 3934
Current 161.0 3934
Non-current - -
161.0 3934
Loan to related parties*
Loans which have significant increase in Credit Risk 13.4 66
134 (1]
Empairment Allowance #2
Laans which have significant increase in Credit Risk (134} {6.6)
(13.4) {6.6}
Total Loans - —
Current - -
Non-current = -
#1 Provision for ather than temporary diminution in value of Inc
Opening balance 0.6 344
Created during the year - -
Reversed during the year - {838)
Clesing balance 0.6 L6
#2 Provision for Impairment Allowance
Opening balance 6.0 -
Created during the year 6.8 6.6
Reversed during the year - b
Closing balance 13.4 66

* As ot March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, the Company has granted loan to NewFangled Internet Private Limited amounting to Rs 33.4 Cr and Rs 6.6 Cr at the interest rate of
1444 p.a for the period of three years. However , the Company hus created the provision towards the entire amount of loan given to NewFangled Internet Private Limited.

(This space has been fof? blank intentionally)
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{All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated etherwisc)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2000
Other financial asyets
Security depnsits
Considered good 63.8 583
Considered doubtful 0.1 03
63.9 548
Less: Provision for donbtful deposits #1 {01y {03)
Total (A} 63.8 585
Non Curreat bank balances
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months (note 1) 02 0o
Muargin money depesit (note 11} 06 0o
Total (B} 0.8 0.0
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Congidered goad 593 571
Considered doubtfnl 1523 1326
2IL6 208,7
Less: Provision for doubtful advances #2 (152.3) (1526)
Tolal (C} 59.3 511
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 15.2 215
Interest accrued on loan from related party (.3 03
155 278
Less: Provision for doubiful advances #2 {0.3) 03}
Total {D} 152 215
Restricted cash held in separate accounts * 24.5 206
Tolal {E) 24.5 16
Total other financial assets (A+B+C+DHE) 163’=.6= 1127
Current 1511 1415
Non-current 12.5 248
163.6 11
#1 Provision for doubtfuf deposits
Opening balance 0.3 -
Created during the year - 11
Reversed during the year (0.2) {08
Closing halance 0.1 4.3
#2 Provision for doubtful advances
Opening balanee 152.3 1537
Crented during the year 17.5 751
Reversed during the vear {17.7) {763}
Closing balance 152.1 152.3

* Pyrsyant to the direetives of the Reserve Bank of India, the Company received amouns in its nodal account towards all wansaetions happening cn its portal through debit/ credit
cards and net banking. From such nodal account, the Company transfers the respective ameunt to setlet/custorner. This balanee lying in such nodal acconunt as at March 31, 2021 and
March 31, 2020 is disclosed as Resivicted Cash held in separate accounts’ in the fimancial statements,

Investments at fair value through Prafit & Loss (fully pnid) reflect investment in quoted and unquoted cquity securities and guoted debt securities, (Refer note 30}

Break up of financial assefs carried at amortised cost:

Trade receivables (note 9) 46 33
Cash and cash equivalents {(note 10) 393 04
Other financial assels (note 6) 163.6 1727
Investments in commercial paper (note 6) 161.0 3934
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 368.5 5658
7. _Pre ents

As at Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Unsecured, Considered good iL.1 i1z
Unsecured, Considered doubtful 2.2 24
13.3 9.6

Less: Provision for doubiful advances # 2.2) {24}
Total prepayments 111 17,2
Cument 14 55
Non-current 3.7 1.7
iL1 17.1

# Provision for doubtful advances

Opening balance 24 4
Created during the year - 2
Reversed during the year 0.2) 0.2).
Closing balance 2.2 24
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All amounts in INR Crore, exeept per share dats and as stated otherwise)

8. _Other assets

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 3E, 2000
Agdvance income-tax 17.3 259
Advanee to emplayees 1.3 L3
Balances wilh statutory/govemment authorities 237.6 2469
256.2 2741
Less: Provision for doubtful advances # (193.9) (2024}
Total other assets §2.3 1.7
Cureit 45.0 450
Non-current 17.3 26.7
62.3 71.7
e
# Provision for doubtiu) advances
Qpening balanee 2024 1701
Creafed during the year 8 323
Reversed during the year (9.3) -
Closing balance 193.9 2014
9. Trade receivables
As at Agat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables
Trade recsivables 446 33
Total trade receivables 4.6 33
Breakup for security details:
Trade receivables
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsceured 4.6 33
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 2.5 213
27.1 256
Impairiment Allowsnce {allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk # (22.5) (22.3)
(22.5) (223}
Total trade receivables 4.6 33
=
Current 4.6 33
Non-current - h
4.6 13
# Provision for Impairment Allowance
Opening balance 223 221
Created during the year 1.6 10
Reversed during the year (1.4} 08
Closing balance 215 3

No trade or other receivable are duc from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 34 to 90 days,

10, _Cash and cash equivalent

Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 39.3 123
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 00 ki
Cash on hand 0.0 0.0
9.3 0.4

Cash at banks carns intcrest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Shorl-ierm deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Balances with banks:

— On ¢urrent accounts 303 04
— Deposiis with original maturity of kess than lhree months 0.0 0.0
Cash on hand 040 0.0

39.3 04
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11, _Bank balances other than above

As at Asat

Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Deposits with eriginal maturity for more than 12 months 166.1 kYNs
Dreposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 0.1 01
Margin moncy depasit® 312 416
197.4 814
Less: disclosed under other non-curreni fimancial assets (note &) (0.8) {€0)
Total bank halance other than above 196.6 8Lé

* Margin money deposits given as secority ¢

Margin money deposit with a carying amount of Rs 0.71 ¢r {March 3t, 2020 Rs 0.71 Cr) are subject to lien to secure corporste credit card Jimit from a bank,
Margin money depasit with a carrying emount of Rs .01 or {March 31, 2020: Rs 0.01 Cr) is subjcct 1o Hen for bank guarantes given to Income tax mythority,
Margin money deposit with a carrying amoust of Rs 0,22 or {(March 31, 2020: Rs 0.22 Cr) is subject to tien for bank gusrantee given to VAT authority.

Margin money deposit with a carrying emount of Rs 0.25 cr (March 31, 2020: Rs 0.25 cr} is subject to lien for bank guarantee given against business travel agroements.

Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 1,05 cr (March 31, 2020: Rs 1,03 er) is subject to lien for bank guarantee given against services from India Post.
Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 18.98 cr (March 31, 2620: Rs 31.3 Cr) are subject to lien for overdraft facility taken from HDFC,

Margin inoncy deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 10,0 cr (March 31, 2020: Rs. 10.0 Cr) is subject to licn for bank guaranice given fo liqudator of wholly owned subsidiary E-

Agility Solutions Private Linited .

{This space has been Ieft blank intentionalfv)
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12. Share Capital

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Authorfized share capltal
89,151,800 (March 31, 202¢: 89,131,800y Equity Shares of Re. 1 (March 31, 202(: Rs, 1) cach 8.9 8Y
20,000 (March 31, 2629: 20,000) compulsory convertible curnulative series A preference shares of Rs. 10 each 090 0.0
25,000 (March 31, 2020: 25,000} compulsory convertible cumulative series B preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,000 (March 31, 2020: 25,000) compuisory convertible cumulative series C preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 00
25,000 (March 31, 2020: 25,000) conrpulsory convertible cummlative series D preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.3 03
25,000 (Maxch 31, 2020: 25,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series E preference shares of Rs. 100 gach 0.3 0.3
3,000 {March 31, 2020; 3,000) compulsory convertible cumulative serics E1 preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.0 0.0
34,500 (March 31, 2020: 34,500) compulsory convertible cumulative series F preference shares of Rs. 100 each 03 0.3
80,000 {March 31, 2020: £0,000) compulsory convertible curmulative series G preference shares of Rs. 100 eacl 3 0.8
20,000 {(March 31, 2020: 20,000) compulsory cenvertible cnmulative scrics H preference shares of Rs. 104 each 0.2 0.2
400,000 (March 31, 2020: 400,000} compulsery convertible cumulative serics 1 preference shares of Rs. 100 cach 4.0 40
105,000 (March 31, 2020: 105,000) compulsery convertible cumnlative serics J preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.1 0.1
17,416 (March 31, 2020: 17,410) compulsory convertible cumulative series J1 preference shares of Rs. 20 each 0.0 0.0
14.9 4.9
Issued Share Capital
2,464,823 (March 31, 2020:2,464,823) equity shares of Re. 1 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 1) each fully paid-up 0.2 0.2
10,370 (March 31, 2020: 10,370) compulsory convertible cumulative participating series [ preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up 0.1 Q.1
44,348 (March 31, 2020: 44,348) compulsory convertible curmulative partitipating series J preference shares of Rs. 10 each folly paid-up 0.0 0.0
‘Fotal issued share tapital 0.3 0.3
Subscribed & fubly paid up shares
2,464,823 (March 31, 2020: 2,464,823} equity shares of Re. 1 each fulty paid-op 0.2 02
Yotal Subseribed and fully paid-up share capital 0.2 0.2

(This space has been left Blank intentionally)
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{a} Reconciliation of the sharves ontstanding at the beginning and at the cod of the reporting year

Equity shares
March 31, 2421 March 31, 2020
No. Rs, Nao, Rs.
‘Al the beginning of the year 24,64,823 0.2 24,64,823 [E
Quitstanding at the cnd of the year 24,64,823 0.2 24,64,823 .2
(b) Aggregate mmmber of shares bought back during the peried of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020 DMarch 31, 2819 March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Nos Nos Nas Nos Ros,
Equity shares bought back by the Company - - - 47,200 .
{c) Details of sharellders holding mare than 5% shares iu the Company
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Nos, % Halding Nos.
Equity shares of Re. 1 cach fully paid-up
Nexus India Direct Investments T1 2,35,i00 5% 235,100 9.5%
Ebey Smgapore Services Pte Led 1,40,950 5.7 1,40,950 7%
Starfish| Pte. Ltd. $,70,253 35.7% 879,251 3575
B2 Pic jonal Servicesm LLI 2,85,062 11.6%% 2,85,062 116%

Note z Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity sharcs having face valug of Re. 1 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share.

Trs the cvent of liguidaiien of the Company, the botders of equity shares will be enttled 10 receive remaining assels af the Company, after disinibution of all preferential ‘The distribution will be m proportion
to the mimber of equity shares held by the sharelnlder

{This space has been left blemk intentionally)
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13. Other equity

Share premium Rs,
At April 01, 2019 11,028.6
Increase because of igsue of shares during the year g
Decrease due to transaction costs for issued share capital -

At March 31, 2020 12.028.6
Increase because of issue of shares during the year -
Decrease due to transaction costs for issued share capital e AN N
AtMarch 31, 2021 11.028.6

Share option schemes /Share base payment reserve (SBP Reserves)

The Company has share option schemes under which options to subseribe for the Company’s shares have been granted to certain executives and employees,
‘The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settied share-based payments provided to employees, including key management
personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer note 28 and 29.

Share based payments Rs,

At April 01, 2019 177

Add: Compensation cost for options granted {including cost of options 8.2

granted to employees of subisdiary companies)

Less: transferved to general reserve on exercise of stock options (1.6)
At March 31, 2020 278.3

Add: Compensation cost for options granted (including cost of options 8.4

granted to employees of subisdiary companies)

Less: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock oplions (1.3)
At March 31, 2021 2854
General Reserve

The Company recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, jssue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to general reserve.

General Reserve Rs.

At April 01, 2019 10.1

Add: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock options 1.6

AtMarch 31, 2020 11.7
Add: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock options 13

At March 31, 2021 13.0
Equity Reserve

Equity reserve pertains to the liability outstanding in the books that might result in issuance of shares as per the agreement as a part congideration to the
advertisement services. Refer note 41.

Equity Reserve Rs,
At April 01, 2019 -
Add: transferred to equity reserve 254.0
At March 31, 2020 254.0
Ad: transferred to equity reserve 0.3
AtMarch 31, 2021 254.3
Other reserves
As at As al

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
SBP reserve 2854 2783
General reserve 13.0 1.7
Equity Reserve 254.3 254.0
Tota) other reserves 552.7 544.0

(This space has been left blank intentionally}
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14,

15.

Provisiony
Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 3%, 2020
Provision for bonus 44 84
Provisien for sales return 1.3 08
‘Fotal 57 92
Current 37 5.8
Non-curent 049 0.4
5.7 9.2
Provision for bonus Provision for Sales Return
As at April 1, 2019 8.5 56
Created during the year 12.8 28
Utilised 122} (5.6)
Unused ameunt reversed 0.7} -
As at March 31, 2020 8.4 0.8
Created during the year 1.l 13
Utilised (4.3} {0.8)
Umsed amount reversed (0.8) -
As at March 31, 2021 4.4 13
Provision for banus
A provision is recognised for the bonus payable to the employees on time proporiion basis over the period of service.
Provision for sales return
A provision 15 recognised for the expected product returns subsequent to the period end based on historical expericnce.
Net employee defined henefit oblgations
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 M™arch 31, 2020
Provision for gratuity 9.7 99
Provision for compensated absences 5.0 S
14.7 14.9
=
Current 73 74
Non-current 74 7.3
14.7 149

Ta accordance with applicable laws, the company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retiremont plan (“the Gratuity Plan™) coveriag eligible cmployces. The Gratuity Plan
provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement {subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death, incapacitation or terminalion of
employment of amounts that are based on salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the Gramity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date.

(This space has been left blank intentionaliv)
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‘The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the income statement and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for te

plan:

Rs.
Defined benefit obligation at April 01, 2019 00
Acquisition adjustruent @n
Curzent Servics cost 19
Interest cost on benefit obligation 06
Benefits paid 2y
Actuarial loss 07
Defined benefit obligation at March 31, 2024 9.9
Cument Service cost 16
Tuterest cost on benefit obligation 05
Benefits paid 27
Astuarial loss 04
Pefined henefit obligation at March 31, 2021 9.7
Expenes recopnised In the Other Comprehensive Income (Excluding tax) for the year ended March 31, 2021 asd for the year ended March 31, 2020
For the year ended ¥or the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2030
Opening amount reeognized in OCT outside P&L account £ 1
Actuarial loss on lisbilities 0.4 )
(0.4) {07)
The principal actuarial assumptions vsed in detenmining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 3%, 2000
Discount rate 4.9% 549
Salary escalation rate 7.5% 7.5%
Withdrawal rate 30.09 30.0%
Due to its defined beneflt plans, the company Is cxposed to following significant risk :~
Change in Discount Rate @ A decrease in disconnt rate will increase plan liability.
Salary Risk : The preseni value of the defined benefit plan Lability is calendated by reference to the fisture snlaries of the pfan participants. As such , on increase in the salary of the
plan participants will increase tha plans liability.
Withdrawal Rate : A decrease in withdrawal rafe will increase plan liability.
Dempgraphical Assumption ased
Assumption regultating future montality are based on published statistics and mortality table (TALM (2012-14))
Retirement Ape : The employees of the company are assured to retire at the age of 60 yeats.
March 31, 2021 Impact {(Absolute
9.7
0.1) 99
0.2 94
0.1 96
0.1} 98

The Sensitivity Analysis have been determined based on a mothod that cxirapolated the Impact of declined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable change in key assumiptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Miaturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Year Amount

Otol Year 2.4
102 Year 20
2 t03 Year 15
3to4 Year 1.1
4 to5 Year 08
5Sto6 Year 0.5
6 Year oowards 1.5
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16._Trade and other payables

Ay at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade payables
Trade payables 8.9 1239
8.9 1239
Bifureation of above:
Total outstanding dues of micre and small enterprises {refer note 36) 22 pA;
Total ountstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 96.7 1218
98.9 1239
Other payables
Payable to sellers 824 731
Payable to related party - 0.3
Other payables (refer note 41 and 42) 19.2 -
Staiutory liabilities payabte 5.6 36
187.2 781
206.1 %_ﬂ:_ﬂ;
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilittes:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are nommally settled on 60-day terms.
- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of upto six months
-~ Fer terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 39,
Break up of financial lishilities carried at amortised cost
As at As at
March 31, 2021 Manreh 31, 2020
Lease Labilities {nole 44) 8.4 1.1
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 8.4 1.1
17. Deferred revenue
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 205
As al begiuning 154 413
Deferred during the year 18.3 154
Released to the statement of profil and ioss (15.3) (41.3)
Ax at closing 18.4 154
Current 18.6 154
MNon-current - -
18.6 154
3
Revennes from producis shipped are deferred till it is defivered to the ultimate customers and is disclosed as deferred reveruc.
18. _Other linbilities
As at As st
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advances from cuseomers 94 9.0
9.4 5.0
Current o4 %0
Non-current - -
9.4 94

(This space has been left blank interitionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to standalone fb tal stat
{All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

19. Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended
‘March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations :
Revenue from marketing fees 1234 162.7
Other operating revenuc e 651.2
Revente from operations 4310 813.9
Set out befow is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue :
Marketing Service fees 1234 162.7
Commission and Other Service fees 307.6 651.2
Total 431.0 813.9
India 428.5 813.5
Outside India 2.5 04
Total 431.0 813.9
Refer note 43 far disclosure of contract balances as per the requirciments of Ind AS 115,
20. Other income
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Linbilities / previsions no longer required written back 5.9 5.4
Impairment allowance to tonger required (net) 0.0 0.2
QOther non-operating income 24 6.1
Total 8.3 11.7
Olher non operating income primarily incindes credil card fees, courier lost income, penalty from sellers and other mise incame.
31, Finance income
For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest income on bank deposits and coramercial paper 27.0 517
Interest incame on loan given to related parties - 0.3
Interest income on tax refund 1.2 22
Net gein on sale of current investments - 2.1
Unwinding of discount on finapcial assets at amorliscd cost™ 0.1} 1.0
Total 28.1 571.3
*Taeludes impact of Rs. 1% Cr (March 31, 2020 : Nil) on account of restatement of recoverable security deposits. Refer note 41 and 42,
12, Marketplace cxpense
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Freight and collection charges 1874 3505
Product wrpping charges 23 5.0
Compensation expenses 56 a.0
Hosting charges 9.6 13.6
Content writing charges 0.2 1.1
Software expenses 7.2 B.7
Marketing and business promotion cxpense 1752 507.9
Total 337.2 903.8
23. Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 3, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salary, wages and bonus ill.é i3l
Contribution to provident and other fonds 43 4.6
Gratity expensg 22 2,5
Employee stock option scheme B3 7.8
Staff welfave, recruitment and training expenses 0.6 24
Total 127.0 148.9

The Cede an Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to cmployee benefits during cmployment und post-cmployment benefits eesived Presidential assent i
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the finai
rules/interpreiation have not yet been issucd. The Company will asscss the impact of the Cade when it comes into ¢ffect and will record any related impact in the

period the Code becemes effective.
(This space has been lefi blank intentionaliv}
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24,

15,

26.

Depreciation and amortisation expense
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation of tangible assets (note 3) 18.1 147
Amneatisation of intangible assets (note 4) 28.7 124
Depreeiation of ROU assets (note 44) 3.1 3.1
Total 4%.9 30.2
Finance Costs
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Bank charges 0.4 -
Interest charges 1.0 1.4
Exchange differcnecs (net) 0.0 0.2
Total 1.4 1.6
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2820
Tnsurance 1.3 1.5
Sub-coniracting expenses 14.0 17.9
Bad debts / advances written off 0.1 0.7
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 74 6.8
Comrunication charges 29 57
Legal and professional fees 59 0,1
Liguidation Expense 0.2 0.1
Payment to audilor 0.5 0.5
Power and fuel 0.8 1.1
Rates and taxes 09 =03
Rent 04 01
Repair & maintenance:
Building 1.8 2.0
Plant & machinery 23 i3
Travelling expenses 08 2.5
Balances with statutory/govemment authorities 9.3) 3.9
Miscellaneous expenses 1.0 0.3
Total 3L0 83.8
A. Payment to auditer
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2026
Ag auditor;
Andit fee 04 0.4
Tax andit & Other fee 6.1 0.1
Total 3.5 4.5
27, Exceptional items
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Impairment of non current investment & Other assets (Loss on sale of [nvestments) - 62.9
Provision for dimimtion in value of Investiments - (78.1)
Total 3 (15.2)

(This space has been left blank intentionaily)
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28. Employee stock eption plan

The Company provides share-based payment schemes 10 employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. During the year ended March 31, 2021, an employee stock eption plan
(ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scherne and grant are as below.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting hetd on February 7, 2011 approved the grant of ESOP exercisable into not more than 3,223 nos equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Lo the employees of its Subsidiaries and its Holding Company and granted the authority of designing, implementing and administering such a scheme 1o the Board.

The Board in its meeting held on Felsruary 7, 2081 had resolved to issue to cmployees under ESOP 2011, employee stock optiors excreisable into not more than 3,223 nos. equity
shares of Ks. 10 each, with each such option conferring a right upon the cmployee to apply for one equity share of the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions of such
issue, The Company with the unanimous consent of ail the shareholders, modified such ESOP scheme on March 13, 2013, April 29, 2014 and August 12, 2014, amoug other things, i
increase the number of shares of equity shares reserved for issuance under the Plan w 4,108 nos, 5,528 nos and 9,209 nos, respectively. Later on in February 09, 2015 with the
unanimous conset of ali the sharcholders, such ESOP scheme was further modified, and in lieu of such modification increased the mumber of equity shares rescrved for isswance under
the Plan to 11,18% nes. eqnivalent to 111,890 nos post censidering the impact of share spilt.

As per the modified terms, all the option holders are entitled to exercise their vested options in casc of resignation / retirement / permanent incapacity / death and unvested options in
case of penmanent incapacity / death within a period of 10 years from the date of last working by self / nonunee / legat heir, which earlier was 6 montis from the date of last working.
Further the vesting period was also modified for ESOP 2016 whereas the option holders are eatitied te exercise their vested options in case of resignation / retirement / permanent
ncapacity { death and unvested options in case of petmanent incapacity / death within a period of 3 months from the date of 1ast working. However such modification did not bave any
inpact on the fair value of the options or is not otherwise beneficial to the employee. Oa October 6, 2015 ESOP Scheme was further modified in order to restate the definition of the
Investor Director and delegate the power to and authorize the Chief Executive Officer for administration of ESOP Scheme 2011 and also to cmpower and delegate the anthority ©
Chief Executive Officer to further delegate his power to administer ESOP 2011 to a senior competent employce of the Company.

Turiher on August 24, 2016, ESOP 2{16 Schenie was introduced whereby total numbes of options rescrved for issuance wnder both the plans combined together shall be restricted to
111,890 (23,230 no of options for ESQP 2016 Scheme), other conditions remaining the same. Later on March 10, 2017 with the unaniwous consent of all the sharehiolders, such ESQP
scheme was further modified, and in fien of such modification increased the pumber of employee stock options that may be granted under the ESOS 2016, from 23,230 to 29,916 stock
options exercisable into Equity Shares of the Company of Re, 1/- each through transfer of 6,686 stock options cancelled under ESOP 2011.

The Company with unanimous consent of all shareholders on Februry 25, 2019, increased Employee stock options frorn 111,850 to 198,890 that may granted under ESOP Scheme
2016 by addition of 87,000 opticns excercisable into equity shares of the Company of INR 1 each/-.

The net compensation expenss arising from equity settled share based payment Tansaction is March 31, 2021 Rs. 8.3 cr (March 31, 2020 : Rs, 7.8 on)). The Company has given stock
option to certain employees of its subsidiaries and the corresponding compensation cost for the same is bome by the Company.

The relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Company wise ESOP cost :

Entity For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Snapdeal Private Limited 83 73
MewFangled Interact Privaic Limited - 06
Unicommerce eSohrtions Privats Limited - ©.2)
Total 83 7.3
Vesting period 0.1 ~4 Years
Exercise period {,25-10,25 Years
Exercise price (Rs /-) Rs 1 -12,700
Contractual life 10.1 -14.25 Years
The details of activity under the ESOP 2011 and ESOP 2016 Scheme is as follows:
March 31, 2021
. Weighted average exercise
No. of opticas vice (in Rs.)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,42,950 1,1319
Granted during the year 10,638 1.0
Forfzited during the year 15,098 79
Lapsed during the year 2,984 1.0
Exercised during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1.35.506 12393
Exercisable at the end of the year 91,873 1,759.5

No. of options

- March31.2020
‘Weighted average exercise

price (in Rs.)
Outstanding at the beginaing of the year 1,03,720 1,559.6
Granted during the year 55,140 10
Forfeized during the year 15,138 19
Lapsed during the year 772 190
Exercised during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,42,950 1,t319
Exercisable at the end of the ycar 72,164 22412
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19.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 7.91 years (March 31, 2020 is 8.97 years). The weighted average share price
at the date of exercise for stock options exercised during the period was Rs.Nil (March 31, 2020 Rs. Nil). The range of exercise price for options outstanding at the end of the year was
Re. 1 to Rs. 12,700 (March 31, 2020 § to 12,700).

The expected lile of the stock is based on cwrrent expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur, The Company has chosen lo use a near zem
volatility, in the absence of any history, over volatility of listed comparable companies,

Founder's stock opficn plan

The Company had provided share-based payment scheme to its premote During the year ended March 31, 2021, Founder's Stock Option plan was in existence. The relevant details of
the scheme and the grant ar¢ a8 below.

The sharcholders of the Company, in their gencral meeting hefd on September 28, 2012 approved Founder's Stock Option Scheme 2012, whercin, it reserved 3,392 nos of equity shares
for the benefit of the promoters of the Company. On the same day with the unanimous conscrt of all the sharcholders of the Company, 3,392 nos of options with each such option
conferring n tight upon the promoter to apply for one cquity share of the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions of such issue, were granted to promoters of the
Company. Subsequently, 2120 vested founder’s steck options and 126 unvested founder's steck options were cancelled by the Board at their meeting on April 29, 2014 and a total of
1,146 options remained cutstanding equivalent to 11,460 nos of options post considering the impact of share split w.e.f, July 23, 2015. The net compensation cxpense atising from
equity settled share based payment transaction is Rs Nil (March 31, 2020 Nil).

The relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting Period 0 year
Exercise Period 5 Yenrs
Exercise Price Rel
Contractual life 5.5-10 Years

The details of activity under the 2012 Scheme is as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the period

March 31, 2021

Weighted average exeiciso

No. of optiens price (in Rs.)

11,460 i

Forfeited during the period : .
Cancelled during the period N .
Exercised during the period % R
Outstanding at the end of the year 11,460 1.0

Exercisable at the end of the period 11,460 10

March 31, 2020

No. of options Weighted average exervise

price {in Rs.)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,460 L0
Granted during the year - =
Forfeited during the year e C
Canceiled during the period - -
Exercised during the year -~ -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 11,460 1.0
Exercisable at the end of the year 11,460 10

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 0.39 years (March 31, 2020 ; 1.39 years). The range of exercise price for
options ountstanding at the end of the year was Re. | (March 31, 2020: Re. 1).

No options were granted under the plan during the year.

(This space has been lefi blank intentionally)
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Snapdeal Privaic Limited
Notes to standalone fi ial

(All amounts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

31. Financial risk management objeclives and policies

The Company's financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables. The purpose of thesc financial Kabilities is to finance & support its operations. The Company's principal fancial
nssets include made and uther receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. Further the Company altso bolds FVTPL investments.

The Company is exposed %o market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Companys management is supported by a financial advisory group that advises on financial risks and the appropriale
financial risk governance framework. The management assures that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's pulicies and risk objectives. Al derivative activities for risk management purpeses are camed out by the tean:s that have

the appropriate skills, expericnce and supervision, Tn accordance to the Company's policy, ne trading & derivatives for sp fve purp may be undertaken. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policigs for managing each of these tisks, which are summarised below.

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair valuc of futare cash ftows of a financial mstrument will fluctuats because of changes in market prices. Market nisk comprises thres types of nsk: interest rale
risk, currency zisk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Finascial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, FYTPL investments and
derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in markel variables on: the carrying values of graluity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; ead the non-financial asscls and
liabilities of foreign operations. The analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 33,

The following assumpttons have been made in calewlating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of Lhe relevant profit or loss ilem is the effect of ke assumed changes in respsctive marko risks. This is based on the [inancial assets and finencial liabilities held at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2620 including the effect of hedge accounting.

i) Interest rafe risk

Intrest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fisture cash flows of n financial instrument wilf fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. There are no interest mte risks for the
Company es thete are Nil berrowings as on March 31, 2021 and March 3§, 2024,

ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair valne or future cash flows of an exposure will 1 of changes in foreign cxch mies. The Companys cxpesure to he risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relales primarily to the Company's operuling activilies (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The Company current does not hedge nny receivable or payable in foreign currency. Refer note 37.

Foreign emrrency semsitivity

The following tables demonsteats the sensitiviiy to a reasonably possible change in USD , EURQ and GBP exchange rztes, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company's loss before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monelary assets and lisbilities including non-designated foreign clrrency detivatives snd embedded derivatives. The
Company's cxposure Lo forcign currency changes for all other currencies is not material,

Sensitivity
Particulars Change in Efiect on profit
USD rate before tax
March 31,2021 5% 0.04
March 31,2021 -5% -0.04
March 31,2020 5% 0.04
March 31, 2020 -5%) -0.04
Particulars i Effect on profit
March 31,2021 001
March 31,2021 0.01
March 31, 2020 -0 0k
March 31, 2020 001
Particnlars Change in Effect on profit
GBP rate before tax
March 31,2031 5% -0.01
March 31,2021 -5%) 001
March 31,2026 3% -001
March 31,2020 -5%) 001
ili) Equity price risk.

The Company's non-listed equity Securities are susceptible t market price risk arising from uncertainties sbout future values of the inveshnent securilics. The Company manages the cquity
price risk throngh diversification and by placing Himils on individual and Lotal equity instraments. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equily investment decisions.

(This space has been teft blank intentionaily)
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b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the ¢isk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under o financial instrument or custoret contract, leading to a financiel loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from
is opernting activities (primarily trads receivables) and from its financing activitiss, including deposits with banks and financinl institutions, foreign exchange tansactions and other financial
instruments, The Company only deals with partics which has gaod credit raring/worthaess given by external raling agencics or based on groups interal assessment,

Trade receivables and contract asset

Customer credit risk is managed by cach business unit subject to the Company's established policy, proceduses and control relating (o customer credil risk management. Quistanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored.

An imppirmentanalysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix te measure expected credit losses.

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time vahe of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past svents, curtent
conditions and forecasts of future economic condifions.. The meximum cxposure 1o credit risk af the reporting date is the carrying vatue of each class of financial assels disclosed in Note 30.
The Company does not hold collateral as secusity, The Company evaluates the concentration of tisk with respect ta trade receivebles and contract assels as low, as its customers are located 1
several jurisdictions and industrics and opesate in largely independent markets.

Set out below is the information abont the credit risk exposure of the Company trade reccivables and contract assct using provisien matrix,

March 31, 2021 Kinangial Assets Trade receivables
Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total Less thau 1 |Morethan 1 [Total
year year
Estimated otal gross carrying amousi at default 152.3 1637 316.0 5.5 21.6 27.1
ECL- simplified approach (L.2H (sLn) (1529 0.9 {21.6) (22.5)
Net cartying amount 151.1 12.5 1636 4.6 - 4.4
March 31, 2020 Financial Asscis Trade receivables
L.ess than 1 year More than | year Total Less than 1 {Move than 1 |Total
yeur year
Esti d total gross carrying atount at defauli 181.7 181.1 362.9 33 22.3 25.6
ECL- simplified approach (1.2) {151.4)  (152.6) 0.2) 22,1} (22.3)
Net carrying t 180.5 20.8 210.3 35 0.2 32

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credil risk from balances with banks and financial jpslitutions is managed by the Company's ireasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are
made unfy with approved counterparties and within credit Emits assigned o each counterparty. Counterparty credit lircrits ar reviewed by the Compurry’s Board of Directors o an annual
basis, The Hnifs arc sel to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through coumerparty’s potential fatlure to muke payments.

The Company's maximurn cxposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is the carrying amounts as mentionad in Note 9. The
Company's maximui exposure relating to financial guarantees and (nancisl derivative instruments & noted in rote 30 and the liquidity lable below.

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract asset:
Tropairment allowanee measured a3 per simplified approach

Impairment allowance as on 1 April 2019 {22.1)
Add/ {less): asset priginated ar acquired 0.2)
Empaitment allowance 9 on 31 March 2020 (22.3)
Add/ {less): asset originated or acquired {0.2))
Impairment allowanse as on 31 March 2021 {22.5)
¢} Liquidity risk

Liquidity visk is the risk that the Company will encouster difficulty in meeting financis] cbligations due to shortage of funds. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismalches of the nuaturities of financial assets and liabilitics. The Company maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

On demand Less than 1 year 1t 5 = 5 years Total
years

Year ended
31-Mar-21
Trade and nther payables - 206.1 - - 206.1
Lease liabilitics - 3.0 5.4 - 8.4

i
Year ended
31-Mar-20
Trade and other payables - 203.0 - - 203.0
Lense liabilities 2.6 8.5 110

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations atise when a number of counterpartics are engaged i similar business activities, or activities In the same geographical region, or bave economic features that would couse their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly sffected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s
performance to developmenis affecting a particular industry.

P

Ins onder 1o avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified porifolio. id |
concenirations of credit risks are controlled and rzanaged accordingly.

1) Capital management :

For the purpose of the Company capital management, capital includes issued cquity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves atirtbutable to the equity helders of the parcnt. The
primary objective of the Company’s capilal management is to ensure that # maintains an cificient capital structure and healihy capital ratios in order (o support its business and max#mise
shareholder value. The Company moniters capital tsing a gearing ratio, which is nel debt divided by total capitat plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as Joans and borrowings kss cash and
cash equivalents.

Furéhe there sre 1o loan outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 and accordiply no disclosure is required for same,

In oxdier ta achieve this averail objective, the Compeny's capital management, areongst other things, aims to ensure that it meeis financial covenants attached Lo the interest-beating loans and
bomrowings that define capital structure requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capitzl during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.
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32.

33.

a)

b)

Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

During the year ended 31 March 2021 :

Retained earnings Tatal
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (0.4} 0.4}
0.4) {0.4)

During the year ended 31 March 2020 :
Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans ©.7) {¢.7)
0.7 .7

Significant aceounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and ligbilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or Hiabilities affected in fature periods

Other disclosures relating to the Company's exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

+ Capifal management Note 31

« Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 31

« Sensitivity analyses disclosares Notes 31

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, managernent has made the following judgerments, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statemnents:

Lease- Estimaiing the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) 1o measuré lease labilitics. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar
tetm, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The Company is followings effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.51%, with maturity the
between 2023 considering the IBR pertaining to rates of borrowings which the Comipany had in past.

Refer note 44 for lease note.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about futuwre developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occar.

Provision for expected credit tosses of trade receivables :

The Company uses a provision matrix to catculate ECLs for trade receivables. Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer eredit risk management.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly menitored. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expecled credit losses.

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time valuc of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The
maximum exposute to credit risk at the reporting date is the canrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 30.
The Company does not held collateral as security. The Cempany evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade
receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and indusiries and operate in largely independent
markets,

Refer note 31 for expected credit loss of trade receivables.
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4

Share-based payments

The Company provides share-based payment schemes to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. During the year ended
March 31, 2021, an employee siock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and grant are
mentioned in note 28 and 29.

Estimation of defined benefits and compensated leave of absence

The present value of the gratuity and compensated absences obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, fifure salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and jts long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management constders the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries.
Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expecied future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity and compensated absences obligations are given in note 15.

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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34, Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calenlated by dividing the lass for the year attribitable to equity kolders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the yew.

Diluted EPS amonats are calcutaicd by dividing the loss atiributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during (he period plus the

weighted averpe number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations;

For the year ended For the year caded
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Loss for the year aftributable to equity holders of the Company {128.1} (270.2)
Weighted average number of equily shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS (No.s) 24,64,823 2464823
Basic and diluted carning per, cquity share (Rs) (A/B) (323.7) {10961

15 C . 5 and contingencl
a, Commitments
At March 31, 2021 , the Company has commitments of Rs. 0.15 net of advances { March 31, 2020 : 0.5 ) relating to capital contracts.

. Contingencies
Contingent Liabilitics not provided for in respect of:

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts*

6.9

114

* Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debls comptises of:

Rs.0.3 { March 31, 2020; Rs 0.4) represents claim made by the end cuslomers due to delivery related issues, which are coatested by the Company and are pendmnp in various District Consumer

1 5.

Redressal Farums in Yndia, The management does not expect these claims to sucoged and accordingly no provision has been recognised in the fi

Rs. 6.6 { March 31, 2026: Rs 12.7) represcnts claim made by Spacewood Fumitures Pyt Ltd. (Pending before high conrt). The claims reporied in the previous period relating to Amway and

Quakley Inc., have been considered as remote and claims relating to Hindustan Unilever Limited the same have been settled during the year,

(This space has been lefi biank intentionally)
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36. Amounts due to micro and small enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 aggregate 1o Rs. 2.2 Cr (March 31,

2020 — Rs. 2.1 Cr} based on the information available with the Company:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2620
a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 2.2 21
accounting year
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in teroos of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amounts 43 32
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
¢} The amount of interest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.
d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ai the end of each accounting year; 0.0 0.1
¢) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, uniil such date when tbe - -
intercst dnes as above arc actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditre under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.
37. Earnings and expenditure in foreign currency ( on accrual basis)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2620
Earnings:
Revenue from advertisement income 25 0.4
tal 2.5 3.4
Expenditure:
Advertisement and publicity expenses 1.5 4.3
ILegal and professional fees 0.0 0.0
Software expenses 2.4 4.2
Miscellaneous expenses 0.0 0.1
Total 3.9 3.6
38. Unhedged foreign currency exposure
Particulas of unhedged foreign curmency exposure as at the reporting date:
Particulars Amount
Unhedged foreign currency payable 1.45 (USD 0.01 @ closing rate of | USD = Rs 73.20)

(March 31,2020: 1.35 (USD 0.01 @ closieg rate of } USD=Rs 75.30)

0.17 (Eura 0.01 (@ closing rate of 1 Euro = Rs 85,7

(March 31, 2020: 0.46 (Euro 0.0 @ closing rate of 1 Furo = Rs 83.05}

0.02 (GBP 0.01 & closing rate of 1 GBP = Rs 100.9}

{(March 31, 2020: Nit (GBP 0.01 (@ closing rate of 1 GBP = Rs93.6)

Unhedged foreign currency receivable 1.46 (USD 0.01 @ closing rate of 1 USD -+ Rs 73.20)

{March 31, 2020: 0.31 (USD 001 (@ closing rate of i USD = Rs 75.39)

No derivative is laken by the Company to hedge thesc foreign currency payables and receivables.

(This space has been left blank intenfionally)
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39. Related Party disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship

Names of relnted parties where control exists and/or with whom {ransactions have taken place during the year

Subsidiaries Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited
Unicommerce Seller Solution Private Limited {upto Deg 11, 2019)
NewFangled Intermnet Private Limited

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period
Assaciafes Tetra Media Private Limited

Key management personnel Kunal Bahl (Director)
Rehit Kwnar Bansa) (Director)
Vikas Bhasin (Clief Financial Officer}
Roshni Tardon (Company Secretary)

Enterprises for whom reporting entity is an assoeiate Starfish 1 Pie. Ltd

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transsctions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in sem’s length trmsactions. Qutstanding balunces if any, at the year-end are unsecured and
settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no gnarantees provided or received for any related party receivables os payables, For the year ended March 31, 2021 the Company has
recorded an impairment of receivables relating 1o ameunts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
tefated party and the market in which the related party operatos.

(This space kas been left blank infentionally)
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Related party transactions
The following table provides the tatal amount of transactions that have been cnlered into with related parties for the relevant financial year/period:

From_April 1, 2020 o March 31, 2021 From April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2010
Subsidiary Associates Key management Subsidiary | Associates | Key g {
personngl personnel
Transactions during the year:
Reimbursement of expenses
TUnicemmesce eSolations Private Limited - - - 1.1 - -
NewFangled Internet Private Limited 01 - - 0.2 - -
Sale of Fixed Assets
NewFangled Internet Private Limited - - - 2.0 - -
Loan Granted
NewFangled Internet Private Limited 6.8 - - 6.6 - -
Transfer of Gratity and Leave Encashment
NewFangled Internet Private Limited - - - 0.3 - -
Payment made for Gratuity and Leave Encashrent
NewFangled Internet Private Limited 02 - - - - -
Other Income
Unicommerce ¢Solutions Private Limited 0.0 - - 0.1 - -
Interest Income
NewFangled Internct Private Limited - - - [EX] - -
Salary, bonus and centribution to PF* - - 104 - - 159
Balance as at the year end:
Trade Payables
NewFangled Interaet Private Limited - - - G.3 - -
Non Current Investments (Refer note 5)
Tetra Media Private Limited - 15.0 - - 15.0 -
Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited 2703 - - 2703 - -
‘NewFangled Internet Private Limited 5.0 - . 5.0 - -
ESOP Invesiment (Refer note 5)
Unicommerce ¢Solutions Private Limitcd k1 - - 0.2 - -
NewFangled Internet Private Limited 0.7 - - 0.6 - -
Other financial zasets
‘NewFangled Internet Private Limited 13.7 - - 6.9 - -

*Nole : The remeneration o key managerial persors includes the amount considered in Form 16 for the cuuren financial year, However it does not include bonus, employee stock option ezpense
recorded on acerual basis. Further provision townrds gratuity, leave encashinent are nof considered as they sre deferruined on actuariat basis for the Company as a whole.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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40, The Compsny’s primary business segment is czlablishing, developing, designing, producing and conceptualizing direet marketing solutions through web and non-web based platforms.
Accordingly, there are no ather repostable business or geographical segments to be disclosed as per notified Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segmerits”,

41, During the previous yeas, Company completely utilised advertisement credit line of Rs 255 er available to it under its advertisement agreement with BCCL that was executed in FY 2015-16,
The satd ndvertisement agreement expised during the FY 2019-20 . BCCL has an option to exercise warrants that would be convertible to an aggregate of 15368 at a predetermined price at
the sole discretion of BCCL as per the Warrant Subscription Agreement exceuted between the Company and BCCL in FY 2015-16.

Further, daring the previous year, the Conpany had entered into a warrant subscription agreement with BCCL and allotted 30,000 sharc warrants to BCCL that are convertible into equity
shares at a predetermined price. The Company had simultaneously entered info an advertisement agrecment with BCCL, and secured a long-term credit dacility for defermed part payment of
advertising fee up to an amount of Rs. §5¢ Cr,

As the nature of transaction in substarce resuits in issuance of shares (0 BCCL as a part consideration towards adverliscment services, the Company has classified the Credit line liability
far bath the deals to Qther reserves in the previous year ended March 31, 2020

During the current year the Company has entered into the amendment agreement for the reduction of the long term credit facility to Rs. 25.9 Cr., resulting into reduction of the share warrant
money by Rs 13,3 Cr. , revised share warrants 3,369. The scttlement transaction as per this amendment agreement is yet to trigger, hence the amount has been reclassified to Other Payables
and the corresponding security deposit received ngainst the advertisement agreement has been rectassified under current portion of Other financial assers.

42. During the FY 20182019, the Company has allotted 99 share watrants to Hindustan Media Ventures Limited (HT), a5 per wamrant subscription agreement dated February 16, 2019, ata
warrant price of Rs. 15,00,000 /- per warrant aggregating to Re 14.8 cr a3 warrent subscription amount. The warrants carries an expiration term of 84 months from date of allotment and are
excrcisable at Rs, 13,500,000 /- pet warrans. The wamrants that are not excrcised by the holder on or before the expiry date shall lapsc and shail be void and of no further force or effect, The
warrant subscriptien aniount js the consideration for issuence of the warrants shall not be refundable under any circumstances irespective of whether the warrats are exercised or not
The Company had made the payment of Rs. 14.8 Cr to HT as an interest free security deposit in consideration for the line of credit provided by HT towards the release of the adverlisement
by the Compasy. Pursuast to the advertisement agreement entered with HT, the Company had entered into the long-term credit facility up fo an aggregate amounting fo Rs. 148.5 Cr.
Whereas the Company shall make the dawn payment to HT or the relevant media entity, the agreed percentage to the value of the advertisement released, the balance payable {net of down
payment) as the case may be, of the value of advertisement releascd shall constitute a part of and be counted towards the Un-utifised credit amount. The Ling ot Credit shall be available 1o
the Company from HT shall coatinue to be so available for a period of 7 (seven} years, henee the balance peyable towards the scrviees of Rs. 11.8 Cr rendered by HT or the relevant media
enlity been part of tine of eredit has classified under Trade and Other payubles.

During the curent year the Company has entered into the amendment agreement for the reduction of the long term credit fucility 1o Rs, 90.0 cr., resulting into reduction of the share warrant
money by Rs 5.8 Cr. , revised share warrants 60, The settlement transaction as per this smendment agreement is yet 1o trigger, hence the amourit has been reclassified to Other Payables and
the cortesponding seeurity deposit reccived against the advertisement agreement has been teclassified under curent portion of Other financial assets.

Tval:

43, Cust contrac
The Company has adopted IndAS 115 on Revenue from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective approack. The standard is applied retrospeetively only to contracis that
are not eompleted as at the date of initial appiication and comparative information is noi restated in the statement of profit and loss. The adoption of the standard did not have any material
impact on the recognition and measurement of revenue ond related items in the financial statements/results.

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Tradc Receivables 4.6 33

Contract Liabilitics 274 219

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days and are conditioned to be recovered purely en passage of time. Hence contract assets have been

considercd to be Nil.

Contract Liabilities includes deferred revenue and advance from customers.

Other disclosure as specified under IndAS 115 are not requised to be made as a matter of practical expedient, since the performance obligation is part of contract that has an original expected

duration of one year or less.

Contract linbilities are primarily from deferred revenue and customer advance for which services are yet 1o be rendered on the reporting date either in full or in parta. Contract lighilities are
recognized evenly over the period, being performance obligation of the Company.

Set out hetow is the amount of revenne recognised from;

Particolars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Amount included in contraet labilities at the begniming of the year 154 473

Right of refund liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Arising from rights of return 59 5.5

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Notes to standalone financial statements
(AN amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

44. Leases

The Company has taken premises on rent from Real Capital which has been accounted for sfter adoption of IndAS 116,

Refer below for details -

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year :

Particulars Right of Use Asset

As at April 01, 2019* 14.1
Additions -
Depreciation expense (3.1)
As at March 31, 2020 11.0
Additions -
Depreciation expense (3.1
As at March 31, 2021 19
Set out below are the carrying ameunts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year :

Particulars .ease liability

As at April 01,2019 13.4
Additions -
Accretion of interest 1.0
Payments (3.3
As at Miarch 31, 2020 1i.1
Additions -
Accretion of interest 0.8
Paymenis (3.5)
As at March 31, 2021 84
Current 3.0
Non-current 54

*(ypening balance of right-ofuse assets include Prepaid expenses amounting to Rs 0.8 Cr pertaining to long term portion of
4

Security Deposit.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.51%, with maturity between 2023

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars For the year March 31,
2021
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 3.1
Interest expense on lease liabilities (X3
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses} 0.5
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 4.5

(This space hias been left blank intentionally)
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45. The cutbreak of Coronavirus (COVID19) is enusing significant disturbances and slewdown of economic activity in India and across the globe. The Conmpany has evalusted impact of this
tions, there is no sighificans impact on the financial results, The Company will continue

1o closely monitor any material change arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business, if any.

pandemic on its business operations. Based on its review and current indicators of the economic condi

46. Subsequent to the baknee sheet date, fiere are no material adjusting/en edjusting subscquent events.

47. Provious year's figures have becn regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, ta conform to this year's classification,

As per out repott of even date

For §. R, Batliboi & Associates LLF

Chartered Accountants

ICAJ Firm Registration Nuwber: 101049W/E300004

per Nilgogshu Katriar

Parmer
Membership Numbsr: 058814

Piace of Signature: Mumbai
Diate: July 14, 2021

For and on behalf of board of directors of

Snapdeal Private Linited

Kups! Buh]
Directer
Place of Signature: Sricagar

W

Rosbni Tandon
Cowpany Sceretary

Place of Signature: New Trelhi
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Rohit Knmar Bansal
Directar
Place of Signatute: Gurugram

\

Vikas Bhasin
Chief Financial Officer

Place of Signature: Gurugram
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Shivani Maurya <shivani.maurya@snapdeal.com>

Policies

Prankur Chaturvedi <prankur.chaturvedi@snapdeal.com>20 October 2021 at 11:55
To: Sagar Batra <sagar.batra@jsalaw.com»

Cc: Smriti Subramanian <smriti@snapdeal.coms>, Shivani Maurya <shivani.maurya@s
Hi Sagar,

Can you please confirm how many out of the below policies needs to be finalize

"RESOLVED THAT the draft of the following plans and policies, provided to the
information, as required under applicable provisions of the Securities and Exc
and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 and the Securities and Exchang
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended (S8SEBI Insider Trading Regulati
hereby approved: [Note: Only the list of policies required to be adopted by th
the DRHP have been included. The following policies are required to be adopted
of filing of prospectus/listing: (a) plan for orderly succession for appointme
management, (b) policy on the diversity of board of directors to be formulated
remuneration committee, (c¢) policy for archival of website disclosures and pre
policy for the determination of material events and information, { (e) policy
subsidiaries ; (g) policy on sexual harassment; (h) Policy for inquiry in cas
gensitive information or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive informa
Trading Regulations; and (i)) risk management plan]

a) Corporate social responsibility policy;

b) Risk management policy;

c) Vigil mechanism policy/Whistle blower policy;

d) Nomination and remuneration policy;

e) Code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished p
SEBI Insider Trading Regulations;

£) Code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by its emplo
towards achieving compliance with SEBI Insider Trading Regulations;

g} Code of conduct for all members of the Board and senior management;
h) Policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealing wi
criteria of granting omnibus approval;

i) familiarization programme for independent directors;

i) policy on the diversity of board of directors to be formulated by t

committee; and

Regards,

20/10/2021, 12:10Snapdeal.com Mail - Policies
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/o/?ik=596@3fb872&view:pt&search=al1&permmsgid=m
a
2/2
Prankur Chaturvedi
Associate Director @ Legal and Compliance
M: +91 9387017749
6th Floor, Capital Cyberscape, Sector- 59, Golf Course
Extension Road Gurugram, Haryana, India
Save trees. Please do not print this email unless
absolutely necessary.
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 2 Senpan et Mo
Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel: +91 22 681S 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Snapdeal Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Snapdeal Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and its associate comprising of the consolidated Balance
sheet as at March 31 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive
income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates as at March 31, 2021, their consolidated loss
including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidaied Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We ase independent of the Group and associate in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Other Information
The Holding Compary’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Ditector’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

5.R. Batliboi & Asscciales LEP, a Limiled Liabillty Parthership with LLP Identily No. AAE 4295
Reqd. Offlce : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B’, 3rd Fleor, Kolkata-700 Q16
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In conneetion with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstaterent of this other information, we are requited to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a trae and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including
its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its associates
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its assaciates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its
associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we excreise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nisk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovetride of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates of which we are the independent auditors, to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Other Matter

(a)

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of one subsidiary,
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 0.7 Cr as at March 31, 2021, and total revenue of
Rs 0.8 Cr and net cash outflow of Rs 0.5 Cr for the year ended on that date. These financial statement
and other financial information have been audited by other auditor, which financial statements, other
financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. The
consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit of Rs.1.5 Cr for the year
ended March 31, 2021, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one
associate, whose financial statements, other financial information have not been audited and whose
unaudited financial statements, other unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the
Management. Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of one subsidiary and one associate, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and associate, is
based solely on the report of such other auditor and the information certified by the management,

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reparts of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other

auditor on separatc financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary and associate, as
noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b

(c)

(d)

(e)

We/the other auditor whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies
and associate companies, none of the directors of the Group’s companies and its associates,
incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and associate company,
incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 17 to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries and associates incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2021

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of

the

subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate in its consolidated financial
statements — Refer Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii, The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term

contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2021.

jii. There were no amounis which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate, incorporated in
India during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Rlaugh 4ok

per Nil
Partner

hgshu Katriar

Membership Number: 058814
UDIN: 21058814AAAABS8365
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 14, 2021




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP |

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SNAPDEAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the conselidated financial statements of Snapdeal Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group”) and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associates, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting critetia established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of intemnal financial controls, both, issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal conirol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepatation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may detetiorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31,2021, based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E360004

per Nilghgshu Katriar
Partnelrfv‘z}'l

Membership Number: 058814
UDIN: 21058814AAAABS8365
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: July 14, 2021
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Cousclidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(All amounfs in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Notes Asat As at
March 31, 2621 March 31, 2024
Assets
Non-current asseis
Property, plant and equipment 3 245 41.6
Right-of-use assets 47 7.9 110
Goodwill 4 79.3 793
Other Intangible assets 4 - 1806
Finuncial assets
Other finarcial assets [ 12.6 414
Prepayments 1 37 11.7
Other non~cusrent assets 8 16.7 310
144.7 234.0
Current assets
Financial asscis
Investments [ 161.0 397.5
Trade receivables 9 11,8 71
Cash and cash equivaient 10 41.6 24
Bank balances other than above 11 221.2 814
Other financial assets 6 1533 150.0
Prepayments 7 7.7 6.0
Other current assets 8 48.2 46.9
650.8 6913
Total assets 7955 9253
Ci =R
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share copital 12 0.2 02
Other equity
Money received against share warranfs 36.1 353
Share preminm 12 11,028.6 11,028.6
Retained eamings {10,938.4) (10,812.3)
Other reserves 12 382.1 3812
Total equity 518.6 653.0
Non-Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 47 54 8.5
Provisions 14 0.0 0.1
Net employee defined benefit obligations 15 9.0 B.5
i4.4 17.2
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Eease liabilities 47 30 2.6
Trade and cther payables i6
Tetal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 22 2.1
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 2063 2042
Deferred revenue 17 0.8 160
Provisions 14 G5 103
Net employee defined benefit obligations 15 83 39
Other current labilities 8 11.9 11.0
262.5 2551
Total liabilities 2769 2723
Total equity and liabilities 1955 925.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consalidated financia) statements.
As per our report of even date.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associutes LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E3000064

Flaspls ki

per Nikngshu Katriar ’f{ -
Partner (<
Membership Number: 058814 il r
N3
e

Place of Signature: Mumibai
Date: July 14,2021

For and on behalf of board of directors of
Snapdeal Private Limited

M "Y«Eu&%&q»f

Kurat Bahl Rohit Kumar Bansal

Dircctor Director

Place of Signature: Srinagar  Place of Signature: Gurugram.

ra

{ "

| 4 #
Rashni Tanden ‘Vikas Bhasin
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Snapdeal Private Limited
Consolidated Staterent of Profit or Loss for the year ceded March 31, 2021

(Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations 19 471.8 846.4
Other income 20 8.3 §L7
Tinance income 21 30.2 58.5
TFotal income 510.3 916.6
Expenses
Marketplace expense 22 3928 309.8
Employee benefits expense 23 161.2 1817
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 50.3 304
Finance costs 25 1.4 Lo
Other ¢xpenses 26 30.7 87.6
‘Fotal expense 636.4 5,211.1
Loss before share in associate and a joint venture, exceptional items and tax €126.1) (294.5)
Share of profit/{loss) of an associate 1.5 {0.1)
Loss before exceptionnl items and tax {124.6) (294.6)
Exceptional Jtems 27 - (20.9)
Loss before tax {124.6) 273.7),
Income tax expense 28 0.5 -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlicr period 0.0 (0.2)
Lass for the year (125.5) (273.9)
Other comprehensive loss
Other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
years:
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans Linbility 0.6} (0.8)
Income tax effect . B

(0.6) (0.8)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.6) (0.8)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of fax (126.1) (274.7)

Loss per equity share [nominal value of share Re.1{March 31, 2020: Re 1} ]
Basic and Diluted {loss) per share conmputed on the bagis of (loss) for the periad 35
atiributable to equity holders of the Company { In Rs.]

(509.2) (1,111

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consokidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For 8. R. Badiboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Snapdeal Private Limited
Caonsolidated Cash Fiow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amovnts in INR Cr, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particalars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Loss hefore tax (125.5) 273.9)
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax for the period to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impatrment of property, plant end equipment 18.5 149
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 287 124
Depteciation ot ROU assets 3.1 3
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 9 02
Bad debts / advances writien off’ 0.4 0.7
Reversal of Tmpaimment for Investments in other entities - (20.9)
Share-based paymen$ expensc 10.6 13.4
Impairment allowance no longer required {net) - {0.2)
Interest charges 1.0 1.4
Liabitities / provisions no longer required writlen back (5.8} {(5.4)
Nel gain on sale of current invesiments {0.0) N
Interest Income on bank deposits (28.5) {53.2)
Unwinding of discount on financial asseis at amortised cost 0.1 (1.0)
Warking capital adjusiments:
{Decrease} in trade and other payables (11.3) (388.4)
[Decrease) in provisions and net employee defined benetit liabilities (1.2 3.1
Increase/{(decrcase) in other Labilitics 538 (16.5)
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (5.1} 43
Decrease in other recicvables and prepayments. 12,1 106.7
Cash used in operations (105.0) (607.6}
Income Taxes refund (net of taxes paid) 13.7 5.9
Cash flow used in operating activities (A) (91.3) (600.7)
Cash fow from investing activities
Creation of Right-ol-use - (13.3)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12.1) (20.0)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and cquipment - 0.1
Sale of current investments (net) 236.5 105.2
Proceeds of on account of Sale of Investments in other entitics - 302
(Purchase}/Redemption/maturity of bank deposits (having original matutity of more than three {124.00 168,00
maoenths) {net)
Interzst received on bank deposits 40.3 67.8
Cash flow from investing activities (B) 1407 338.0
Cash flow from / {used in) finanting activities
Repavment of borrowings - (13.6)}
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 3.5 [&X}
Interest paid (1.0 {1.4)
Money received against share warrants - 150
Reclassification o Equity Reserve {Refer note 13) 03 254.0
Cash flow from/{used in) financing activities (C) 4.0 250.7
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 45.2 {12.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 24 14.4
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 47.6 2.4
Components of cash and cash equivalents: (refer nate 1)
Cash on hand 0.0 09
Balances with banks:
— On current gccount 47.6 24
— Deposits with eriginal maturity of less than three months 0.0 0.0
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations £7.6 24
Total Cash and cash cquivalenis 41.6 14

The accomipenying notes arc an integral part of the consotidated financial statements.

As per our repori of even date.

For and on behalf of board of divectors of
For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Snapdea] Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 141049W/E300004 B
J— F7 . o
Roupho doli f'zwfﬂ Tt o]

Kitnial Bahl

H] Director
Place of Signature: Srinagar

per Niyngshu Katrior

Partner
Membership Number: 058814

Place of Signature: Mumbai Roshni Tandon
Date: July 14, 2021 Company Secretary

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Rohit Kumar Bansal
Diregtor
Mace of Signeture: Gurugram
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Vikas Bhasin
Chief Financial Officer

Place of Signature: Gurugram




Snapdeal Private Limifed
Notes to conselidated finsncial statements
(Al amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

1. Corporate information

Snapdeal Private Limited and its subsidiaries and asvociate {(hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘the Group’) are mainly ged in the busi of establishing, developing,
designing and conceptualizing direct marketing and sales promotion solutions through web and non-web based platforms. The Group is alse involved in providing various kinds of
warehousing solutions, The principal activitics of the Group are disclosed in Note 2.2,

The Gronp constitutes of the Private Limited companies incorporated and domiciled in India, The holding corapany Snapdeal Private Limited has its registered office situated ot D-
181, Suite 181-TR4, Okhla Indusirial Area, Phasc-1, New Delli ~ 110020,

2. Sigpificant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consotidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of Companics Act,
2013 (the Act} read with Companies {Indizn Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 {as amended tiom time 1o time) issued by Ministry of Corporate affsirs and presentation reguirements
of Division 1T of Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule HI).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at faix value or revaiued
amournt:

- Derivative Financial Instruments

- Ceriain financial assets and liabilities measured at [air value (refer accounting palicy regarding {inancial ingtraments),

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™ through a notification dated March 24, 2021, amended Division I[ of Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013. These amendments are
applicabls for the reporting period beginning on or afler April 1, 2021, The amendment sncompasses significant 2dditions] disclosure requirements and also inchides certain chaoges

1o the existing disclosures. The amendments ate extensive and the Company will evalaate the same Lo ive effect to them as reouired by law.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded 1o the nearest crotes (INR 00,00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Basis of consotidation

The consolidated financial statemments comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2021 . Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, ta variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an
investee if and only if the Group has:

- Pawer over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability ta direct the relovant activities of the investee)

- Exposgure, or righis, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in confre). To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or sumilar
rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevani facts and circumstances in assessing whether it Has power over an investee, including:

- The contractual arrangerent with the ether votc holders of the investee

- Rights arising from other contracma] arrangements

- The Group's voling rights and potential voling rights

- The sise ol the group’s holding of voting righis relative to the sive and dispersion of the holdings ol the ather voling rights helders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and ciecumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidntion of
a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses contral of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated financial siatements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 1o
conirol the subsidiary.

Copselidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in sisilar circumstances. If a member of the group wses
accounting policies other than thosc adopted in the consolidated Gnancial slalements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments ase made 1o
that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statzmwents to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consclidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Group, i.e., year ended on March 31, 2021.
When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purpeses, additional financial infermation as of the
same date 25 the financial statements of the parent to ¢nable the parent o conselidate the finaneial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Cousolidation precedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilitics, cquity, income, cxpenses and cash flows of the parent with these of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expetises of lhe
subsidiary ase based on the ameunts of the assets and liabilitics recopiised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offisct (climinate) the catrying amount ol the parens’s investment m each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary, Busingss combinations policy explains
how to acccunt for any related goadwill.

(<) Eliminate in full itragroup assets and liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash Hows relatng to transactions between entities of the gronp (prefits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that ate cecognised t assets, such as inventery and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup fosses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition
in the consolidated financial slatements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to wmporary differences that arisc from the climination of profits and losses resulling from iniragroup
transactions.

Profit or loss and each compenent of other comprehensive income (OCI) are atiributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
resulls in the noncoatrolling interesis having a deficit bal ‘When y, adj are made 10 the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
int linc with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group asscts and Habilities, equity, income, cxpenses and cash flows relnting to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership inteest of a subsidiary, without a loss of conirol, is accounled for as an cquity transaction.

1# the Giroup loses conirol over & subsidjary, it:

- Derecognises the assets {inchuding goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

- Derscognises the castying amoust of any non-controlling inlerests

= Derccogniscs the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

- Recogrises the fir vatue of the consideration received

- Reeognises the fir value of any investment retained

- Recognises any surplus or deficil in profil or loss

- Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCY to profit or boss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities




Snapdeal Private Limited
Nutes to lidated fi iaf
(ANl amonnts in INK Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

2.3 Summary of significant sccounting policies

a. Business combinations and goodwill

Bugsiness combinations are accounted for wsing the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisitien is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair vatue and the amownt of any noncontrolling inferests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the noncontrolling
interests in the acquiree a4 fair value or at the propertionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related cosls are expensed as incurred,

The Group determings hat it has acquired n business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input and a subslantive process (hat together signilicantly contribute to
the ability to ercale outputs, The zequired process is considered substantive i€ it is erilical to the ability ie continue produsing owtpuis, and the inpuls scguired nclude an erganised
workforce with the mecessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered
unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the lisbilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include
contingent linbilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their ecguisition faic values Irrespective of the fact thar owrflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination ate measured 3t the basis indicated below:

- Deferred tax assets or linbilities, and the assets or liabilitics related to employee benefit ar 15 are gnised and 1 d in accordance with Ind AS 12 Incorne Tax and
Ind AS 19 Employce Benefits respectively.

« Liabilities or equity instrumenis related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or sharc — based payments amangewents of the Group entered into fo replace share-
based payment arrangements of the cquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date,

- Assets {or dispesal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordmce with Ind AS 105 Non-curvent Agsets Held for Sale and Di inued Operations are n d in
accordance with thet standard.

- Reacquired tights are mensured 1t a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the
reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a busi it the financial assets and liabilities sssumed for sppropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertiment conditions as at the acquisition date, This inchdes the separation of embedded derivatives in host coniracts by the acquiree.

It the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equily interest 18 re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resoling gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss or OCY, as apprapriate.

Any contingent ideracion to be trapsferred by the acquirer is recognised st fair velue al the acquisition date. Contingent consideration <lassifted as en asset or lizhilsty that is &
finazicial instrnment gnd within the scope of Ind AS109 Financizl Instnuments, is measesed at fair value with changes in far value recognised in profit or fess, Tf the contingent
cansideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, £1 is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is ¢lassified as equity is not re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement s accounted for within cquity.

Goodwilt is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the considerntion transferred and the amount recognised for non-controliing interests, and any previous
interest held, ever the net identifiable assets nequired and liabilities assamed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the agpregate consideration transferred, ile
Cironp Te-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the asscts acquired and all of the Habilities assumed and reviews the procedures used Lo measure the amounts 1o be
recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in am excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCI and accumubated in equity as capital reserve, However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recogaises the gain directly in equity as capital
reserve, without routing the same through OCL

After injtial recognition, goadwill is measured at cost tess any accumulsted jmpainnent losses. For the purpese of impairment testing, poodwill acquired in a business combination is,

from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating uniis that are expected 10 benefit from the combination, irespective v whether other assets or liabilitics of’

the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unil to whick goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable ameamt of the cash pemerating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss ig allocated firs to reduce the carrving zmount of any pondwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount ¢f each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recopnised in profit or loss, An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is aot reversed in subsequent periods.
Where goodwill hes been allocated to a cosh-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or tess on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circwnstances is measured based on the relative values of the

dispased operation and the portion of the cash-genorating unit retained.

If the initiol accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combinstion oceurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the
jterns for which the accounting is mcomplete.

Thoss provisional amourts are adjusted through geodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or labalities are recogmised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date, These adjustments are colled as measurement

period adjustmenis. The measurement periad does not excced one period from the acquisition date.

{This space has been left blank intentionaliv}




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements
{All 2mounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

b. Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant inffuence. Significant influence iz the power to participate in the financial and eperating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the partics that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contracmally agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevany activities require unanimeus consent of the parties sharing control

The considerations made in determining whether significant inffuence or joint conral are similar to those necessary to delermine control over the subsidieries.

The Group’s investments in its associate md joint venturc are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate of a joint venture is
initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adiusted to recognise changes in the Group's shere of net assets of the associate or joint ventare sinee the
acquisition date, Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venturs is incladed in the carrying ameunt of the investment and is ot tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate or jeint venture. Any change m OCTof those investees is presented as part of the
Group’s OCL In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associste or joint venture, the Group 1ecognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and logses resuliing from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the
cxtent of the interest in the associate or joint venture,

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a jeint venhure equals vr exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s nel lnvestment in the associate or joint venture), he crtity discontinues recognising its share of further losscs. Additional logses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred Jegal or constructive obligations or made paymenls on bebalf of the associate or joint venture. I the associale or jeint venture subsequently reporls
profits, the cntity resumes recoguising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of lasscs not recognised

The aggregat: of the Group’s sherc of profiit or loss of an associate and a jeint verture is shown on the fage of the statoment of profic and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture ase prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
pelicies in line with these of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group detcrmines whether it is v to recognise a0 impai loss on its investment in its associate or joipt venture. At each
reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the ssseciate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group
calculates the ameunt of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as *Sharc of
profit of an associzte and a joint venture” in the statement of profit or loss,

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fiir value, Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associale of joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and preceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or Joss.

¢. Current versus non-carrent classificatlon

The Group preseats asscls and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current non-current classification. An asset is lreated as current when it is:
- Expeeted to be realised or intended ta be sold or consumed in normal aperating cycle

- Held primarily for the purposc of trading

- Experted (0 be realised willus twelve montla afier the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting petiod

All other assels are closgified as non-current.

A linbility is current when:

- Itis expected 1o be sextled in normal operating cycle

« It is held primarily for the purposs of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reperting period, of

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the lisbility that could, at the opien of the counterparty, result in its setlemerit by the issue of equity instruments de not affect its classification,
The Group classifies all other Liabilitics as non-current.

The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

d. Foreign currencies

The Group™s consolidated financial statements arc presented in INR, which is also the Group’s functional curreney. For ¢ach entity the Group determines the functional curreney and
ftems included in the financial statements of each entity are measured useng that funcional currency. The Group uses the dircet method of consolidation and on disposat of a foreign
aperstion the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the ameunt that ariscs from using this wethod.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are inftially recorded by the Group at the spot rates at the date the trunsaction first qualifies for recognition, However, for practical reasens, the
Group uscs an avetage rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the fransaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange ot the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on setllement or translation of monetary itoms are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of the foitowing:

- Bxchangs differences arising on menetary itetns that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign operation are recognised in profit or Joss in the separate financial
statements of (he roporting ¢ntity or the individus] financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriste. In the financial statements that include the foreign operation and the
reporting entity (¢.g, consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is & subsidiary), such exchange differences are recogaised initally in OCIL These exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or less on disposal of the net investment.

- Exchange differences arising on monetary iteros that arc designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCT uatil the
net investment {5 dispased of, at which time, the cumulative amouat is reclassified to profit or loss.

- Tax charges and credits atiributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are tanslated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial ansactions. Non-monetary
items measured al fair value in a foreign curreney are translated using the cxch rates at the date when the fair value is detesmined. The gain or Joss anising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair vatue is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss en the change in fair value of the item (i.¢., translation differences on itoms whese fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCT or profit or less, respectively).
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In determining the spot exchange e to bse on initial recogoition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) an the derecognitton of a non-monctary asset O non-monctary
liability relating to advance consideration, the date of (he transaction is the datg on which the Group inktially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are muliiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration

Group companies

On conselidation, the assets and labilitics of foreign operations are (ranstued into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at fhe reporting date and their statements of prafit or loss are
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaetions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average rate
approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translztion for consolidation are recognised in OCL Op disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCT relating to that particular foreign operation 1s recognised in profit or less.

Any goodwill adising in the acquisition/ business combinalion of a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2016 and any fair value adjustments to the corrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and Linkilities of the foreign operation and transiated 4t the spot mate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any goodwill or fiir vafue adjustments arising in business combinations/ acquisitions, whick oceurred before the date of transition to Ind AS (1 April 2016), are treated as assets and
liabilities of the entity rather than as assets and lisbilities of the foreign operation. Therefore, those assets and lfabilities are non-mornetary items already expressed in the funcrional
currency of the parent and no further translanon differences ocour.

Gain or loss on & subsequent disposal of any foreign aperation excludes translation differcaces that aroge before the date of transition but includes onby transtation differonces arising
after the ransidon date,

¢, Fair vaiue measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at cach balance sheet date.

Faix value is the price that would be received ta sell an asset ar paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between miarket participants at the measurement date, The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or linbility, or

- In the abscnce of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lisbitity

The principal or the most advantageous marke! must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or & iability is measured using the asswmptions that market participants would use when gricing the asset or Jiability, assuming that market participanis act
in their coonermic best interest,

A fair value of a noti-i ial asset takes inlo account a market participant’s nbility o generate ccanomic benefits by using the asset in its highesi and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset {n its highest and best use

The Group uses vaination techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data ars available to measure Thir value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable nputs.

All nssets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorsed within the fajr value hierarchy, described as {olfows, based on the
lowest level input ihat is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level } — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2— Valuation technignes for which the lowest level fupu that is significant to the finr value mensurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techiques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the Tair value measurement is imobservable

For assets and liabitities that are recognised in the financial statements on 2 recusting basis, the Group determines whether tronsfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
Te-nssessing categorisation (based on the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group's CFQ determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at
[air value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for sale in discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant Yabilities, such as contingent consideration,
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon onnually by the CFO. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The CFO decides, after discussions with the Group’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At cach reporting date, the CFO analyses the movements in the values of assefs end liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-asscssed as per the Growp's
accounting policies. For this analysis, the CFO verifics the major pute applied in the latest valuation by agrecing the information in the valuation computation to contracts
and other relevant docaments.

The CFO also compares the change in the fair value of cach asset and liability with retevant external sources to determine whether the change is rensonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company hss detenmined closses of assets and liabilitics on the basis of the nature, cheracteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This nole summariscs accounting poficy for fair vaiue. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the retevant notes.

» Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and asswoptions (note 31, 32, 34)

» Quantitative disclosures of fair vatue measurement higrarchy (note 31)

» Financial instruments (including those carried at amorttised cost) (nates 6, 16,47, 31, 32)

f. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will low to the group and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment js
being mads. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account conlractual defined terms of payment and cxcluding taxes or dutics
collected on behalf of government. The specific recognition criteria described below mwst also be met befere revenue is recoguized:

Revenue for marketing fees

Revenues from opetating an internet portal providing all sorts of information about various deals for products and services are recognised upon rendering of services and measured on
delivery of producis. The Group collects service taxes on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence, they are excluded
from revenue. Revenues from products shipped are deferred titl it is delivered to the ultimate customers and is disclosed as deferred revenue. Revenues [rom advertisernenis are
recognised as and when displayed in the internct portal.
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Other operating revenue

Revenues from ancillary activities e.g. providing services for collection, fulfilment centre, packaging facililation, courier facilitation, RTO/RPR fecs, closing fees and freight charges
and freight charges recovered from the cte. are anised upon rendering of services and measured on delivery of produets. Service level penaltics for delay, faulty
deliveries, stock aut eic. recovered from the selless are recognised once yight to recover is established and it 15 reasonable 10 expect ultimate collection. Revenue fiot reverse
shipments e.g. courier fees, payntent collection fees etc. are recognised upon delivery of products te sellers and it is reasonable to expect nltimate collection.

Further Revenues from Saftware services are recognised which comprises fixed income per transaction unit and acerues as celated transactions are performed by customers. Each
Transaction unit is defined as single shipment and return shipraent as performed by customers. Revenue from services are deferred till it is recieved by the customers and is disclosed
as deferred revenue.

Interest

For all debt ipstruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through ather comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest mic (EIR}. EIR
is the rate that exsctly discounts the estimated firture cash payments ot receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carying smount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by
censidering all the contractual terms of the financial instrumem (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Intercst incortie is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Unbilled revenue

Receivables are generally carried a1 the eriginal invoiced amount, less an allowance for doubtful reccivables where there is objective evidence that balances will not be recovered in,
full. Unbilled receivables is recognised (o (he cxtent for the services not billed af the vear end.

g. Taxes

Current income tax

Cutrent income-tax is measured at the amount expected Lo be paid 1o the tax authorities in accordance wilh the Income-lax Act, 1961 enacted in Tndia and tax laws prevailing in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted oy substantively enacted. at the reporting date.

Current income 13x relating to ilems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in cquity). Currenl fax iterms as5¢
recogmised In comelation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or dircetly n equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject e interpretation and establishes pravisions where appropriate The group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty tor each
unceriain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expested value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the reatment.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the Lax bases of asseis and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
a1 the reporting date.

Deferred tax Liabilitics are recognised for all taxablc temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assct or liabilily in a transaction that is niot 2 busmess cornbination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accourting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respeet of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and intetests in joint ventures, when the timing of the revessal of the wemporary
differcnces can bs conirolled and it 18 probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in ihe foreseeabic future

Deferred tax zssets are recognised for all deductible tenporary differences, the casty forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recoghised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax fosses can
be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or Liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, 2t the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or lass

- In respect of deductible temporary differences nssoctated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and inferests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised oaly to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse In the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available agninst which the temporary differences can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is revicwed 4l cach reporting date and reduced to {he cxient that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available o
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised,

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assesscd at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that fiztre taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mensured af the tax rates that are expectad to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is seitled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) tast have been cnacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income of in equity). Deferred tax ilems are
recogniscd in cosrelation to the underlying transaction gither in OCT or dircctly in equity.

eferred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilities are offiet if n legally enforceable right exists to set off curnent tax assets against current lizhilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable enlily and the same taxation awthority.

Tax benefits acquired 35 part of a business combination, but net satisfying the criteria for separate recogrition at that date, ars recognised subsequently if new information sbout facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill reloted to that acquisition if they result from new information
obtained about facts and circumsiances existing a? the acquisition date. If the carrying amoust of goodwill is zero, any remaming defeered tax benefils are recognised in OCL capital
reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain parchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised arc recognised in profit or loss.

(This space has been left blank intentionaily)
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h. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and quipment and capita] work :n progress are stated at cost, net of accu P and ¢ impairment lasses, if any. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs if the recognition criterfa are met. When signilicant parts of property, plant and equipment are required 1o
be teplaced at intervals, the Group deprecintes them separately based on their specific usetul fives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, is cost is recognised in the
cartying amount of the property, plant and equipment &5 a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, Al other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or Yoss as
incumred.

Depreciation is caleulated on a straight-ling basis using the zates arrived at based on the useful lives estimatcd by the management. The Group has used the following useful lives 10
provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

{d 1

Category of assets Estimated useful life
Compuicrs ad data processing units 3 - 6 years

Vehicles 8 vears

Electric equipment 10 years

Furniture and fittings 10 years

Office cquipment 5 years

Depreciation on assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata basis from the date of purchase of fixed assets.

Leasehold Improvements are amortised on a straight Line basis over the lower of lease term or useful life of 1he respective nssets.

An item of property, plant and equipment end any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no fiture economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain er loss arising on derccognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included inthe
income staterncnt when the asset is derecognised.

The residnzl values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

“The Group has a policy to perform the physical vertification of the fixed assets once i every thres years.

i. Intangiblc assets

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initiad recognition al cost. The cost of intangible assels acquired in & business combination is therr falr value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumylated amortisation and accumulated fmpairment Josses. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised development cests, are not capitalised and the related expenditare is reflected in profit or toss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The usefal lives of intangible asseis are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amartisation period and the amoriisation methed for an mtangible asset with & finite useful life arve reviewed ut least at the end of each reporting period, Changes in the expected
usefut life or the expeeted patiern of consumption of fatuse economic benefits embadied in the asset ars considered 1o modify the amottisation period or method, as appropriate, and
st reated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation cxpense on intangible assets with finiitc lives is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of mnother asset. Techuology cost includes all the manpowes expenses associated with development, acquisition, implemeriation, deployment,
mainienance of technology, Further capitalisation of techwology cost is done based on 2 years asscssient periormed and the Company shall perform a recoverability test at the year
2nd to determing if an impairment loss has occurred by evalusting whether the futute value of the assets yndiscounted cash flows is less than the book value of the asset. If the cash
flows are Jess than book vaiue, the loss is measured & corvespondingly recognised .

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives arc not emartised, but are tesled for impairment annually, eitber individually or at the cash-generating unit Jevel. The assessmeni of
indefinite life is reviewed annuzlly to detcrmine whether the indefinite Jife continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful ife from indefinito to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

An jtangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (.¢., af the date the recipient ebtains control) or when no firture economic benefite ave expeeted from its use or disposal. Any gain or
Toss arising upon derecognition of the nsset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cerrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Development costs

Development expenditures on ar individual project are recegnised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrale:
« The technical feasibility of compteling the intangible asset so that the aszct will be avaitable for use or sale

- It intention 10 complete and its ability and miention to use ot sell the asset

- How the asset will generate future economic benetits

- The availability of resources to complete the usset

- ‘The ability 1o measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure 23 an asset, the asset is carried at cost Jess any accumutated amortisation and accumnlated impairment Josses.
Amersisation of the asset begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit, Amertisation expense is
recognised in the statement of profil and loss unkess such expenditure forms past of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the assel i3 tested for
impairment annually.

j- Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction: or production of an asset that necessarily takes o substantial period of time fo get ready for its intended use or sale
are cepitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other botrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in conacetion with the berrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,

(This space has been left blank intentionaliv)
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k. Leases

The Group assesscs at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a Yease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an idenlificd assel Jor 8 period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as 2 lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurernent approach for all leases, except for shori-term leasca and leases of fow-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right 16 use the underlying assels.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assels at the commencement date of the Tcase (Le., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-ol-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accutnvlated depreciation and impairment losscs, and adjusted for any remensarement of fease lisbilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilitics
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or bsfore the commencement date fess any lense incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated en a
straight-ling basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated nseful lives of the assets

If awncrship of the teased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the Tease term or ihe cost reflects the exercise of 2 purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful lifc of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are alse subject to impairment, Refer to the accounting policies in section (1) Impairment of nop-financial assets.

ii} Lease Liubilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Group recagnises lease liabilitics measured at the present value of leasc payments to be made over the tease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease paytucnts that depend on an index or a zate, and amounts expected
1o be paid under residual vaiue guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be enercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflecs the Group exercising the oplion to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rale are
recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the avent or condition that kriggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Grop uses its incremental bomowing rate at the lease commencement date becevse the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased ta refiect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lense payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of tease liabilities is resmeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (&.g,, changes to fisture payments
resulting from a change in 2n index or rate vsed to determine such lease payments} ot a change in the assessment of an option to puschase the underlying asset.

jii) Short-term leases and lenses of low-value assets

Tlie Group applies the shert-tesm lease recognition exemption to its shori-lern leases of mackinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a puschase aption). It also apptics the lease of low-valuc nasets secognition excruption to leases of office equipment that arc considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term Jeases and leases of low-value agsets ere recagnised as cxpense on & straight-lin bagis over the lcase ter.

1, Fmpairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting dale, whether there is an indication that an asset may 4 impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment tesling fbr an asset is
required, the Group estimates the assel’s recoverable amount, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higler of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asser does not generate cash inflows that are largely independens of those from other
assets oy Groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exsecds its recoverable amoint, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to ils recoverable amount.

Tn assessing value in use, the cstimated future cash (lows are diseounted 1o their present vahe using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assesaments of the time value
of meney and the risks specific to the asset. [n determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market fransactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriale valuation model is used. These caleylations are cormoborated by valuation multiples, queted share prices for publicly traded companies ot other available fair value
indicators.

The Group bases its impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUSs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calcutations generally cover a pexiod of five periods. For longer periods, a fong-term growth rate is calcutaled and applied to project future
cash flows afler the fifth period. To estimate cash Nlow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flew projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent periods, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term avernjre
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment logses of continuing operations, inciuding impairment on inv ics, are recognised in the of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the
revatuation surplus taken to ©CL For such properties, the impairment is recogtised in OCT up o the amount of any previous revalvation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwiil, an assessment is made at each reporting dale to determine whether therg is an indication that previously recogised impairment tosses oo tonger exiat
or have decreased. I such indication exists, the Group eslimates the asset’s or CGU™s recovetable amount, A previously recognised isnpairment loss is reversed only if there has been
a change in the assutptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the lost impairment loss was recopnised. The revessal is limited so that the carrying amaunt of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been detertnined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
saset io prior periods. Such reversal is recognised i the slatement of profit or toss unless the asset is carried at a revalucd amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested Tor impaisment anmually near year ead and when cireumslances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Tpairment is determined for goedwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU {or Group of CGUs) 1o which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the

CGIJ i5 lcss than its camrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment Josses relating ¢o goodwill cannot be reversed in future perieds.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful fives are tested for impainment annually at the CGU level, as approptiate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying valuc may be
impaired.
(This space has been lef blank intentionally}
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m. Pravisions

General

Provisicns are recognised when the Group has a presenr obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, it is probeble that an outflow of resources embodyibg economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the ameunt of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimburscment is recognised as a separate asset, bt only when the reimbursemens is vistuafly certain. The ¢xpense relating
to a provision is presented in the statement of prafit and loss net ef any reimbursement.

If the effect of the lime value of money is material, provistons are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When
discomting is used, the increasc in the provision dug to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provision for sales return
Provision towards Sales Retumn is tade on the basis of best estimate of expected product returas subsequent to the period end based en histerical experience.

Provision for bonus
Provision for bonus is recognised on tme proportion basis over the peried of service.

Pravisions for onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognizad when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future
obligations under the contract, The provision is measured at the present valuc of the Jower of the expected cost of tetminating the contract and (e expected net cost of continwing
with the contract. Before a provision is cstablished, the Company recognizes any itapairment toss on the assets associated with that contact,

1. Retirement and other employee henefits

Retirement berefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribulion scheme. The Group has no obligation, olher than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance shest date exceeds tie contribution already paid, the deficit payable 1o the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid excesds the contribution dug for services seceived before the balance shest date, then cxcess is recognized ns an assel 1o the cxient that the pre-
payment will lead 1o, for example, a reduction in [oture payment er a cash refund.

Tn accardance with Indian law, the Group provides for gratuity, o defined benefit retirement plan (the “Gratuity Plan™ covering ali employees, The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum
payment 1o vested employees on retirement or on termination of employment for an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the perfods of employment with the Group

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined wsing the projected unit credit method based on an actuarial valuation perforined by an independent
actuary,

Remeasurctments, comprising of actearial going and losses, excluding ameunts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability, are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earmings through OCT in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent
periods,

Past serviee costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- The date of the plag amendmtent or curtailment, and

- The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asseL. The Group recegaises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and ioss:

- Service costs coMprising current séeviee costs, past-service costs, gaing and losses on curtailments and non routine settlements; and

- Net intezest expense or income

0. Share-based paymeits

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equify-settled transactions).

Equity Settles transactions
The cust of equity-scttled trmsactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an approptiate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a comesponding increase in sharc-based payment {SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The stafement of profit and loss expense or credit for a
period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account wien determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the ¢onditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimale of the nuniber of equity instments that will ultbmately vest. Miarket perfarmance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value,
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an assecialed service requircment, are considered Lo be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflecicd in the fair
value of an award and lead to &n immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ulemately vest because non-market performance and/or scrvice conditicns have not been met, Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions arc treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisficd, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfisd.

When the terms of an equity-settled award 2re modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
miet. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment Lransaction, er is otherwise bencficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counlerparty, any remaining clement af the fair valne of the oward is expensed immedialely
through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional shase dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

(This space has been lefi blank intentionallv)
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p. Financial instruments

A finaneial instrument iz any centract that gives rise to a fivancial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets ave clasgified, at initial recognition, a5 subscquently measured at amortised cest, fair value through other comprehensive income {OCT), and fir vatue through profit
or loss. The clagsilication of financial assets at inilial recognition depends on the financial asser’s contractual cash flow characleristics and the Group business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing componeat or for which the Company has applied the practical expedicnt, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the cage of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction coests. Trade receivables that do not contain a
sipnificant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedicnt are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer o the
acceunting policies in section {7} Revenue recognition.

T order for a financial asset to be clussified and measured at amostised cest or fair value through OCL it necds to give rise to cash flows that arc ‘solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI)” on the principal amount outstanding, This assessment is refemred to as the SPPI rest and is performed at an instrurnent level.

The Group business model for managing financial assets refers 1o fiow it manages its financial assets in order to genetate cash flows, The busingss model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, sclling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amoriised cest are held within a business madel
with the ebjective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractaal cash flows while financial assets classified snd measured at £ir value through OCI are held within 2 business
model with the abjective of both holding ta collect contractisal cash flaws and selling,

Purchases ot sales ol [inancial assets that require delivery of assets within a titac frame established by regulation ot convention in the market place {regular way trades} are recognised
on the trade date, i.¢., the date thal the Compiny commits Lo purchase or sellthe assel.

Subsequent measurenient

For purposes of subsequent measurcment, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Debi instramen(s at amerlised cost

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprebensive income (FVTQCT)

- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instraments at fair value through profi¢ or loss (FVTPL)

- Exuity instroments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTCCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “dobt instrumcnt” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following eonditions arc met:
a) The assef is held within 2 business model wlose cbjective isto hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash ftows that are selely payments of principal and interest (SPPT} on the principal amount outstanding.

Afler inifial measurcment, such financial assels arc subsequently measurcd at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ETR) method. Amoriiscd cost is caloulated by takmg milo
account any discount or premium on acquisitien and fees or costs that are 40 integral part of the EIR. The EMR amortisation is inchuded in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impaiement are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and ather receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCK

A 'debt instroment” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The ebjective of the business model is achieved both by callecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b} The assct’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments inctuded within the FVTOCI category are measured imitially as well 2s at each reporting date at fair value. Fair velue mavements are tecognized in the other
comprehensive income {QCH. However, the group recognizes intercst income, impairment losses & revorsals and foreign exchange gain or lass in the P&L. On derecognifion of the
asser, cumulative gain or ioss previously recognised in OCT is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst ho!ding FVTOCT debt insrrment is reported os interest
income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVEPL

FVTPL is a residual catcgory for debt instrumenis. Asiy debt matrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCY, is classilicd as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect 1o designate 2 debt instrament, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as ot FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces of elininates a measurement of recopnition inconsistency {referred to as *accounting mismatehs’}. The Group has not designated any debt instrament as at FVTPL.
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL categary are measured at fair vahic with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity Invesiments

Ali equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideraticn recognised by an acquirer in R
business combination o which Ind AS103 applics are classified as at FVTPL. For ail other cquily instrumenls, the Group may make an jrevocable ciection 1o present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair vatue. The Group makes such clection on an instrmment-by- insirument basis. The classification is made on initial reeognition
and is ircevocable,

If the Group decides o classify an equity instrument s at FYTOCT, then all fair value changes on the instmment, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity.

Equity instruments inchided within the FYTPL catcgory are measured at farr value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of stmilar financial assets) i primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's balance shect)
when:

- The rights to receive cash lows from the asset Lave expired, or

- The Group has transfsrred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset o has assumed an obligation to pay the reecived cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either (2} the Group has transferred substantially a1l the risks and rewards of the asset, er (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control af the asset.

When the Group has transferted its rights to reccive cash flows from an assel or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retaincd the risks
atid rewards of ownership. When it hes neither transferred nor retained substantialty all of the Tisks and rewards of the ssset, not transferred conirol of the asset, the Group contitues
to recognisc the transicrred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. Tn that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asser and the
associated Tiabilily are measured on 2 basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Greup has retained.

Continuing invelvemnent that takes the form of a guaraniee over the transferred assct is measured at the lower of the origimal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required o repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL} model for measurement and recognition of irpairment loss on the following financial assets ond credst
risk exposare:

3} Financial assets that sre measured at amortised cost e.g., Jazns, deposits, trade recsivables and bank balance

b) Available for sale financial assets

c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

) Trade teceivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that Tesult from iransactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The Group follows *simplified approach’ for recognilion of impairment loss allowange on:
- Trade receivables or contract revenue reccivables; and
- All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recogniscs impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach
reporting date, right from its initlal recognition.

For recognitien of impairment loss on olber financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-moath ECL is used to provide for impairment Yoss, However, if credit tisk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in a subsequent period, eredit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, thea the entity
reverts 0 recopmising impainment loss aliowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL arc the expectzd credit Josses resulting from all possible defanlt events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECE is & portion of the lifetime
ECL which resulis from default cvents that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash fiows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receivé {i.¢., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required fo consider:

- AUl conlsactual tenms of the fmancial insiroment (incliding prepayment, extension, call and similar aptions} over the expecicd life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrament cannot he estimated reliably, then the entity i3 required to use the remaining contractual tesmn of the financial instrurnest

- Cash flows fiom the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancemenis that are integral to the contractuat terms

As a prastical expedicnt, the grolp uses A provision naitiz, to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade regeivables. The provision metrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed defauli
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the group estimates the following provision mateix at the reporting date:

8-15 days past 16-30 days | 31-60 days past due | 61-20 days past 00-120 days past | 120-130 days | Above 180 days
due past due due due past due past due

Trade receivables 20% 20%% 20% 20% 056 100%% 108%
Advertisement Debtors Nil Nil 20% 2085 2004 100%% 10085
COD receivables (Open Shipment) Nil Nil Nil 5080 100% 100% 100%
COD receivables (Delivered Shipment} Nil L 10053 1005 100%% 130% 5 100%
Product Sellers {Debit Balances) 10095 100%% 100% 100%: 100%% 100% 100%%
Tnsurance Receivables Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 100%%

0-180 past 181-270 past 271-365 past Ahave 365 past

—due due |  due due
Bank Rescivables Nil 25% 50% 100%

The Group has the policy of cresting the pravision for doubtful debts for the amount outstading for more than 189 days for one of its subsidiaries i.e Unlcommerce.

Goods and Services lax receivable, the Company uses a provision milestone basis of the forward loeking estimate of the tax credits in the next five years to determine the irapainnent
loss allowancs al every reporting date.

ECL impaitment loss sliowance (or reversal) recogmized during the period is recognized a5 income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head “other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for varous financial instruments is deseribed betow:

+ Financial assets measured as at amortised cosl, contraclual revenue reccivables and lfease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as at iniegral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Untl the asset meets write-ofF criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowanee from the
gross camrying amount.

. Available for sale financial assets: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impsirment allowance is not further reduced from its valve. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as *accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit #isk end impairment loss, the Group cambines financial instruments on the basis of shered credit risk choracteristics with the objective of tacilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Group docs not have any purchasad or eriginated credit-impaired (POCY) financial assets, 1.¢., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
Financial Habilities
Initiaf recognition and measurement

Financial lizbilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financiai liabilities a1 fair valae through profit or loss, Joans and borsowings, payables as appropriate,
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the casc of loans and borrowings and payables, net of dircetly attributable transaction costs.
The Group’s financial liabilitics include trade and other payables, Joans and borcowings including bank overdrafis and derivative financial instruments.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Subsequent measurenient
The measureraent of financial liabilities deperds on their classification, as described below:
Financial Habilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss

Finanecial liabilities at fair value threugh profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initiat recognition as af fair value through
profit or loss, Finaneial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incuired #or the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category alse includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that arg not degignaled as hedging instrumenis in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivasives arc also
tlassified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Geins ot losses on liabilities held for rading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilitics designated upan initial recagnition at fair valne though profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value grins/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recopnized in OCE These gains/ loss are not subsequenily
transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. The Group has not designated any financial lability as at fair value through profit and Joss.

Loans and borrowings

Aftor initizl recognition, interest-beaning loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised caost using the EIR method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR ampriisation is included as
finance casts in the statement of profit and loss
Derecognition

A financial lisbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability iz replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different torms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated s the derecagnition of the
original tability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounls is recognised in the stalement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that glso includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined insttwment vary i a way simifar to a consolidated derivative. An embedded derivaiive causcs some or all of the cash [ows that otherwise would be required by the contragd
1o be modificd according 1o a specifted interest rate, financial instrument price, corunedity price, loreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other
variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party 1o the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change n the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset cut ¢f the fair value through profit or loss,

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial assct within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Group does not scparate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification
requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded ot fair
value If their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are ot held for trading er designated at fair value though
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair vabuc with changes in fair value recegnised in profit of loss, untess desigiated as elfective hedging instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilitics on initial recognilion, Afler initiaf vecognition, o reclassification is made for financial assels whicl are equity
instruments and financial ligbilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets, Changes to the business mode] are expectad to be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the busisess mode! as a result of externsl or intemal
changes which arc significant to the Group’s eperations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begms or ceases
16 perform an activity (hat is significant ta its operations. 1€ the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applics the reclassificalion prospectively from Lhe seclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model The Group does not restate any previeusly recognised pains, losses (inchuding
impzirment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Finaccial assets and financiel lisbilitics arc offsct and the net amouat is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legel right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention te settle on u net basis, to realise the assets and setile the Kabilitics simuliancously,

q. Cash and cash equivalents

Casl: and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprisc cash at banks and on hand and shori-term deposits with an original malurity of three months or less, which are subject lo an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash fows, cash and cash squivalents consist of cash and shori-tesm deposils, as defined above, net of oulstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an intogral part of the Group's cash management.

p. Segment Reporfing
The Company's primary business segment is establishing, developing, designing, producing and conceptualizing dircet marketing solutions through web and non-web based
platforms, Accordingly, there are no other reportable business or peographical segments to be disclosed as per notificd Ind AS - 108 "Operating Scgments™.

q.Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributabie to equity helders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted BPS amounts are calewlated by dividing the less attribusable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the period
plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potertial Equity shares into Equity shares.
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New and amended standards

(1) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

The amendments provide relief ta lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic, As a practical expedient, a lessec may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related reat concession from o fessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makea this election
accounts for my change in leasc payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent congession the same way it woukd account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change werc nol
a lease modification.

The amendmenis are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on ev after the 1 April 2020, This amendment had o impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

(i) Amendments to Tnd AS 183 Business Combinatiens

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Busincss Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets must inctude, at a minimum, an input and 4
substantive process that, together, significantly contsibute to the abitity o creatc output. Furthermorc, it clarifies thiat 4 business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes neaded to create outputs.

“These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporiing period beginning on or afer the 1
April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period. This amendment had no impsct on the consolidated financiat statements of the Group but may
impact future periods should the Gronp enter into any business combinations.

(iii) Amendments to Ind AS t and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definilion ol material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or ebscuring it couid by be expected to infl
that the primary users of general pumpose financial statements ake on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial informmation abont a specific reporting entity.”
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend o the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the
financial statcments. A missiatement of information is material if it could reasonably be cxpected to influence deci made by the primary users. These amendments had no lmpact
on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expeeted to be any fotre fmpact to the Group.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. The smendrments to the definition of material are not expecied 1o have a
sigiificant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial stalements.

Recent pronouncements :

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through a notification, amended Schedule HI of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, M and
III of Schedule 11T and are applicable from April 1, 2021, Key amendwents relating to Division 1T which relate to companies whese financial stateroents are required to comply with
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are;

Balance Shect:

« Lease liabilitics should be separatsly disclosed under the head “Onancial liabitities', duly distinguished as current or non-curret,

+ Ceriain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such ss changes in equity share capital due 1o prior period errors and restated balances ot the beginning of the
cugrent reporting period.

» Specified ormat for disclosure of sharehoding of promoters.

+ Specified format [or ageing schedule of ttade receivables, trade payables, capital wotk-in-progress and intangible asset under development.

« If'a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was botrowed [rom banks and Gnancial instiutions, then disclosure of delails of where it has been used.

+ Specific disclosure under ‘additional regalatory requirement’ such as complinnce with approved schemes of arrangemonts, compliance with number of layers of companies, title
deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, Joans and advances to promoters, dircctors, key nanagerial personnel (KMP) and relascd partics, details of benami
property held cte,

Statement of profit and loss:

« Additional disclosures 1elating Lo Corporate Sacial Responsibility (CSR}, undisclosed ingome and crypta or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information” in the
notes forming part of consolidated financial statements.

The amendinenls are cxtensive and the Group will gvalume 1he same to give effect to them as required by law.

(This space has been left Blank intentioniaiiv)
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Snapdeal Private Limited

Notes to Tidated fi -
{All amonuis in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)
5. investment in associates
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
'} ! ivs equity instr (e ted)
Investient in asseclates:
474,890 (March 31, 2020:474,890) Equity sharcs of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up in Tetra Media Private Limited

Cost of acquisition (including goodwill of Rs 5.7 15.0 150
Less: Share of losses (1.8} {3.4}
Tetal 13.2 11,

— m—

Less: Provision for other than temporary dimirution in value of Investments #

- Tetra Media Private Limited {13.2} 1.6
Aggregate amount of nnquoted investments o N
# Provigion for other than temporary diminution in value of Investments
Opening balance ile L7
Created during the year L5 -
Reversed during the year - [{:3)]
Closlug balance 13.2 16

6._Financial assets
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Investments
Investments ai fair value through profit & Toss (fully paid)

Unquoted mutual funds
Nil (Margh 31, 2020 :13,001) umits of Tata Liquid Mutual Fund - 4]
Total investments at fair value through profit & loss - 4.1
Coramercial Paper
Kotak Mahindra Investment Limited 49.8 4.7
Kotak Mahindra Prime Litniled - 249
Aditya Birla Finance Limited 21.0 nh
HDFC Limited - 82.5
Tata Capital Finance Services Limited 90,2 043
HDB Financial Services Limited - 50.0
Total investments at fair value theough profit & loss 161.0 3934
Agpregate value of unquoted investments 161.0 3975
Investments in other entities
Investment in preference instruments (unguoted) at cost
1,111 (March 31, 2020: 1,i11) 0.0k% Compulsorily convertible preference shaves (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each fally paid-up in 0.6 0.4
Smartprix Web Private Limited.

The Company shall have the right at any time to convert ail or same of the preference shares held by it into ¢quity shares {1 share
per CCPS). Such shares, however are compulsorily convertible on 19th anniversary from the date of {ssue.

Investment in equity insy) 15 {tng d) ar cost

Investment in other equity instruments:

Less: Provision for other than {emporary dimimtion in valuc of Investments #

- Smartprix Web Private Limited {0.6) (X7
Total investments 161.0 3915
Current 161.0 3975
Non-current = N

161.0 391.5
# Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of Investments
Opening balance 046 844
Created during the vear - -
Reversed during the year - (83.8)
Closing balance 0.6 0.6

{This space hos been left blank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to lidated fi inl t

(Al amounts iy INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwisc)

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2620

Other financial assets
Security deposits
Considered poad 643 3.0
Considered doubiful 0.1 0.3
64.4 593
Less: Provision Tor doubtful depesits #1 (0.1) (0.3)
Total {A) 64.3 5%.0
Non Current bank balances
Deposits with remaining marity of more than 12 menths (note 11} 0.2 16.7
Margin money deposit (note 11) 0.6 -
Total (B) 0.8 167
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Considered good 5.5 517
Considered doubtfal 152.3 1526
2118 2103
Less: Provision for doubtful advances #2 {152.3) (152.6}
Total (C} 59.5 577
Interest accrued on fixed deposits (E) 16.8 28.5
Restricted cash hield in separate accounts® 4.5 296
Total (F) 24.5 294
Total other financiai assets (A+B+C+D+E+F) 165.9 1914
Current 1533 150.0
Non-cusrent 12.6 414
1658.9 1914
#1 Provision for doubitful deposits
Opening balance 0.3 -
Created during the year - 11
Reversed during the year (0.2) {0.8}
Closing balance 0.1 03
#2 Provision for deubtful advances
Openlog balance 152.6 1539
Created during the year 174 752
Reversed during the year {17.7) {76.5)
Closing balance 152.3 1526

% Pupsnant to the directives of the Reserve Bank of India, the Company received amount in ils nodal acceunt fowards all transactions happening on its pottal through debil/ credit
cards and net banking, From such nodal accouns, the Company transfers the respective smount o rmerchant! customer, Balance lying in such nodal account as at March 31, 2021

and March 31, 2020 is disclosed as Restricted Cash held in separate accounts' in the financial statements.

Investments at fair value throngh Profit & Loss (folly paid) reflect invesiment in quoted and nnquoted equity securities and quoted debt securities, (Refer note 31)

Break up of financial asseis carried at amortised cost:

Ttade receivables (note 9) 118 7.1
Cash and cash equivalents (note 10} 47.6 24
Other financial assels (note 6) 165.9 1914
investments in commercizl paper (nole 6) i61.0 397.5
Total financial asscts carried at amortised cost 386.3 5984
7._Prepayments
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tnsecured, Considered good 11.4 174
Unsecured, Considered doubtful 2.2 24
13.6 201
Less: Provision for doubtful advances # (2.2) (2,4
Total prepayments 114 176
Current 77 6.0
Non-current 3.7 it?
11.4 17.6
# Provision for doubtful advances
Opening balance 24 24
Created during the year - 0.l
Reversed during the year {0.2) {05
Closing balance 1.1 24




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to lidated fi tal

(A1l amopnts in TNR Crore, except per share data and s stated otherwise)

8. _Other assets

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advagce income-tax 16.6 302
MAT asset entitlerent 0.2 -
Unbilled revenwe 23 13
Advance to employees 13 13
Bal with statutory/goy authonties 239.0 2476
259.4 280.4
Legs: Provision for doubtful advatces # (194.5) {202.5)
‘Total other assets 4.9 77,9
Carrest 482 469
Non-current 16.7 310
4.9 77.9
# Provision for doubtful advances
Opening balance 202.5 170.8
Created during the year 1.3 ki)
Reversed dunng the year 9.3} -
Closing talance 194.5 2025
9, _Trade receivables
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables
Trade receivables 1.8 7.1
Total trade reeeivables 11.8 7.l
Breakup for security details:
Trade receivables
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 11.8 1l
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 22.7 241
345 198
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and douhtful debis)
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk # (22.7) 227
220 {22.7)
Total trade receivables 1i8 7.1
Current li.8 7.l
Non-current = N
11,8 1.1
# Provision for Tmpairment Allowance
Opening balance 227 224
Created during the year 1.6 10
Reversed during the year (1.6) (9
Ciosing balance 22.7 2.7
=

Na trade or other reccivable are due from direetors or other officors of the company cither severally or jointly with any other person. Noy any trade or other receivable arc duc

from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partaer, 2 director or & member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are gencrally on terms of 3€ 10 90 days.

10. _Cash and cash equivalent

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2024

Balances with banks:

~ Orn current accounis

— Deposits with original maturity of less than theee months
Casli on band

47.6 24
0.0 00
0.0 00

47.6 2.4

a—

Cash at banks earns infterest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-tern: deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending

on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at the respective shoré-term deposit rates.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the follewing!

Balances with banks:

- Om current accounts

~ Dieposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand

416
4.0
0.0

47.6




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements

(AW amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

11._Bapk halances other than above

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depusits with original maturity for more than 12 months 190.6 544
Dreposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 032 0.1
Margin money deposit® 31.2 434

2210 981
Less: dischosed under other non-curment financial assels (nole 6) {0.8) (167

221.2 814

Total baok balance other than above

* Margin money deposits given as security :

Mergin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 0.71 cr (March 31, 2020 Rs 0.71 Cr} are subject to lien ta secure corporate credil cord limit from a bank.
Margin inoney deposit with a carmying amount of Rs 0.0] er (March 31, 2020: Rs 0.01 Cr) is subject to lien for bank guarantee given to Income fax authority.

Margin money deposit with a carrying amonnt of Rs 0.22 cr {March 31, 2020: Rs 0.22 Cr) is subject to lien for bank guarantee given to VAT authority.
Margin money depesit with a carrying amount of Rs 0.25 cr (March 31, 2020: Rs 0,25 ¢r) is subject to lien for bank guarantee given against business travel agreements.
Margin moncy deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 1.05 ct (March 33, 2020: Rs 1.05 cr) is subjcet to lien for bank guarantee given against services from Indin Post,

Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 18.98 cr (March 31, 2020 Rs 31.3 Cr) aze subject to lten for overdraft facility taken from HDFC
Margin money deposit with a carrying amount of Rs 10.0 cr (March 31, 2020: Rs. 10.0 Cr} is subject to lien for bank guarantee given to ligndator of wholly owned subsidiary E-

{This space has been left blank intentionally)




Snapdezl Private Limited
Notes to lidated fi tal stab 1t
{All amounts fn INR Crore, exeept per share date and as siated otherwise)

12. Share Capifal

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Authorized share capital
89,151,800 (March 31, 2020: 89,151,800} Equity Shares of Re. 1 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 1) cach 89 89
20,000 (March 31, 2020: 20,000) compulsory convertible cumulative senes A preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,600 (March 31, 2020: 25,000) compulsory convertible cumulative scries B preference shares ef Rs. 10 each 0.0 0.0
25,000 (March 31, 2020: 25,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series C preference shares of Rs. 10 each 1.0 0.0
25,000 (March 34, 2020: 25,000} compulsory convertible cumulative series D preference shares of Rs. 100 each 03 03
25,000 {March 31, 2020: 25,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series E preference shares of Rs. 100 each 03 03
3,000 (March 31, 2020: 3,000) compulsory convertible comulative serics E1 preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.0 0.0
34,500 (March 31, 2020: 34,500) compulsory convertible cumulative series F preference shares of Rs. 100 each 0.3 0.3
80,000 (March 31, 2020: 80,000) compulsory convertible cumulative series G preference shares of Rs. 100 cach 0.8 0.8
20,000 (March 31, 2020: 20,000 compulsory convertible cumulative series H preference shares of Rs. 100 cach 02 0.2
400,000 (March 31, 2020: 400,000) campulsory convertible cunlative serics I preference shares of Rs. 104 cach 40 4.0
105,000 (March 31, 2020: 105,000} compulsory convertible cumulative series J preference shares of Rs. 10 cach 0.1 0.1
17,410 (March 31, 2020 17,410} compulsory convertible cumulative series J1 preference shares of Rs. 20 each 00 04
149 14.9
Issued Share Capital
2,464,823 (March 31, 2020:2,464,823) equity shares of Re. 1 (March 31, 2020; Rs. |} each fully paid-up 0.2 0.2
10,370 (March 31, 2020: 1,370) compulsory convertibie cumulative participating series I prefercace shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-wp [EN 0.1
44,348 (March 31, 2020; 44,348) compulsory canvertible comulative participating series J preference shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up 0.0 0.0
Total fssucd share capital 0.3 0.3
Subscribed & Tally paid up shares
2,464,823 (March 31, 2020: 2,464,823} equity shares of Re. 1 cach fully paid-up 0.2 0.2
Total Sebscribed and fully paid-up share eapital 0.2 0.2

(This space hus been left blank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to lidated fisancial st.
{All amounts in INR Crore, ¢xeept per share data and as stated atherwise)

(a) Reconcilistion of the shares outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares
March 31, 2821 March 31, 2020
No., Rs, No. B
Al the beginning of the year 24,64,823 0.2 24,64,823 0.2
Outstanding st the end of the year 24,64,823 (L34 24,64,823 .1
i
(1) ceate pumper of shaves hought back during the perfod of five veavs immediately precedin the reporting date;
Particulars March 31,2621  Mareh 31,2026 March 31,2019 Warch 31,2018 March 31,2017
Nos Nog Nos Nos Nog
Equity shares bought back by the Company - - - 67,200 -
(¢} Details of sharcholders holdipg more than 5% sharcs in the Company
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Nos, %o Holding Neos. %5 Holding
Fquity shares of Re, 1 cach fully paid-up
Mexus [ndia Direct Tnvestments IF 235,100 9.5% 2,35,100 9.5%
Ehay Singapore Services Pre Lid 1.40.950 5.7% 1,40,950 5.1
Starfish I Pte. Ltd. 8,79.253 35.7% 8,79,253 357%
B2 Professtonal Servicesm LLP 2.85062 11.6%% 2.85062 L16%

Naote I : Terms! rights attached te eqully shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face velue of Re, 1 per share. Ench holder of equity shares is entitled te onz vote per sharc,

Tn the event of Tiquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled t receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The diswiburian will be in proportia:
to the number of equily shares held by the sharcholder.

(This space has been ieft blank intentionaifv)




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements
{AH amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stafed otherwise)

13. Other equity

Share premium Rs.
At April 01, 2019 11!028.6

Increase because of issae of shares dusing the year -
Decrease due to transaction costs for issued share capital -
At March 31, 2020 11!028.6
Increase because of issue of shares during the year -
Decrease due to transaction costs for issued share capital -
At March 31, 2021 11,028.6

Share option schemes /Share base payment reserve
The Company has share option schemes under which options to subscribe for the Company’s shares have been granted to certain executives and

employees.
The share-baged payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employees, including key
management personnel, as part of their remuncration. Refer note number 29 & 30.

Share based payments ———— T
At April 01, 2019 2717
Add: Compensation cost for options granted (including cost of options 134
granted to employees of subisdiary companies)

Less: transfetred to general reserve on exercise of stock options (1.0
At March 31, 2020 2838
Add: Compensation cost for options granted {including cast of options 106

granted to employees of subisdiary companies)
Less: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock options -
At March 31, 2021 2944

General Reserve
The Company recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to capital reserve.

General Reserve Rs.
At April 01, 2019 10.1
Add: transferred 1o general reserve on exercise of stock options 13
Add :Reclassification to equity reserve -
At March 31, 2020 114
Add: transferred to general reserve on exercise of stock options -
At March 31, 2021 114
Equity Reserve

Equity reserve pertains to the liability outstanding in the books that might result in issuance of shares as per the agreement as a part consideration to
the advertisement services. Refer note 44,

Equity Reserve Rs.
At April 01, 201% -

Add: transferred to equity reserve 2540
At March 31, 2020 2540
Add: transferred to equity reserve 0.3
At March 31, 2021 2543

Other reserves

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

SBP reserve 194.4 283.8

General Reserve 11.4 114

Loss on transaction with NCI (168.0} (1680}
Equity Reserve 254.3 254.0

Total other reserves 392.1 381.2

(This space has been left blank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited

Notes to consolidated finsncial statemenis
(Al amaonnts jn INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

14,

15.

Provisions
Asal As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for bonus 8.2 96
Provision for sakes return 1.2 08
Total 9.5 104
Current 2.5 10.4
Non-current 0.0 1
9.5 10.4
Provision for Sales  Provision for bonus
Return
As at April 01, 2019 5.6 B.6
Created during the year 0.8 14.0
Utilised {5.6) {12.3)
Unysed amount reversed - (0.7
As atMarch 31, 2020 0.8 ['X3
Created during the vear 13 43
Utilised ©.8) (4.9
Unused amount reversed - 0.8
As at Maych 31, 2021 L3 8.2
Provision for benus
A provision is recognised for the banus payable to the employees on time proportion basis over the period of service.
Provision for sales refurn
A provision is recognised for the expected product returns subsequent to the period end based on historical experietice.
Net employee defined beneflt obligations
As af As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Provision for gratvity 11.6 iS5
Provision for compensated absences 6.1 60

17.8 173
Current 8.8 39
Non-current 9.0 8.4

17.8 17,8

—

(This sp

pace has been left blank intentionatly)




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to lidated fi ial

{All amonnts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

In accosdance with applicable [ndian laws, the company provides for graluily, a defined benefit relirement plan (“the Gratuily Plan™) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity
Plan provides for a lurop sum payment to vested employees on retirement (subject to completion of five years of continuons employment), death, incapacitation or termiration of
employment of amounts that are based on salary and tenarc of employment. Lisbilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actizaria valuation on the reporting date.

‘The following tables summarises the components af net benefit expense recogaised in the income statement and the fanded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for

the plan;
Changgs in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

Rs.
Defined benefit obligation at April 01, 2019 101
Acquisition adjustment 0.2
Currenit Service cost 25
Inicrest cost un benefit obligation 07
Benefits paid 2.3
Actuarial loss 03
Defined benefit obligation at March 31, 2020 115
Acquisition adjustment 0.0
Currens Service cost 24
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.6
Benefits paid {3
Actuarial loss 0.6
Defived benefit obligation at March 31, 2021 11.6
Expenes recogaised in the Other Comp ive I (Excinding tax) for the year ended March 31, 2021 and for the year ended March 31, 2020
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021
Opening amount recognized in OCY outside P&L account - -
Actuerial gain/{loss) on liabilitics* 0.8 0.6
0.8 0.4
The principal actuerial assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:
As at As at
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2621
Discount rate 5.450-6.6% 4,995-5.79%
Salary cscalation rale 7.3%-10.0% 7.5%14.0%
Withdrawal rate 25%5.30% 24.9%-25%

Due to its defined benefit plans, the company is cxpesed to following significant risk :-

Change in Discount Rate : A decsease in discount rate will increase plan liability.

Salary Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan lizbility is calculated by reference to the future salaries of the plan participants. As such , an increzse in the salary of
the plan participants will increase the plans Liability,

Withdrawal Rate : A decrease n withdrawal rate will increase plan liability.

Deinegraphical Assupption vsed :
Aganmption regulating future mortality are based on publishiod statistics and mortality table (TALM {2012-14).

Relirement Az : The emeployees of the company are assumed fe refire at the age of 38-60 years.

Sensitivity Analysis

Lo Wl 31, 2021 Tmpact (Absolute)
Base Liability 11.6

Increasce discount rate by 0.5% (0.2) ild
Decrease discount ratc by 0.5% 0.2 158
Increase salary inflation by 0.5% 0.2 [IE]
Decrease salary inflation by 0.5% [(1%4)] 114

The Sensitivity Analysis have been determined based on a method that extrapotated the impact of declined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable change in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Maturity Profile of Defived Benefit Obligation
IYenr Amount

(o | Year 26
1to 2 Year 22
2to3 Yeor L7
3to4 Year 12
40 5 Year 09
5to 6 Year 14
6 Year onwards L6




Suapdeal Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements
{All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

16, _Trade and other payables

17

18.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade payahles
Trade payables 100.2 125.5
100.2 125.%
Other pavables
Payable to scllers 82.4 733
Qther payables {refer note 44 and 45) 192 -
Steeutory linbilities payable 6.7 6.6
Acerued salaries and benefits - 1.2
108.3 811
208.5 ZI)A
Btfarcation of above:
Total outstanding dues of micre and small enterprises 22 21
Total outstnnding daes of creditors other than micro sad small enterprises 206.3 2043
208.5 2064
==
Terms and conditions of the abave financial liabilities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms
- Other payabtes are non-interest bearing and have an average tenn of upto six months
Break up of financial liabilities carricd at amortised cost
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March M, 2020
Lease liabilities {note 47) 8.4 11,1
Total financia) liabilities carried at amortised cost 8.4 11.1
Deferred revenue
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
As at beginning 16.0 4711
Deferred during the year 20,7 16.0
Released fo the statement of prefit and loss {15.9) (47.7)
As at closing 20.8 16.0
Current 20.8 16.0
Non-current - =
20.8 16.0
-1
Revenues from products shipped are delerred 1ill it is delivered to the uitimate customers snd is disclosed as deferred revenue.
Gther liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advances from customers 119 11,0
11.9 11.0
Current 112 11.0
Non-curreat - -
1.9 11.0

(This space has been left blank intentionally)




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to lidated in} (]
(All amounts in INR Crore, ¢xcept per shave dats and as stated otherwise)

9.

0,

2

22

23,

Revenue from operations
For the year cnded  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenne from operations
Revenue from marketing fees 1234 166.9
{Other operating revenue 3484 679.5
Revenue from operations 4718 §46.4
Set put helow is the disaggregation of ihe Group's revenue :
Markeling services 4316 Bl11S
Commisgion and Other services 40.8 325
Total 4718 846.4
India 468.8 845.6
Outgide Indiz 0 0.8
Total 471.8 846.4
Refer note 46 for disclosure af contract bal us per lhe i ofind AS 115,
Qther income
For the year cnded  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Linbilities / provistons no longer required written back 5.8 54
Impairment allowance no longer required {bet} - 02
Other non-operating income 25 6.1
Total 3.3 11.7
Qther not operating income primarily includes credit card fees, courier last income, penalty from sellers and other misc income.
Finanee income
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest income on bank deposits end commercial paper 385 532
Interest income on tux refund 18 2.2
Net gain on sale of current investments 0.0 2.1
Unwindmyg of discount on financial assels as amortised cost* (0.1) 1.0
Total 30.2 58.5
*[nchudes impact of Rs. 1.9 Cr (Maxch 31, 2020 : Nil) on account ol resiatement of recoverable security deposits. Refer note 44 and 45,
Marketplace expense
Foxthe yearended  For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2621 March 31, 2020
Freight and ¢ollcetion charges 187.6 1595
Product wrapping charges 23 5.0
Compeosation cxpenses 36 8.0
Hosting charges 1i.8 i7.2
Content writing charges B2 Ll
Software expenses 85 2.7
Marketing and business prormotion expense 176.7 509.3
Total A28 909.8
=
Employee henefits expense
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salary, wages and bonus 1419 1571
Conlribution to provident and other funds 52 4.9
Graluity expense 2.5 30
Employes stock option scheme 106 134
Staif welfare, recruitment and iraining expenses 9.9 3.5
Total 161.2 181.7
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Coda”) relsting Lo employee benefils during employment and pest-ciuplymein benells received Presidential assent in Seplemt

2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of Indie, However, the date on which the Code will come inte cfeet has not beea notified and the final
nilgsiinerpretation have not yet been issued. The Group will assess the impast of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact it the period the

Code becomes effective.

{This space kas heen left blank intentionally}




Snapdeal Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financlal statements

(All amounts in INR Crore, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

24, Depreciation and amortisation expense

25,

26.

2

-1

For the vear ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation of tangible assets {note 3) 185 14.9
Amoriisation of intangible assets (note 4) 287 12.4
Depreciation of ROU assets (nale 47} 31 31
Total 50.3 3.4
Finance Cosis
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Bank charges 04 0.0
Interest charges 1.0 14
Exchange differences (net) 06 0.2
Total 1.4 1&
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2028
1.7 1.8
ing expenses 14.0 179
Bad dehts / advances written off 04 07
Provisien for doubtful debts and advances 0.3 0.2
Communication charges 3.0 57
Legal and professional [ees 7.2 10.6
Liquidation Expense 0.2 0.1
Payment to anditor {Refer note A below) 0.5 1.6
Power and fuel 0.8 1.1
Rates and taxes 0.9 0.6
Provision for dimunitien in the value of investment 1.5 {0.1)
Provision for impairetnent of goodwiill - 51
Rent 1.2 2.1
Repair & maintenance:
Building 1.8 0
Plant & machinery 23 33
Others 0.1 0.1
Travelling expenscs .8 30
Balances with statutory/government authoritses (387 319
Miscellaneous expenses 2.2 0.9
Tutal 30.7 87.6
A. Payment to anditor
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
As auditor:
Audit fee 0.4 0.5
Tax audit & Other fee 0.1 0.1
Out of pockst expenses 0.0
Total 0.5 0.6
. Extraordinary Item/Exceptional items
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Impairment of non current investntent & Dther assets (Loss on sale of [nvestments) 0.0 572
Provision for diminution in value of Investments - {78.1}
Taotal 2.0 20.9

(This space has been left Blank intentionally)
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28. Taxes

a) Income tax expenses
The major components of income £ax expense are:

(i) Statement of Profit and Loss section

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current tax
In respect of the current year {0.9) -
Fotal income tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (0.9) -

(i) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) section

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current tax
In respect of the current year - -
Total income tax expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - -
b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2026
Percentage Amount Percentage Amount

Income before incote taxes (124.6) (273.7)
Tax uging the Company’s tax rate 27.82% (34.7} 27.82% (76.1}
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (0.9} -
Effect of non-deductable expenses 0.3 -
Taxes not recognised on account of losses in the Company 36.3 76.1
Tax expense as recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 1.0 -

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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29, Employee stock option plan

aj

The group has following two share based payment schemes for its employees. The relevant details of schemes and grants made there under are as follows:

Snapdeal Private Limited
The Company provides share-based payment schemes to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. During the year ended March 31, 2021, an employee stock
aption plan {(ESOP) was in existence, The relevant details of the scheme and grant are as below.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting held on February 7, 201 | approved the grant of ESOP exercisable into not more than 3,223 nes equity shares
of Rs. 10 each to the employees of its Subsidiaries and its Holding Company and granted the authority of designing, implementing and administering such a scheme to
the Board.

The Board in its meeting held on February 7, 2011 had resclved to issue to employees under ESOP 2011, employce stock optiens exercisable into not mere then 3,223
nos. equity shares of Rs. 10 each, with each such option ¢oaferring a right upon the employee to apply for one equity share of the Company, in accordance with fhe terms
and conditions of such issue. The Compiny with the unanimous consent of all the shareholders, modified such ESOP scheme on March 13, 2013, April 29, 2014 and
August 12, 2014, amang other things, to increase the number of shares of equity shares reserved for issuance under the Plan to 4,108 nos, 5,528 nos and 9,209 nos,
respectively. Later on in Febroary 09, 2015 with the unanimous consent of all the shareholders, such ESOP scheme was further modified, and i lieu of such modification
increased the number of equity shares reserved for issuance under the Plan to 11,189 nos. equivalent to 111,890 nos post considering the impact of share spilt.

As per the modified terms, all the option holders are entitled to exercise their vested options in case of resignation / retirement / permanent incapacity / death and
unvested options in case of permanent incapacity / death within a peried of 10 years from the date of last working by self / nominee / legal heir, which carlier was 6
months from the date of last working. Further the vesting period was also modified. Further the vesting period was also modified for ESOP 2016 whereas the option
holders are entitled to exercise their vested options in case of resignation / retirement / permanent incapacity / death and unvested options in case of permanent incapacity
/ death within a period of 3 months from the date of Jast working. However such modification did not have any impact on the fair value of the options or is not otherwise
beneficial to the emplayee, Gn Oetober 6, 2015 ESOP Scheme was further modified in order to restate the definition of the Investor Director and delegate the power to
and authorize the Chief Executive Officer for administmation of ESOP Scheme 2011 and also to empower and detegate the anthority to Chicf Executive Officer to farther
delegate his power to administer ESOP 2011 to a senior competent employee of the Company.

Further on August 24, 2016, ESOP 2016 Scheme was infroduced whereby total number of options reserved for issuance under both the plans combined together shall be
restricted to 111,860 (23,230 no of options for ESOP 2016 Scheme), other conditions remaining the same, Later on March 10, 2017 with the unanimous consent of all the
sharcholders, such ESOP scheme was further modified, and in lice of such modification increased the number of employee stock options that may be granted under the
ESOS 2016, from 23,230 to 29,916 stock options exercisabls into Equity Shares of the Company of Re. 1/~ each through tramsfer of 6,686 stock options cancelled under
ESOP 2011.

The Company with unanimous consent of all shareholders on Febrary 25, 2019, increased Employee stock options from 111,899 to 198,890 that may granted under
ESOP Scheme 2016 by addition of 87,000 options excercisable into equity shares of the Company of INR | each/-,

The net compensation expense arising from equity settled share based payment transaction is March 31, 2021 : Rs, 8.3 (March 31, 2020 Rs. 7.8). The Company has given
stock option to certain employees of its subsidiaries and the corresponding compensation cost for the same is borne by the Company.
The relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Mnrch 31, 2021
No. of options Weighted avemiese,xercwe price {in
Ouistanding at the beginning of the year 1,42,950 1,131.9
Granted during the year 10,638 1.0
Forfeited during the year 15,098 79
Lapsed during the year 2,934 1.0
Exercised during the year N -
Ouistanding at the ¢nd of the year 1,35,500 1,239.3
Fxercisable at the end of the year 91,873 1,759.5
March 31, 2020

No. of options

Weighted average excrcise price (in

Rs.)
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 1,03,720 1,559.6
Granted during the year 55,140 1.0
Forfeited during the year 15,138 1.0
Lapsed during the year 772 Lo
Exercised during the year E -
Outstanding at the erd of the year 1,42,950 1,131.9
Exercisable at the end of the year 72,164 2.241.2

The weighled average remaining contractual life for the siock options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 7.91 years (March 31, 2020: 8.97 years}. The weighted average
share price at the date of exercise for stock options exercised during the period was Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020 Nil). The range of exercise price for options outstanding at
the end of the year was Re. | to Rs. 12,700 (March 21, 2020: 1 10 12,700).

The expected Jife of the stack is based on current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise paiterns that may occur. The Company has chosen o use a
near zcro volatility, in the absence of any history, over volatility of listed comparable companies.
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by Unicommerce cSolutions Private Limited

The Company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. The sharcholders of the Company, in their general meeting held on Januvary 31, 2014 approved
the grant of ESOP cxercisable into not more than 3,784 nos equity shares of Rs. 10 each to the employees and with each such option conferring a right upon the employee
to apply for one equity share of the Company. Granted the authority of designing, implementing an administering such a scheme to the Board,

During the year ended March 31, 2018, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) of the company is cancelled in lieu of the ESOP issued in Snapdeal Private Limited
(Formerty kmown as Jasper Infotech Private Limited) (the holding company). The relevant details of the scheme and grant are as below.

As per the terms, all the option holders arc entitled fo exercise their vested options in case of resignation / retirement within 3 months from the last werking day with the
company and unvested options shall stand cancelied with effect from date of resignation / retirement. In case of permanent incapacity / death vested optiess can be
exercised by the option grantee or his nomtinee within 12 manths from the date of termination or death and unvested options shall stand cancelled with effect from date of

such termination / death.

The net compensation expense arising from equity settled share based payment transaction is March 31, 2021 : Rs. 2.3 (March 31, 2020 Rs. 5.6). The Company his given
stock option to certain employees and the corresponding compensation cost for the same is bome by the Company.

The relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting period
Exercise period
Exercise price
Contractual life

Outstanding at the begineing of the year
Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Cancelled during the year

Exercised during the year

Qutstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

Cutstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Cancelled during the yeat

Exercised duting the year

Qutstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

0-4 years
10 years
Rs 10
14 years
March 31, 2021
: Weighted average
Nolloffophiges exergise price {in Rs.)
3,196 1.0
262 N
3,458 1.0
1,396 1.0
March 31, 2020
Weighted average

Ne. of opticns

exercise price (in Rs)

The weighted average remaining contractaal life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 10.34 years (March 31, 2020: 13 years). The weighted average
share price at the date of exercise for stock options exercised during the period was Rs. Nil {March 31, 2020: Nil}. The range of exercise price for options outstanding at

the end of the year was Re. 1 to Rs. 12,700 (March 31, 2028: 1 to 12,700).

During the previous Year ended March 31, 2020, the hoiding company has provided share based payment schemes to employees of all the Companies in the group

including Unicommerce eSolutions Private Limited.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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30. Founder's stock option plan

The Company had provided share-based payment scheme to its promote During the year ended March 31, 2021, Founder's Stock Option plan was in existence. The

relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

The shareholders of the Company, in their general meeting hetd en September 28, 2012 approved Founder's Stock Option Scheme 2012, wherein, it reserved 3,392 nos of
equity shares for the benefit of the promoters of the Company. On the same day with the unanimous consent of all the shareholders of the Company, 3,392 nos of options
with each such option confetring a right upon the promoter to apply for one equity share of the Company, in accordance with the terms and conditions of such issue, were
granted to promoters of the Company. Subsequently, 2120 vesied founder's stock options and 126 unvested founder's stock options were cancelled by the Bourd at their
meeting on April 29, 2014 and a total of 1,146 options remained outstanding equivafent to 11,460 nos of options post considering the impact of share split w.e.f July 23,
2015. The net compensation expense arising from equity settled share based payment transaction is Rs Nil (March 31, 2020 Nil).

The relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Vesting Period
Exercise Period
Exercise Price
Coniractual life

The details of activity under the 2012 Scheme is as follows:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the period

Forfeited during the period

Cancelied during the period

Exercised during the period
Outstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the period

QCutstanding at the beginning of the year
Grapted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Cancelled during the period

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

{ year

5 Years
Rel

5.5-10 Years

March 31, 2021

Nao. of options Weighted average exercise price

11,460 1.0

11,460 1.0

11,460 1.0

March 31, 2020

Mo. of options Weighted average exercise price

11,460 1.0

11.46% 1.0

11,460 1.0

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options ouistanding as at March 31, 2021 is 0.39 years (March 31, 202(: 1.39 years). The range of exercise
price for options outstanding at the end of the year was Re. 1 (March 31, 2020: Re. 1).

The Company has granted options pursuant to such plan in earlier year. However no oplions were granted under the plan during the year.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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31 A Fair values

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial assets and other current liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrarment could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

31B Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2021:

Date of valuation Fair value through
amortized cost

Assets measured at fair value:
Investments in commercial paper 31-Mar-21 161.0

Quaniitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2020:

Date of valuation Fair value through
anortized cost

Assets measured at fair value:
Investments in commercial paper 31-Mar-20 397.5

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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32. Financial risk management objcetives and policies

The Group financial Kabilities comprises of trade and other payables. The puspose of fhese financial Habilities is to finance & support its operations. The Group's principal financial sssets
include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash oquivalents that derive dueetly from its operations. Further the Group also holds FVEPL investinents.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's management is supported by a financial advisory group that odvises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework. The management assures that the Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that finencial risks are
identified, mensured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposcs are cartied out by the teams that have the
appropriate skills, experience and supervision. In accordance to the Group's policy, no trading in derivatives for speculative purpases may be undertaken. The Boerd of Directors reviews and
ugrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

a) Market risk

Market risk is the nsk thet the fair value of future cash flows of & financiat instrument will fluctuate beceuse af changes in mavket prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: intrest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such ag cquity price risk and comsnadity risk. Financial instruments aifecied by market tisk include borrowings, deposits, FVTPL investmentz and
denvative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate 1o the position as at 31 March 2021 and 31 Mazch 2020,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements jr market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financiat assets and
liabidities of foreign operations. The analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in Note 36.

The following assumpsions have been made in calenlating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the refevant profit or loss ilem is the effect of the assumed changes in sespective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities beld at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020 inclnding the effect of hedge accounting,

i} Interest rate risk

Tnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair valug or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate because of changes in market interest rates, There are no interest rate risks for the
Group as are Nif borrowings.

ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign cuirency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure wili fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exchange rutes selates primarily to the Group's operating astivitics {when revemue or expense is denommated in a forcign curraicy).

The Group carent does rol kedge any recciveble or payable in foreign carsency. Refer note 42,

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the seosilivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, GBP and EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group's
loss hefore tax is duc 1o changes in the fair value of monetary asscts and linbilities including non-designated forcign currency derivatives and embedided derivatives. The Group's exposire to
foreign currency changes for ali offer currenctes is not material.

Sensitivity
Particulars Change in Effect on profit
USD rate before tax
March 31; 2021 5% 0.01
IMarch 31,2021 -5% 0.01
March 31, 2020 s%_l 0.601
(March 31, 2020 5% -0.001
I!’nrﬁcuiars Change in Effect on profit
EURQ rate before tax
Im'ch 31,2021 5% -0.01
March 31, 2021 -52% 0.01
March 31, 2020 5% £.02
March 31, 2029 -5%% 02
|Particulnrs Change in Effect on profit
GBP rate before tax
March 31, 2021 5% -0.001
March 31, 2021 -5% 0.001
Match 31, 20720 5% -0.01
March 31, 2020 -5%, 0.01

iii) Equity price risk
The Group's non-Hsted equity securitics are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities, The Group manages the cquity pnee nsk
through diversification: aud by piacing limits on individual and total equity instruments. The Group’s Board of Disectors reviews and approves zll equity invesiment decisions.

(This space has been feft blank intentionally)
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b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer cositraet, leading to a financial loss. The Gronp is cxposed to credit risk from its

operating activities (primarily irede receivables) and from its financing activilies, inchuding deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange

jons and other financiai

instruments. The Group only deals with parties which has good credit rating/worthness given by extemal rating agencies or based on groups internal assessment.

Trade receivables and contract asset

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, arocedures and control relating to customer eredit risk management. Cutstanding customer

reccivables are regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed st each reporting daie using a provision matrix to mgasure expecied credit losses.

The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportablc information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forceasts of future economic conditions.. The maximum exposurc to credit risk at the reporting date is the carying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note L
The Group does not hold collateral as security. The Group evaluates the concentzation of risk with respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, os fis custemers are tocated in

several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Set out below is the inforimation about the credit risk exposure of the Group trade reccivables and contract asset using pravision matrix,

March 31, 2021 Financial Assets Trade receivables
Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total Less than 1 [More tham 1 Total
year year
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 154.6 163.7 3183 12.7 21.8 M5
ECL- simplified approach ()] {151.1) (152.4) 0.9 (21.8) 2.7
Net carrying amount 153.3 12.6 165.9 11.8 0.0 1.8
March 31, 2020 Financial Assefs Trade receivables
Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total Less than 1 |More than1  {Tofak
year year
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 146.5 191.7 3442 6.6 232 29.8
RCL- simplificd approach 35 (156.4) (£52.9) 0N (21.5) {22.2)
Net carrying amount 150.0 413 191.3 73 i.7 7.6

Financial instruments and eash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury department in aceord

anee with the Group's policy. nvestments of surplus funds ars made

only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Gronp’s Board of Directors on an annual basis. The
limits are set to minimise the concentration of tisks and therefore mitigate financial loss fimough counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the compenents of the balance sheet at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is the carrying amounts as mentioned in Note 9, The Group's
maximum exposire relating to financial guarantees and financial derivative instruments is noted in note 31 and the liquidity table below.

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract asset:

tmpairment allowance measured as per simplified approach

Impairment allowance as on 1 April 2019 {22.5)
Add/ (lessy: asset originated or acquired 04
TImpairment allewance as on 31 March 2020 (22.2)
Add/ (lessy: asset. originated or acquired 0.4
Impairment aflowance as on 31 March 2021 22.7

¢) Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shoriage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liahilities. The Group mainfains a balance between continuisy of funding and flexibility.

The table below summariscs the maturity profile of the Group finascial liabilities bused on contraceual undiscounted paymerts.

Year endcd

31-Mar-21

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Year ended

3i-Mar-20

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilitics

Excessive risk concentration

On demand Less than 1 year 1te5 > 5 years Total
years
- 208.5 - - 2085
- 3.0 5.4 - 84
- 206.3 - - 206.2
- 2.6 8.5 11.1

Concentrations arise when n pumber of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have cconomic features that would cause their
ability to mect contractua obligations to be similarly alfected by changes in cconomic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the selative sensitivity of the Group’s perfomance

to developments affecting & particular industry.

In arder to avoid excessive concentrations of sisk, the Group's policies and procedures inchude specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified

concentrations of credit tisks are controlled and managed accordingly.
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33,

34.

a)

d) Capital management :

For the purpose of the Group capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent, The primary objective of the Group®s capital management is to epsure that it
maintains an efficient capital structare and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
*The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as
loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents,

Further there are no loan outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 and accordigly no disclosure is
required for same.

Tnn order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financiaf covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requiremenis.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 and
March 31, 2020.

Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OC1)

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

During the year ended 31 March 2021 :

Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement (oss on defined benefit plans 0.6) (0.6)
(0.6) (0.6}

During the year ended 31 March 2020 :
Retained earnings Total
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans {0.8) (0.8)
(0.8) (0.8)

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires mamagement to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent labilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Other disclosures relating fo the Group's exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

« Capita] mapagement Note 32

+ Finemeial risk management objectives and policies Note 32

« Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 32

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Lease- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lense, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR} to
meastre lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The Group is followings effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.51%, with maturity the between 2023 considering the IBR
pertaining to rates of borrowings which the Company had in past.

Refer note 47 for lease note.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and cstimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assuiptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the controk of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions wheit they occur.
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) Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables ;

€)

LY

The Group uses a provision matrix to catculate ECLs for trade receivables. Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Qutstanding cusfomer
receivables are egulady monitored. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision mairix to measure
expected credit losses.

The calculation reflects the prebability-weighted outcome, the time valne of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reperting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 32. The Company
does not hold coltateral as security, The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to irade receivables as low, as ifs
customers are located in several jurisdictions and indusiries snd operate in largely independent markets.

Refer note 32 for expected credit loss of trade receivables.

Share-hased payments
The group has following two share based payment schemes for its employees. The relevant details of the scherne and grant are
mentioned in note 29 and 30.

Estimation of defined benefits and compensated leave of absence

The present value of the gramity and compensated absences obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, fiture salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assuenptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

The patameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India,
the management considers the inferest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-
employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available miortality tables for the specific countries. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Fuure salary increases and gratuity increases
are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity and compensated absences obligations are given in note 15.

(This space has been lgft blank intentionaily)
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35, Earnings per share (EPS)

36.

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributzble to cquity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS aroounts are caleulated by dividing the loss aitributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares owsstanding during the period plus the weighted avernge

number of Equity shares that would be issued or conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
The follewing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluwed EPS computations:

Forthe yearended  For the year ended

Loss for the year attributable to cquity holders of the group (A)

Weighted average mmber of equity sheres in cafculating basic and dilsted EPS (No.s)
{B}

Basic and diluted saming per eguity shate (Rs) (A/B)

Commitments and contingencies
a. Commitments

b. Contingencies
Contingent Liabilities not pravided for in respect of:

March 31, 2021 iMareh 31, 2020
(125.5) (273.9)
24.64,823 74,64,823
{509.2) (11111}
At March 31, 2021, the Company hes commitments of Rs. 0.13 net of advances { March 31, 2020 : 0.3 ) relaling to capital contracss.,
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
6.9 13.1

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts*

* Claums against the Company not acknowledged as debts comprises of:

Rs.4,3 { March 31, 2020: Rs 0.4) represents cluim made by the end customers duc to delivery related issues, which are conleated by the Company and are pending in various District Consumer Redressal

Forums in India, The management dacs not expect these cleims to succced and accordinglyno provision has been recognised in the financial statements

Rs. 6.6 ( March 31, 2020: Rs 12.7) eepresents claim made by Spacewood Fumitares Pvi, Ltd. (Pending before high court). The clatms reported in the previous peried relating to Amway and Oekley Inc., have

been considertd as remote and claims relating to Hindustan Unilever Limited the same liave been settled during the year,

(This space has been left blank 1ntentionally)
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37. Amounts dug fo micro and small enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 aggregate to Rs.

2020 —Rs. 2.1 Ct) based on the information available with the Company:

2.2 Cr (Mazch 31,

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 22 21
accounting year
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, atong with the amounts 4.3 3.2
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the periad of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.
d) The amount of interest accrued and rematning unpaid at the end of cach accounting year; 0.0 0.1
€) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, notil such date when the - -
interest dues as above arc actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,
38, Earnings and expenditure in foreign currency { on accrual basis)
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Earnings:
Revenuc from advertisement income 2.5 0.4
Software services income 0.5 0.4
Jotal earnine 1] Q8.
Expenditure:
Advertisement and publicity expenses 1.3 44
Legal and professional fees 0.0 0.0
Hosting charges 05 0.7
Software expenses 2.4 42
Miscellaneous expenses 03 0.7
4.8 10.0

Total
i ———
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39, Informztion about Business Segments - Primary

The Group's operating businesses ure organised and managed separately accerding to the nawre of products and services pravided, with each segmen Tepresenting 2 strategic business unit that offiers different products
and serves different markets,

Marketing Services:
These services inclode esiablishing, doveloping, designing and coneeptualizing direct markeling solutions through web sud non-web based platiorms, providing digital disiribution plaiform for loans, credit cands and other
personal finance producis. It else inclide marketing and ficilitating the sale of all kinds of home products, goods and services through relevision, iternet and othier electronic mode cotering to the domestic market

Commission and Other services:
These melude scller facilitation services, software services relating te supply chain and other services.

Segment accounting policies

The Group preparcs its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for prepaving and presenting the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Inter-scgment transfers
Scpmenl revenue, scgment expenses and sepment mesulls include ransfcrs between business scgments. Sych translirs are accounied for at compeltive market prices charged to umiiliated customers for similar services.

Those fransfers are climinated in corsolidation,

Summary of the Segmental fnformation for the period ¢nded and as of March 31,2021

Marketing services Commission and Inter segmient Total
Dther services eliminations
Revemze from operations 431.0 408 - 4718
Other income 83 0.0 - 83
Segment expense (390 6) {44 4) - (£35.0)
Sepment result {151.9) (3.6) 0.0 (154.9)
Finance income 30.2
France costs (L
Income tax expense 0.9
Share 1 prefit of associate 1.5
Re-measurcment gawm on defined benefit plans (0.6)
Total comprehensive loss for he y net of tax (126.0)
cts and lisbilitics position as at March 31, 2021 are as follaws:
Marketing services Cammission and Inter segment Tetal
Other services climinations
Aszets:
Scpment Assels 794.6 46,7 457 7856
Linbilities:
Segment Liabilitics 263.0 291 {15.2) 276.9
Capital employed 5315 176 {30.5) 518.7
Additlonal disclosures:
Marketing services  Commisaion and Inter segment Total
Other services diminations
Capital Fxpenditure during the vear 118 03 - 121
Depreciation 499 03 - 503
Non cash iletns 6.5 kA - 1.0
Summary of the Segmental Information for the period coded and as of March 31, 2020
Marketing services Commission and Enter segment Tolal
Other services eliminations
Revenue from operations §13.9 325 0o 846.4
Other income 11.6 - (8] 1.7
Segment expense (1,164,7)} (44.8) 00 {1,208.4)
Segment resuli {339.2) (12.3) .1 (3514}
Finance income 58.5
Finance costs (1.8)
Income lax expense ¢.2)
Share in profit of associale 6.1y
Loss from discontinuing operations 20.9
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans (8.8)
Total contprebensive foss for the year, net of tax (274.7)
Assets and Unbilities position as at March 31, 2020 are as foHows:
Markeling services  Commissien and Inter segment Total
Other services eliminations
Assets:
Segroent Assets 9350 36.3 {(46.0) 825.3
Liahtlitles:
Scgment Liabilities 2615 172 (2.4} 2723
Caplts} employed 672.5 9.1 {38.6) 653.0
Additional disclosures:
Marketing services — Coanmission awd Inter segmient Taodtal
Other services eliminations
Capital Expenditure during the year 198 - - 19.9
Depreciation 30.1 0.3 - 304

Non cash ilems 40.4 5.3 0.k 462
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40. The consclidated financial staternents of the Snapdeal Private Eimiled includes subsidiaries listed in the 1abls below:

. oy of %% Equily Inferest
Name Priocipal Activities o ovporatlon ~ Miarch 31,2031 Minch 31, 2030
Unicommeroe e-Solutions Private Limited Softwire servives India 100%a 100%
NewFanglal nternet Private Limited Other marketing services India 100° 100%

Entity with significant inflococe over the gronp
Starfish [ Fte, Lid owns 35.7% of the Equity shares in Stapdeal Private Limiled (31 March 2020: 35.7%).
41, Statutory group Information

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Nawme of the entity Net assels, i.e., 1oix) assets Share of profit or loss Share of Dther comprehensive income | Toml romprehensive loss for the
mimits tolal Habikities year
As % of Ampunt | As % of consqlldated Amount | A5 % of consolidated Amoimt A3 % of consolidated  Amount
consalidated nel prollt ar loss Other comprehensive Other comprehenshve
assets income incuie
Snapdeal Private Limited 81.3% 4218 (99.3%) {124.6) {71.8%} o4 (99.1%) [Lha))
Subsidiarics (Indiao)
Unicommerce cSalutions Private Limiied 2871% 125 &.5% 8.1 (28.2%) (i3] 6% 59
MewFangled Internet Privaic Limited {3.0%%) 57 (5.6%) {7m 0.0% 0.0 (7.0)
Fotat 100% 519 {110.0%2) (125.3)| (106.0%%) 0.5y (190.0%) (2600
Asatand for the yegr ended Marea 31, 202¢
Name of the entity Net assets, i, total assets Share of prafit or losy Share of Other conprebiensive income | Tomb comprehiensive loss far the
minus sl liabilitles year
As % af Amount | As % of consolidated Ameunt | Ax % of consclidatcd Aragmnt As % of consplideted  Amount
censolidated net profit or loss Other comprekensive Other comsprechensive
nssels income ncome
Snapdeal Private Limited 84.9% 554.4 {95.8%) (262.4) (87.5%0) 0.7 (95.8%) 26310
| Subsidiaries (Indian)
Unicommerce eSolntions Privare Linited 16.2% 1060 {1.3%) {3 6} (12.5%) ©n (13%) 3.7y
Newbangled Intarnel Private Limited {1.1%) 74 {2.9%) (7.9 0.0°% oo (25%) (7.9}
Total 100% 8551 (100.0%) (2755 (190.0% 0.8} (100,0%} 2740
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42, Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Pariiculars of nnhedged foreign currency cxposure as at the reporting date:

Particulars

Amount

Unhedged foreign currency payable

Unhedged foreign currency receivable

1.46 (USD 0.01 @ closing rate of 1 USD > Rs 73.20)
(Mareh 31, 2020: 1,35 (USD (.01 @) closing ratz of 1 USD = Rs 75.3%)

Nit
(March 31, 2020: 0.2 (SGI} 0.05 @; closing rate of 1 USD = Rs 52.67)

0.02 {GBP 0.01 (@ closing rate of 1 GBP = Rs 100.9)
{March 31, 2020; Nil (GBP 0.01 (@ closing rate ¢f 1 GBP = Rs 93.6)

0.17 {Euro 0.01 @ closing rate of 1 Eure = Rs 84.7)
(arch 31, 2020: (46 {Furo .01 (@ closing ratz of 1 Eure = Rs 83.05)

1.65 (UISD 0.0 (@ closing rate nf | USD = Rs 73.20)

(March 31, 2020: 0.31 (ST 0.01 (@ closing rate of | USD = Rs 75.39)
Nil

(March 31, 2020: 0.02 (AED 0.09 (& closing rate of L 135D = Rs 20.44)

No derivative is taken by the Company to hedge these foreign carrency payables and receivables.

43, Related Party discTosures

Names of related parties and related party vel

Names of related parties with whom tranisactious have taken place during the period

Key management personnel

Enterprises for whom reporting entity is an asseciate

Kumal Bahl (Director)

Rohit Kumar Bansal {Directer)

Vikas Bhogim (Chief Financial Officer)
Roskni Tandon (Company Secretary)

Slarfish 1Pte Ltd

Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year :
From April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 | From April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020
Associates Key management Associales Key management
personnel personmel
Salary, bonus and contribution to PF* - 104 N 159

*Note - The remuncration to key managerial persons includes the nmount considered in Form 186 for the current financial year. However it does nat include
bonus, employes stock option expense recorded on accrual basis, Purther prevision towards gramity, leave encashmend are not considered as they sre

deteninined on actuarial basis for the Company a3 & whols.
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44,

45,

45,

During 1 previaus year, Company completely uiilised advertisement credit line of Rs 255 ¢ availzble to it under its advertisement agreement with BCCL that was executed in FY 2015-16. The
said advertisemment agreement expired during the FY 2018-20 . BCCL has an vption fo exercise warrants that would be convestible to an aggregate of 15368 at o predetermined prive at the sole
discretion of BCCL a3 per the Warrant Subscription Agresment executed between the Company and BCCL in FY 2015-16.

Further, during the previous year, the Company had entered into & warrant subscription agreement willt BCCL and allotied 30,000 share warments to BCCL that are convertible inle equity shares
at a predetermined price. The Company bad simultancously entered into an advertiseroent agroetment with BCCL, and secured a long-tevn eredit facility for deferred part payment of advertising foe
up 1o an amount of Rs. 150 Cr.

As the nature of transaction 3 substance resuks in ssuance of sheres w BCCL s @ part considerntion fowards advertisement services, the Company has classified the Credit lme Lability for both
the deals to Other reserves in the previous year ended March 31, 2020,

During the current year the Company has entered into the amendment agreement for the reduction of the long tenn credit facitity ta Rs. 25,9 Cr., resulting Into reduction of the shave wartant noney
by Rs 13.3 Cr. , revised share warants 3,369, The settlement transaction us per this ameedment agreement is yet to trigger, hence the amoont has been reclassified ta Other Payables and the
carresponding security deposit seceived against the sdvertisement agreement has been reclassified under current portion of Otker financinl nssets

Dusing the FY 2018-2019, the Company bas oliotted 99 share warrants to Hindustan Media Ventures Limited (HT), as per wartant subscription agreerment dated February 16, 2019, &t a warrant
price of Rs, 15,(K1,000 /- per warrant aggregating 1¢ Rs 14.8 cr as warrant subscription amount, The warrants carries an expiration term of 84 months from date of allotnicat and are excreisable at
Rs. 13,500,000 /- per warrant. The warrants that are not exetcised by the holder on or before the expiry date: shall lapse and shall be veid and of no further foree er effect. The warrant subscription
smount is the coasideration for isuance of the warrants shall not be refundable under any irrespective of whether the warrants are exercised or not.

The Company had made the payment of Rs. 14.8 Cr to T as an interest free seourity deposit in consideration for the line of credit provided by IIT towards the release of the advertisement by the
Compary, Pursuant to the adveriisement agrecment gaiered with HT, the Compary had enterzd intp the fong-term credit Tacility up to an aggregace amounting La Rs. [48.5 Cr, Whereas the
Campairy shall make the down payment to HT or the relevan: media entity, the agroed pereentage to the vatue of the advertisement released, the balance payable (net of down payment) as the case
may be, of the value of advertisement released shall constinue a part of and be counted towards the Un-utilised credit amount. The Line of Credit shall be available to the Company from HT shall
continue to be so availabls far a period of T (seven) years, benee the balance payable towards the services ef Rs, 11,8 Cr rendered by HT or the relevant rexdia entity been part of line of credit has
classified under Trade and Other payables.

During the cutrent year the Company has entered into the amendment agreement for the reduction of the long term credit facility to Rs. 90,0 cr., reguiting into reduction of the share warrans mosnecy
byRas 5.8 Cr. , revised share warrants &0). The settlement transaction a3 per this amendment agreement is yet to trigger, hence the amount has been rechssified to Other Payables and the
cormesponding security deposis received against the advertisement agrecment has been reclassified under current portion of Other financial assets

Customer contract balances

The Group has adopted IedAS 115 on Reveme from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospeclive approach. The d is applied reirospectively only to confracts that are not
completed as at the date of initis] applization and comparative inferoation is not restaled in the statement of profit and Joss, The adoption of the slandard did not have any matenal impact on te
recogmition and measurement of reverme and relnted jtems in the financial statcments/resulis

Particulars Ag at| Agat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade Receivables 11.8 7.1

Conteact Liabilities 322 243

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days and are conditioned to be recovered purely on passage of time. Hence contract assels have been cousidered to
be Nil.

Contract Linbilities includes deferred revenue and advance from customers.

Other disclosure as specified under IdAS 115 are not required to be tuade as a matter of practical cxpedient, since the performance abligation is part ¢f coniract that has an eriginel cxpeoied
dueation of one year or less.

Contract liabifties ase primarily from deferred reveoue and customer advance for which services are yel 10 be rendered on the repecting dale either fn full or in parts. Contract lisbilities are
recognized cvenly over the period, being performance obligation of the Company.

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

Particulars March 31, 2021 Matrch 31, 2020
Amount included in contract habilities a1 the begnining of the year I 159 477

Right of refund tizhilities
[P“Ttic‘mw As at Aset]
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
39

!An’sing from rights of return 6.1
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47. Leases

‘The Group (Snapdeal Private Limited has token promises on rent fram Real Capital which has been accounted for after adoption of

IndAS 116. Refer below for details :

Set ont below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Pavrticulars Right of Use Asset

As at April 01, 2019* 14.1
Additions -

Deprecistion expense (3.1)
As at March 31, 2020 11.0
Additions s

Deprecialion expense (3.1)
As at March 31, 2021 7.9
Set out below ars the carrying amouats of lease liabilitics and the movements during the period:

Particulars Lease Jiability

As at April 01, 2019 13.4
Additions -
Accretion of interest 1.0
Paymeits (3.3)
As at March 31, 2020 11.1
Additions s

Accretion of interest 0.8
Paymenls (3.5)
As at March 31, 2021 8.4
Current 30
Non-current 54

*Opening balance of right-of-use assets include Prepaid expenses amounting to Rs 0.8 Cr pertaining to long term portion of Security

Deposit,
The effective inferest rate for lease liabilities is 8.51%%, with maturity between 2023

The following are the amounts recopnised in profit or loss:

Particulars For the year March 31,
2021
Depreciation expense of right-pf-use assets 31
Intercst cxpense on lease liabilitics 0.8
Expense relafing to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 3.5
‘Total ampunt recognised in profit or loss 4.3
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48.

49,
50,

The outbreak of Coronavinus (COVID19} is causing significant disturbances and slowdown of economic activity in India and across the globe. The Company has
evaluated impact of this pandemic on its business operations. Based on its review and current indicators of the economic conditions, there is no significant impact on
the financinl results. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material change arising of futare economic conditions and impact on its business, if any.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, there are no material adjusting/non adjusting subsequent events.

Previcus year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year's classifiention.

As per our report of even date
For 8. R. Batlibol & Associates LLF For and on behalf of board of directors of
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